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Transperiation. Traffic and fransportation continues to be one of City Council’s top pricrities. In
Nevember 2008, city voters authorized $46 million for road projects, with bonds to be issued within the
next ten years. To date, $11,875,000 in road bonds have been issued for planned projects to meet the
City's needs. Substantial work has been completed on the right of way purchase and design for the
expansion of FM 1460, enhancing Georgetown’s fransportation corridor to high growth areas in north
Round Rock, along with many other major projects in the development stages. The City, through its
Transportation Advisory Board, reviews its five year Transportation Improvement Program annually. In
addition, the City is developing a plan {0 assume responsibility of traffic lights within the City.
Implementing a regional pavement design system and program to ensure cchesiveness of the City's
roadways continues o be a top priority.

Public Safety. Improving public safety response has been a major priority for the last several years. The
City completed and opened Fire Station 5 in October 2012 to address response times in the northwestern
portion of the City, and completed the reconstruction and expansion of Fire Station 2 serving the central
area in February 2013, The voter approved $29.5 million Public Safety Operations and Training Complex
(PSOTC) broke ground in August 2013. This facility will include Police and Fire administration and
operations offices, a 24-hour emergency communications center and training areas, including an obstacie
course. The complex is expected to be completed in fail 2014.

Park Improvemenis. The City continues to expand its award winning park system through continued
development of the City's trail system along the San Gabriel Rivers to Lake Georgetown. In November
2008 city voters authorized $35.5 million in bonds to fund park improvements. The City adopted the
Parks Master Plan in March 2009 to continue to preserve river corridors and expand parks and green
space. The first phase of the San Gabriel River Trail expansion is under construction and is scheduled to
be completed in 2014. This trail system has been designated as a National Recreation Trail, one of only
15 such trails in Texas. An additional $5 million of the voter approved bonds was issued in 2013 to fund
the next steps in the Plan. These major steps include the Feb 2013 purchase of 90 acres for a future
west side active park and recreation area, the design and business pian on the future 525-acre Garey
Park, and improvements in San Gabriel Park.

Long Range Planning. Planning for Georgetown’s future is a major priority, as the City formally
adopted a new comprehensive plan in 2008 called the Georgetown 2030 Plan. This Plan provides vision
for the future and is designed fo address growth issues facing the community over the next 20+ years.
This project required citizens throughout the community to provide the foundation for policies needed to
ensure that the Georgetown of 2030 has the unique gquality of life and economic vitality that it dees teday.

The City's 2030 Plan has been defined by City Council as the goal of becoming the Cily of Excefiancs
with five focus areas: Economic Development, Public Safety, Signature Destination, Transpartation and
Utilities. This framework guides the City's business and financial planning process.  Staff prepares
business plans by focus area and a five-year financial model to direct sound fiscal and policy decisions
while capitalizing on the positive momentum in the local and state economy.

Financing Activities. The City took advantage of favorable debt market conditions in the spring of 2013
and issued all of the voter approved debt to fund the PSOTC, $5 million of voter approved parks honds,
as well as, refunding previously issued debt. By issuing the public safety debt ahead of schedule, the
citizens will realize $5 million in interest savings over current market conditions. The City took advantage
of higher than budgeted tax revenues and 2011/12 fund balances to cash fund $1.2 million in public
safety vehicles and equipment that had originally been scheduled for debt financing. The former
Albertson’'s building, purchased in 2008, was sold creating additional financial capacity for future city
needs.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The City is responsible for establishing and mainfaining internal conirols designed to ensure that the
assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and that adequate accounting data is compiled
to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. Internal centrols are designhed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
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objecfives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

The City's Chief Financial Officer, Finance Director, Controller, and other key staff in the Finance and
Administration Division design and maintain the internal control structure.  These controls are under
cantinual review by management, and under annual review by the independent avditors. During the year,
the Finance Division performs internal audits on selected procedures and operations throughout the City
organization. The selection of priorities and timing of audits are determined by the Chief Financial Officer,
along with the City Manager.

Single Audif. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. Internal controls are subject to periodic evaluation by management. The tests
refating to the receipt of such funds are known as Single Audit testing. These tests are made to determine
the adequacy of internal controls, including that portion related to federal financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the City has complied with applicable laws and reguiations. The compliance
section is included in the final section of this document.

Budgetary Controls. The City maintains budgetary controls o ensure compliance with legal provisions
embadied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Activities of all funds are
included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgstary control (that is, the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by division and depariment
within an individual fund. The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technigue
of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts are reserved at year-end and carried forward
into the following year.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City
continues to meet its responsibility for socund financial managemeant.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. The City Charter requires an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The accounting firm of ClifionLarsonAllen, LLP was selected by the City Council. The goal
of the independent audit is to provide reascnable assurance that the financial statements of the City for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, are free of material misstatement. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an ungualified opinion
and that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, are fairly presented
in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors repert on the basic financial statements and
schedules are included in the financial secticn of this report.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. The Certificate of
Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financiai
reporting. In order to be awarded a Cerlificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to
program standards. Such Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period
of one year. The City has received a Cerlificate of Achievement for twenty-six (26} consecutive years.
We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFQA.

We are also proud to report that the GFOA has presented the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
to the City of Georgetown for each of the past twenty-four (24) vears.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Counci
City of Georgetown, Texas

Repart on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financiat statements of the governmentat activities, the bhusiness-
type aclivities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Georgetown, Texas {the "City") as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatian of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of thé United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies Used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions
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Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Georgetown, TX as of Seplember 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where appiicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Beard Staternent {GASBS) No. 61, The Financial Reporiing Entity. Omnibus —
an amandment of GASB Statement No. 14 and 24, GASBS No. 82, Cedification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Contained in Pre-November 30, 1988 FASE and AICPA Pronouncements,
GASBS No. 83, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position, and GASBS No 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
As a result of the implementation of GASBS No. 65, the City reported a change in accounting
principle {See Note 12.) to remove debt issuance costs. The auditors’ opinion was not madified with
respect to the restatement. GASBS No. 81, 62 and 83 did not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generailly accepted in the United States of America require that the
managements discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, Texas Municipai
Retirement System Trend Data and Other Post Empioyment Benefits, and modified approach far
street infrastructure capital assets on pages 27 through 38 and 101 through 102 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basie financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses {o our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or pravide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Ciher information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individua! nonmajor
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a reguired part
of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, is also presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
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statements and ceriain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used o prepare the basic financial statements
ot to the basic financial statements themseives and other additional procedures in accerdance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United-States of America. In our opinicn, the individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation {o the basic financial statements as a whole.

We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, the City's basic financial statementis for the year ended September 30, 2012, which are
not presented with the accompanying financial statements. in our report dated February 21, 2013, we
expressed ungualified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the discretely presenied component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information. That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions
on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's financial statemenis as a whole. The
comparative balance sheets and statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
of the major governmental funds are presented for purposes of additional anatysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the 2012 financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of those financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
recanciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used fo prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themseives, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the 2012 comparative balance sheets and statements of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances of the major governmental funds are fairly stated in ail material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements from which they have been derived.

The introductory section and statistical tables listed in the table of contents have not been subjecied
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

QOther Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued aur report dated February
28, 20714, an our consideration of the City of Georgetown’s internal controf over financiai reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not ta
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repeort is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance,

WWW L

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Callas, Texas
February 28, 2014
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of the City of Georgetown financial performance provides an
overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, Please read it in
conunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the City's financial statements, which
foltow this section.

FINANGIAL HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund

« Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the General Fund was $13,050,103 or 23%
higher than FY 2012 fund balance. The fund had 57.4 million of committed fund balance, $1.6
million of assigned fund balance and $4 million of unassigned fund balance. Revenues were $1.4
million more than the original budget estimates.

«  General Fund revenues increased $4.8 miliion, an increase of 15% over FY 2012, This increase is
due to greater revenues from growth and rate increases for property taxes and environmeantal
services (sanitation}, growth in sales and franchise {ax revenues, and a one-time receipt of master
development fee revenues.

» General Fund expenditures increased by 32.4 million, an increase of 6% over FY 2012. This
increase was due to public safety’s restructured Step Pay Plan, operating costs for the new Fire
Station No. 5, and city-wide salaries increased to market based on a compensation study.

Governmental Activities

« On a government-wide basis for governmental activities, the City had expenses net of program
revenue of 333.1 million. General revenues and transfers totaled $52.9 million, resulting in an
increase in net position of $19.8 million.

« Asof September 30, 2013, the City's governmental activities reported combined ending net position
halances of $218.9 million. The largest element of this balance is the value of the City's investment
in capital assets which totaled $174.8 million. Capital assets include the value of streets, parks and
facilities, net of related debt.

+ During fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City issued approximately $32.5 million in
General Obligation and Certificates of Obfigation bonds for enfity-wide purposes. The debt issue
included $22 million for voter-approved general capital projects for parks and public safety facilities.
The City also issued 511 million in Refunding GO bonds to refire outstanding debt issued at a higher
interest rate, with a net savings of $648,000. The City's general obligation debt is rated AA+ by
Standard & Poor's and AA2 by Moody's.

Business-Type Activities

+ The net position of the City's business-type aclivities had a current year increase of $3.1 million.
The current year increase is due to the continued growth of the customer base of the utility systams
and 3$4.8 million of infrastructure assets contributed by developers for commercial projects and
residential subdivisions.

» The Cily's total debt issue included $4.1 million combination tax and revenue Certificates of
Obligation bonds for the construction of additional service faciliies, to be paid from utility system
revenues. The City's Standard & Poor's rating is AA- and the Moody's rating is AA2 on the utility
system revenue debt,

Entity-Wide

« The City's {otal net position on a government-wide basis was $483.9 million at September 30, 2013,
an increase of 8% over September 30, 2012. Most of this balance is invested in capital assets,
restricted for specific purposes.

s the City received $10.8 million of grants and other capital contributions in FY 2013,
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

MD&A

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTICN OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of three sections: introductory, financial and
statistical. As illustrated in the following chart, the financial section of this report has three components:
management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, and required
supplementary information.

Components of the Financial Section

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide Fund
Governmental Activities (Full Accrual) Governmenial {(Modified Accrual)
Business-Type Activities (Fult Accrual) Proprietary (Full Accrual)

Fiduciary (Full Accrualy

Notes to the Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole, using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of
the government’s assets and liabilities, reported using the fuli accrual basis of accounting. The statement
of activities accounts for all of the current year's revenues and expenseas, regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net paosition and how it has changed. Net position,
which is the difference between the City's assets and deferred ouiflows and liabilities and deferred
inflows, are one way to measure the financial health of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in the
City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To assess
the overall health of the City, one needs to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in the
City's property tax base and condition of the City's infrastructure.
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The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the City's basic services are included here, such as police, fire and
other public safety services, parks and recreation, public library, street maintenance, environmental
services, and general administration. Froperty and sales taxes, return on investment from the City’s utility
services, and charges for services finance maost of these activities.

Business-{ype Activities — The City's Water Services Fund, which includes water, wastewater and
irfigation services, as well as its Electric ulility, are reported here. Stormwater Drainage and the City's
Airport are also reported in these activities. Fees charged to customers fund the costs of providing these
services,

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial statemenis provide more detaifed informaticn about the City’s most significant funds
and will be more familiar to traditional users of government financial statemenis. The focus is now on
major funds rather than fund types.

The City has three types of funds:

Governmental Funds — General Fund, Special Revenug Funds, Capital Projects Funds and the Debt
Service Fund are governmental funds, which focus on:

(1} How cash and other financial assets can readily be converted io cash flow (in and out), and
(2) Year-end balances readily available for spending.

Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a short-term view that helps determine
whether there are greater or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future io finance the
City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional leng-term focus of the
government-wide statements, additional information is provided with the governmental fund financial
statements that explain the reconciliation between the fund statements and the government-wide
statements.

Proprietary Funds — Services for which the City collects fees and rates intended fo fully recover the cost
of providing the service are reported in proprietary funds. Two types of proprietary funds are alfowed in
governmental accounting: enterprise funds and internal service funds. These funds, similar to
government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-term financial information.

The City’s enterprise funds are substantially the same as its business-type activities, but the fund financial
statements provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its electric, water services, airport, and stormwater drainage activities. The City uses
internal service funds to report activities that provide supplies and services for the Cify's other programs,
activities and funds. The City's internal service funds are used in providing facllity maintenance, fleet
services, oint services (providing administrative functions to the other funds}, as well as information
technology services.

Fiduciary Funds — The City is trustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held on behalf of others, and for
certain pass-through arrangements. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these
funds are used for their intended purposes. The City's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net assets. Assets for assessment collections for the City's public improvement
districts and pass-through lease agreements for Texas Capital Fund projects are held in fiduciary funds.
These fiduciary activities are excluded from the City's government-wide financial statements because the
City cannot use these assets fo finance its operations.
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Changes in Met Posifion
{In thousands)
Govtl Aclivities Bus-Type Activities Total
213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2072
Revenas!
Frogram Revenues
Charges for Senice % 13,800 i 12,685 5 87,191 3 0, 855 % 700,801 % 103,641
Cperating Grants & Contrinudions 257 257 26 147 283 1.104
Capital Grants & Contribuions 5,000 244 4,558 3918 10,558 B,3449
General Revenues
Propedty Taxes 17.037 15,752 - - 17,037 15,752
Sales Taxes 17.003 15,045 . - 17,003 15,045
Cther Taxes 1,331 1,143 - - 1,33 1.143
Franchise Taxes 4471 3524 - - 4,471 3.924
Interest 247 231 1268 186 irg g7
Other 1,129 70 4,919 4,004 5,048 4,714
Total Revanues H 61,269 g 52,879 $ 96,730 % 99,180 E] 157,99% s 152,059
Expensas”
Cuktura-recraation F75 9338 - - 9775 9,328
Derszlopment 1,881 2,285 - . 1,851 2,285
Fire 9,144 8634 - - 9,144 8,634
General goveninent G447 £ 651 - - 447 4,851
Inlerest an long term debt 3,808 4375 - - 3.606 4 375
Palice 12,042 11,522 - - 12,042 11,522
Streets 5,458 5,565 - - 5,459 5,565
Erndronmental Servdces 4,856 4 831 - - 4,856 4,834
Electric - - 45,543 56,407 46,343 56,407
Water Sendces - - 22,244 21,597 22,844 21,547
Afrport - - 3172 3,012 3472 3,03
Stomwaler - - 2,204 1,905 2,204 1,805
Total Expenses 3 53,180 1 51,39 $ 74,763 H 82,822 5 127,843 5 134,313
Change in ret posifion before transiers 8,089 1,488 21,967 16 258 20,056 17, 748
Transfers 11,720 B,511 (51,7203 {6.511)
Change in net position 19,209 7,950 10,247 0747 0058 17 746
Met Position - Eeginning 198,803 190,204 257,859 248112 455,662 438,216
Restaterment 11,710) - {1,128} - {2.838)
Net Position - Ending $ 216,802 5 196,803 $ 266,980 s 257,859 $ 483,882 $ 458,662

The City's combined net position increased by $27 million to $484 million from $457 million in FY 2013.

s Net position of Governmental Activities was $216.9 million. Most of these assets are invested in
capital assets or resiricted for particular purposes, such as debt service or capital projects.

s The City's unrestricted net position for governmental activities, which can be used to finance day to
day operations, totaled $41 million. Of that total, $4 million was unassigned fund balance available for
future appropriations.

» Included in unrestricted net position are fund balances that are earmarked for particular purposes,
stch as parks improvements, street maintenance, development, and tourism. The balance of thase
funds at September 30, 2013 was $2.7 million.

s Net position invested in capital assefs net of related debt for governmental activities increased $6.7
million, primarily due to developer contributed capital and addilions to capital assets.

» Current year net position of business-type activities increased by $8.1 million, primarily due to
developer contributed capital and additions to capital assets.

« During 2013, the City invested $16.4 million towards improving and expansion of utility infrastructure,
compared to $20.5 million in 2012,
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» Expenses for business-type activities totaled $74.7 million, a 10% decrease over the prior year,
which provided electric, water, and wastewater services for customers, as well as airport and
stormwater drainage programs. Electric decreased while Water, Stormwater, and Airport all had
increases. Notabie explanations for the changes are explained below.

s Electric decreased 17.7%. The decrease in expenses for Electric are associated with
lower purchased power costs over prior year.

« Water services increased 5.8%. The increase can be aftributed to higher operating and
plant management expenses due to higher water sales.

» The 5.3% increase at the Airport is related to the fluctuations in the price of fuel compared
to FY 2012,

« Stormwater saw a 15.7% increase over the prior year due to higher personnel and
operating costs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds: The City’s Fund Balance is the accumulated difference between assets and
liabilities within governmental funds, and it allows the City to meet its contractual obligations, fund
disaster or emergency costs, provide cash flow for timing purposes and fund non-recurring expenses
appropriated by City Council.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the City's governmental funds reflect a combined fund
balance of $75.2 million.

The General Fund had a fund baiance of $13,050,103 for FY 2013, an increase of 52,418,693 over FY
2012. This increase is due in part to higher than expected sales tax revenues, a one-time receipt of master
development fees, saniiation contract lower than projected, salary savings, and the timing of street projects..
According to the Fiscal and Budgetary Policy of the City, the use of excess fund bafance is limited {o non-
recurring one time only expenses. City Council voted to spend the spend the excess funds for cash
funding some general capital projects and set aside $100,000 to create a perpetual Cemetery fund.

General Capital Project Fund had a fund balance of 340 million for FY 2013 compared to $24.3 million for
FY 2012. This significant increase is due to the issuance of general obligation debt to fund general
capital projects. The City issued $22 million of debt to fund voter-approved parks and public safety
projects. The City expended $9.8 million on various general capital projects.

Non-major governmental funds include an increase in fund balance of $664,000 due fo the funding and
timing of street improvement projects in the Sales Tax Maintenance Fund.

General Debt Service Fund reflects a decrease of 3640,000 in fund balance in FY 2013, This decrease is
due to the repayment of bond principal and payment to escrow in conjunction with the advance refunding
of debt.

Georgetown Transportation Enhancement Corporation (GTEC), the City's blended component unit had a
15% increase in fund balance due to the timing of capital improvement projects. GTEC contributed $4.1
miflion in transportation improvements to facilitate economic development in 2013,

Business-type Activities: The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information
found in government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total unrestricted net position for as of September 30, 2013 totaled $36 million, which included $12
million for Electric, $22 million for Water and $2 million for alf other Non-Major funds. The change in net
position for FY 2013 was $5.1 miltion resulting primarily from continued growth in the City's utility systems
and capital improvements.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The originat and final budget of the General Fund changed due to a budget amendment for an increase in
Culture-recreation programs, environmental services relating to fuel, street maintenance projects and
grant matches. The variance between the actual ending fund balance at September 30, 2013 of §11.4
mitlicn and the final budgetary fund balance of 38 million is attributed to higher than expected sales tax
and franchise tax revenues, increased property tax revenues and environmental services from the
adopted rate increases, and receipt of a one-time master development fee. Expenditures were less than
budgeted primarily due to timing of projects and vacant positions.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City's governmental activities (including the internal service funds) had invested $268 million in a
variety of capital assets and infrastructure. The City has $288 million investad in its business-type
activities capital assets. The detail is reflected in the following schedule:

Governmental Activities
Change in Capital Assets®
{In theusands)
Balance Deletions Balance
9/30/2012 Additions & Transfers 930/2013
Non-deprecialile Assels:
Land 8,441 5 1,414 $ - 0,855
Construction in progress 22,888 14,721 {21,009} 16,600
Streets 143,211 18,135 - 159,348
Other capital assels
Equipment 31,847 2,318 {723) 33,442
Buildings 58,129 87 - 56,216
Improvements 33,251 5,678 - 38,820
Less accumulated depreciation {42,248} (4,874} 702 {46,417)
Capital Assets - Governmental 253,521 5 36,379 % {21,029) 267 871
Business-Type Activities
Change in Capital Assets
{In thousands)
Balance Deletions Balance
9/30/202 Additions & Transfers 9/30/2013
Non-depreciable Assels;
Land 2572 % - 3 - 2,572
Construction in progress 23,358 11,589 {22,724 12,233
Other capital assefs
Equipment 2,913 154 - 2,687
Buildings 6,949 - - 5,949
Improvements 340,613 4,622 22,152 367,387
Less accumulated depreciation (84,529} (8,618} - {104,147)
Capifal Assets - Business-Type 281,476 S 6,757 3 {572) 287,661
City-wide Totals 534,997 5 42 136 $ {21.601) 555,532
*hcludes internal service funds assets, which are allocated to governmentat activities
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The City prepared a complete inventory of street infrastructure assets in 2003 and 2004 and assigned a
valua to the inventory based upon the age of the street and construction indexes. This established a
base line for inventory reporting under the modified approach for GASB 34 reporting.

The Council adopted a financial policy that establishes an average condition level of 85 to maintain the
streets in “good” condition. The Pavement Condition Index {(PCI) is a measurement scale for pavement
condition, ranging from zero (poor) to 100 for pavement in perfect condition. The PCI for fiscal years
2005-2007 was 91 and 2008-2010 was 93. During 2011, the City contracted with Fugro Consultants, Inc.
to reassess the condition of the pavement management system. The PCl for 2011 was 88. This decease
can be aftributed 1o recently annexed areas with streets needing improvements. This assessment is
conducted every three years and will be reevaluated in 2014.

The City budgets approximately $1.3 million annually of General Fund revenues for on-going street
maintenance projects, along with the staff and maintenance costs of the street department. [n addition,
the City also budgets for the approximate 52 miflion of funds received in dedicated 1/4 cent sales tax for
street maintenance. The mamtenance funds are allocated among varicus projects identified by the
analysis to ensure funds are spent where needed to maintain the PCI adopted by Council.

Utility infrastructure maintenance is budgeted within the utility funds. For fiscal year 2013, funding for
glectric and water services infrastructure maintenance was $1.4 million.

Major capital assets added in FY 2013 are noted below:

¢« General Capital Projects:
e Construction in process proiects $8,665,000
»  Public Safety Operations and Training Center
»  River frails expansion
»  Westside Service Center

*  FM 1460
o \Westside Park land purchase $1,414,000
» Reconstruction of Fire Station No. 2 $1,455,000
« NE Innerloop /f FM 971 $463,000
= SE1/130 Connection $865,000
= Arterial SE1/ Innerloop 698,000

« Utility Infrastructure and Capital Projects:

¢ AMI system — metering & management for water and electric  $5,002,000
e Enferprise Asset Management System — water & electric $511,000
» Electric distribution system expansion and improvements $1,998,000
» Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone compliance $885,000
s Pecan Branch Wastewaler Treatment Plant Phase 2 $407,000
s Lift stations & upgrades $634,000
o Lake WTP Expansion HI $526,000
« Water pumping and line improvemenis $174,000

For more detailed notes about the City's capital assets, please see pages 77-79 of the noles o the
financial statements.

36



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

MD&A

QUTSTANDING DEBT

City of Georgetown Qutstanding Debt and Long-Term Liabilities
{In thousands)

Govfl Activities Bus-Type Activifies Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Ganeral Obligation Bonds $ 116,638 $ 100,357 $ 14,552 11618 § 131,190 35 111,975
Premiums 100 17 B35 888 735 805
Sales tax revenue bonds $,855 8,420 - - 8,855 9,420
Rewenue Bonds - - 47.455 51,425 47,455 51,425
Compensated absence payable 3,775 3235 775 682 4,553 37
Net pansion obligation 1,274 1,265 140 138 1,414 1,403
Cther Post Employment Benefits 480 361 - - 480 361
Arbitrage rebate payable 15 15 - - 15 15
Total Long Term Debt $ 131,220 § 114770 & 63,557 64,5561 § 194,777 § 179,321

As of September 30, 2013, the City had a total of $131 million in general obligation debt cutstanding.
This represents & 17% increase over prior year. This increase reflects $5 million of General
Obligation bonds for park projects, as well as the final $17 million for the Public Safety Operations
and Training Center.

The state limits the legal amount of tax levy available for general obligation debt service to $1.50 per
$100 valuation. The City's 2013 debt levy equaled $0.17363 per $100 assessed valuation, or 11.58%
of the maximum allowed,

Other long-term debis included are compensated absence payable, net pension obligation, other
post-employment benefits and arbitrage rebate payable. These experienced a slight increase over
FY 2012 of $746,000, primarily due to an increase in compensated absence payable.

In May 2013, the City issued $11,005,000 in General Cbhligation Refunding Bonds with an average
interest rate of 3.4%. The Cily advanced refunded bonds to reduce its total debt service payments
over the next 13 years 1o obtain a net economic gain of approximately $648,000.

A detailed analysis of the City's long-term debt is located on pages 80-87 in the notes to the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

During FY 2013, the City continued to see strong improvemenis in the locat and regional economy. Total
sales tax recelpts grew to $17.0 million, or by 13% over 2012, an increase over pre-economic downtown
receipts for the 4™ consecutive year. The growth in residential and commercial development continued in
FY 2013 with $294.9 million in new permits; while at the same time, unemployment continued to drop
from 7.08% in 2012 t0 5.70% in 2013. The residential growth in the City's utility service area, which
includes both the city limits and the City's exfra territorial jurisdiction (ETJ}, continued its 2-4% growth

rate.

The adopted FY 2014 budget assumes continued modest growth in new property of approximately $124
miltion and an adopted tax rate increase of 7.2% or $0.4395 per $100 valuation. Sales tax revenues are
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSBETS

Gash and cash equivalents

Cash and casn eguivalents - restricted

invastments

Investments - restricted

Prepaid items

Accounts Teceivable:
Services (net of akowance for uncolleclibles)
CHier

IMvaniarias

Long-term note receivable

Net investment in capital assets

Land

Streats

Censtruction in progress

Tatal assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferrec charge on refunding

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF

RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Laabilities payable from restricted assets:
Construction contracts and ather
Cusiomer deposits
Unearned revenue
Nancurrent liahilities:
Due within ore year
Due in mere than cne year
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Met investment in capiial assets
Restricted for:
Dehbt Service
Urrastricted

Tofal Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Component
Primary Government Unit
Georgetown
Economic
Governmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities TOTAL Corporation
$ 28311.990 311,529,368 39,847,308 % 15612816
- 612,274 642,274 -
46 858 059 14,674,164 61,530,223 1,825,402
- 2,634,443 2,634,443 -
21,303 2,283,843 2,315,146 -
- 12,934,814 12,934,814 -
5,085 490 1,023,545 10,109 .444 210,437
335,308 3,367,473 3702774 -
- 1,053,422 1,053422 -
52,055 985 272 856 2681 354.812.226 458110
9,668,314 2,571 662 12430876 -
159,348,368 - 158,346.368 -
16,599,988 12,233,712 28,833,700 -
352,480,792 337,785,379 590,266,171 4,108 785
1,259,524 1,259,524 -
$ 353,740,316 $ 337,785,379 691,525,695 3 4,106,755
4386463 3 5,607 396 10,003.861 k] 2,405
576,155 300,547 876,706 -
- 560,293 560,283 -
- TV9.078 779,078 -
645,217 - 845217 4,000
3,764,161 9,570,329 14,334,490 55,000
122,455,762 57,967,388 180,443,178 455,000
136,837,754 ¥0.805.03% 207 642 822 5,056,405
174,798,105 230,939 554 405,070,243 458,110
1,108,220 - 1,108,220 -
40,995, 207 36.040.786 J7.703,408 2582250
216,902 532 266,980,340 483 882 BTZ 3,050,350
$ 353,740,316 § 337,785,279 691,525,695 $ 4,106,765

The notes {o the financial statemeants are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Functions/Programs

Primary government

Governmental Activifies
Culture-recreation
Development
Fire
Generai government
Police
Shrests
Environrmental services
Interest on fong term deht

Total governmental activities

Business -type Activities
Electric
\Water
Arport
Stormwater
Totatl business-type activities

Tatal primary government
Component Unit

Georgatown Econcmic & Development

Corporation

Program Revenues

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants

Expenses Services & Contributions & Contributions

5 97FvE208 $ 2,425,587 $ 141,908 S -
1,650,530 1,689 670 - 264 594

9,144 092 1433679 39,795 -
6,447 308 1.261.561 . 56,445

12,042,346 856,027 74,889 -
5,439,183 1,125 - 5,688 827

4,855,404 8,069,004 - -

3,506,106 - - -
53,180,181 13,800,553 256,593 5,929,666
465,543,022 54,743,579 - 510,454
22,844 363 27,244 363 - 2,708,648
3,171,550 2906267 25,589 :
2,204,172 2,208,108 - 1,339,183
74,763,107 87,100,717 25,589 4,558,296
§ 127,943,288 $ 100,901,270 % 282,182 S 10,557,962

$ 1067429 $ 3 - $ -

General revenuas:
Property Tax
Sales Tax
Taxes - ather
Franchise taxes
Interest on investments
Other
Transfers
Taotal general revenues and transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of the year
Restatamant
Net Posifian, beginning of the year, as restated

Net Position, end of the year

The notes to the financial staternents are an integral part of this statement.
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Net {Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Gavernment Companent Unit
Georgetown
Economic
Governmental Business-Type Development
Activities Activities Total Carporation
s (7,207,713) § - $ (7207713
273734 - 273734
{7.670.618) - (7 670,618}
£5,118,302} - (5,119,302)
(11,008,433) - (11,008,433
2101588 - 210,569
1,204,500 - 1,204 500
{3,808,106) . {3,806,106)
(33,123,269) {33,123,369)
- 8. 711,411 8711411
- 7,108,649 7,108,649
- (239,694) (230,564
- 1,341,129 1.341.129
16,921,485 16,921,495
(33,123,369} 18,921,495 {16,201,874)
$ (1,067 429)
17,037,036 - 17,037,036 -
17,002 757 - 17,002,757 1,165,819
1,331,281 - 1,331,281 -
4,471 487 - 4 471 487 -
241,449 136,322 IB7 7T 5,381
1,129,388 4,819,258 6,045,647 24,000
11,719,799 (11.719,799) - -
52,933,108 {6.874.219) 46,258,979 1,168,200
19,809,829 10,247,276 30,057,105 127,771
198,802,674 2o7.8589, 387 435,662,261 2,922,589
1,710,171} {1,126,323) (2 836,494} -
197,092,703 256.733,064 453 825 787 2,822 589
5 216,902,532 5 266,980,340 $ 483,882,872 $ 3,050,360
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

GECRGETOWN
TRANSPORTATION GENERAL NONMAJCR TOTAL
ENHANCEMENT DEBT CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERMNMENTAL
GENERAL CORPORATION SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,644 163 3 - 5 E 3 13.081.820 3 J3A52905 3 26,278 852
Investments 5,910,753 £.713,398 1,10%,220 23 013,225 4,445 521 44 192,117
Accourds receivable (net of
uncoitectible accounts):
Delinguant taxes 158,571 - 135,659 - - 336,220
Sales tax 1,857.933 825 748 - 412,874 3,096 555
Grants - 2875572 - 43,381 2,718,833
Other 2,446,052 - 107,216 355,571 2,012,839
Prepaid tems 13,903 - - - 13,803
Inventories 4,794 - . 4,754
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,077,169 $ 13,214,318 1,245 879 5 1,200 361 $ 3,754,236 % 79,483,863
LIABILITIES
Accourts payable % 1,476,720 % 5459 862 g 972 406 3 270904 % 3,269 862
Unearned revenue 350,776 195,785 88,676 645,217
Total liabilities 1,827,498 549,862 1,168,171 369,580 3,915,109
DEFERRED INEFLOWS OF
RESQURCES
Unavallable revenrus 198,570 - 136,659 - 336 229
Total deferred Inflows of
resQuUrces 198,570 - 136,659 - 336,229
FUND BALANCE
MNonspendatie 18,687 - - 18,697
Spendakle:
Restricted - - 1,108,228 15,438,887 5,732,880 23,230,577
Committed 7,400,000 12,292,845 - - 2,174,388 (21,867,213
Agsigned 1,631,482 7811 - 24,595,193 477,428 27 075,714
Unassigned 3,989,524 - - - - 3,588,974
Total fund balance 13,050,103 12,664,456 1,109,220 40,034,090 8,384,656 75,242 825
TOTAL LIABNATIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCE H 15,077,169 $ 13,214,318 1,245,878 § 41,202 261 5 B,754,2368 § 79,493,863

The nates to the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total fund baiance - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmenta! activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds
balance sheet.

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as capital assets, administrative services and information
technology to appropriate functions in other funds. The assets

and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmenial
activities in the statement of net position. The effect of this consolidation
is to increase nat position.

Premiums and discounts on issued bonds have not been included
in the fund financial statements.

Bonds payabie and contractual obligations are not due and payable in

the current period and, therefare, have not been included in the fund financial statements.

Repayment of bond principal and the payment to escrow in conjunction with the
advance refunding of debt reflects a reduction to liabilities in the staternent of
net position.

Accrued liabitities for accrued employee benefits are not due and payable in

the current period and, therefore, have not been included in the fund financial statements.

Liabilities for arbitrage are not dug and payable in the current period and, therefare,
have not been reflected in the fund financial statements.

Revenues from property taxes are deferred in the fund financial
statements until they are considered available 1o fund current
expenditures, but such revenues are recognized in the government-
wide staterments.

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide financial
staternents, whereas in the fund financial statements interest

expense is reported when due.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3¢, 2013
GEORGETOWN
TRANSPORTATION GENERAL NONMAJOR TOTAL
ENHAMGEMENT DEBT CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL CORPORATION SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
Property taxes:
Current % §,684,23% 3 - ] 7,386,823 - - 17 041,162
Definguent 44 828 - 32,074 - - 76802
Fenaliies and nierest 79,396 - - - - T8 3586
Cther tax revenue 234,550 553,143 787,593
Froperty asseasment - - 387,290 367,200
Sales 1ax 10,057 841 4,663,277 2,331 B39 17,002,787
Franchise taxes 4,471,487 - - A4 £71 487
Licenses and permis 1,536,860 E 1,536,660
Charges for service 5302218 - - - 176.863 G 479 BEQ
Firnes and forfefures 670,582 - - - 68 574 739,554
Grents and donations 202,837 3459704 - 57167 559.584 3,579,282
lnvesimeni incame 34,610 19,408 2,758 124 363 30,480 212,629
Oiher ravenue 1,222 581 ERER: - 39,002 783,107 2,960,559
Total revenues 17,492,507 8,758,280 7,392 855 220,530 4,891,080 58,755,052
EXPENDITURES:
Currant:
Culture - recraaticn ¥.945.908 - - 1,316,376 4,752 282
Develapment 1,579,575 - - 45,740 1626315
Fire sendices 8,638,166 - - - 166,772 B,E04 938
Ganeral govermmrent 2,908,871 235,202 - - 3,144 173
Highways and sireets 33784979 - - - 43381 3422347
Solice 11,471,418 - - 206,550 11,677 368
Ervireonmental Services 4 457 368 - - - - 4 857 308
Capilal outlzy - 4,066,535 - 9,583,600 3,110,483 16,760,821
Debt service:
Frincipal ratiremeant - 4E5.000 5,987 844 - - B 452 544
interest and fiscal charges - 398,234 3,187 838 185 718 - 2771,
Total expenditures 40,780,411 5,164,974 9,175,482 9,769,318 4,890,282 - €8,780,463
EXCESS [DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPEMDITURES [3,287,304) 3,593,306 {1,782,827) (9,548 TED) 79E {11,025,416)
QJTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers ir S835.873 - 1,936,820 4347428 1,029.922 13,960,841
Transfers aul {949.576) (1,936,820) . (1,079,274} (366,730} '4.331,850)
Sond proceeds - - - 22,500,007 - 22,000,000
Payment to refunding escrow ageni - - i11,356,689) - (11.356,685)
Refunding bonds issl-ed - - 10,562 592 - - 10,562,592
Total other firancing sources (Uses) 5,706,587 (1,936,820) - 1,342,723 25,268,202 583,182 30,843,804
NET CHAMNGE IM FUND BALANCES 2,418,693 1,856,486 (540,104} 15,719,413 663,990 19,848,473
FIUND BALANCES, Beginning of period 12,631,410 11,007,870 1,749,324 24,314 877 7,720,686 £5,424,047
FUND BALANCES, End of period $ 13,050,103 ] 12,664,456 § 1,108,220 40,034,080 & 8,384,655 75,242,525

Tre nates o financial sialements ara an intagral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 3 19,818,478

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

The City uses internal senvice funds fo charge the costs of certain

activities, such as fleet management and information technofogy, to

appropriate functions in cther funds. The assets and [iabilities of

internal service funds are allocated to the governmental activities

on the statement of net position. The effect of this consdlidation is to

increase net position. The entry on the statement of activities reflects

the change for F'Y 2013, which is allocated to governmental activities. 852970

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund statements,

but are shown as increasas in capital assets in the government-wide

financia! statements. The total reflects $21,009.327 in construction in

progress reclassifications. The effect of removing the 2013

capital outlays is to increase net position. 15,080,711

Capital assets contributed by developers to the City are not recorded in the governmental
funds as they do not provide current financial resources but are recognized in the
Staternent of Activities as program revenues, 2210522

Depreciation is not recognized as an expenditure in governmental funds
since it does not reguire the use of current financial resources. The
effect of recerding current year depreciation is 0 decrease net position, (2,688,931)

Some revenues and axpenses reported in the staterment of activities do not require
the use of current financiat resources and therefore are not reported as sither

expenditures or revenues in governmentat funds:

Amortization of bond premiums 16,654
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (65,447}

Current year long-term debt principal payments on contractual cbligation

bonds payable are expenditures in the fund financial statements, bt are shown

as reductions in long term debt in the government-wide financiat statements. 18,745,149
Current year bond proceeds on honds are not shown as

revenue in the government-wide financial statements. [(32.562,582)

The actes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Repayment of bond principal and the payment o escrow in conjunction with the

aavance refunding of debt are reported as expenditures in the fund financial

statements, whereas the government-wide financial statements do not record the

expenditures; rather, it reflects a reduction ta liabilities in the statement of net position. $ 1,083,184

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-aide financial
staterments, whereas in the fund financial statements, the expenditure
is reported when dus. 14,468

Additions to vested sick leave and vacation liabilities are not shown
in the furd firancial statements. The net effect of the current year's
increase is to decrease net position. (533,085)

Annual required contribution for other post employment benefits
are recorded in the government-wide financial statements net of the
the expense recognized on a pay as you go basis. 168,815}

Annual required contribution for pension obligations are recorded in the government-
wide financial statements net of the expense recognized on current year actual
contribution. {9,317}

Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fund financial statements
on the modified accrual basis, but is recognized on the accrual basis in
the government-wide financial statements, {4,126)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 15,809,829
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013 ACTUAL
BUDGETED AMOUNTS BUDGETARY VARIANCE TO
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Property taxes
Current 5 9,820,000 § 10,105,0G0 9,684,33¢ S (420,881
Delingueant 70,000 70,000 44,828 (25,172)
Penaltizs and interest ' 0,000 80,000 79,356 {10,604)
Sales tax 8,863,750 8 863,750 10,007 841 1.144.05%
Franchise taxes 3,756,450 3,796,460 4,471 487 575,027
Licenses and permits 281,500 981,500 1,548,058 568,558
Charges for services 10,560,370 10,500,370 8,290,231 11,210,079
Fines and farfeitures 876,500 876,500 £70,581 {205.919)
Other taxes 208,000 208,000 234 550 26,350
Investmant incame 40,000 40,000 34 511 (5,489}
Miscellareous 402,400 570,385 1,428,525 256,140
Total revenues 35,648,980 36,101,965 37,492,407 1,390,442
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture - recreation 7.990,835 8,159,635 7.914 044 245 891
Devalopment 1,983,186 1,954 220 % 889,138 85,192
Environmental Sarvices 6,252 001 8,257 101 3,000,929 1,256,172
Fire services 8,36661 8,555,031 8,651,518 3593
Generzl governmant 3,807 215 31683,123 2,898,081 257,082
Highways and strests 3,728,239 3,208 024 3,808,023 H
Police services 11,082,151 11,212,055 11,141,068 71.049
Total expenditures 43,030,238 43,309,299 41,400,719 ' 1,908,580
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENLIES
OVER EXPENDITURES {7,381,258) (7,207,334) {3,908,312) 3,289,022
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfars in 6,429,042 &,508,821 &,655,673 145,852
Transfers out (104,553} {799,076} {799.078) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,324,489 5,709,745 5,856,557 146,852
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FIRANCING USES {1,056,759) {1,497,589) 1,948,285 3,445 874
FLUND BALAMNGCES, Beginning of peried 9:025_.?:’@%_ 9.465 549 9,470,237 3,588
FUND BALANCES, End of pericd ] 7,869,080 3 7,969,060 11,418,522 ] 3,449 462
Adjustments to GAAP:
Reverse current year ancumbrances 1,631,482
Record net unreaiized gain on investments Eke]
FUND BAI ANCE - GAAP BASIS, End of patiod 3 13,050,103

The nates 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FROPRIETARY FUNDS
A5 OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

GOVERNMENTAL
VATER HONMAJOR ACTIVITIES
ELECTRIC BERVICES ENTERPRISE FNTERNAL
FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL 3ERVICE FUNDS
ASSETS:
Currant Assseis:
Ca=h and casn eguivaients 3 2938 THE 653,385 3 THIATI 3 © 1589365 2.093 098
Cash anc cash aquivalents - restricted 342,754 263,480 - 12,274 -
Inveslmarts 3.740,788 5,995,656 933,220 G715 2BE3,942
neasiments - restrcled 436,282 2,198,054 - 2554 243 -
Frepaid eLpensas 358,000 1,835,843 2205 845 7400
Assounts receivable:
Services {net of allowance for uncollectibles) 5.456 305 3,560,850 518,763 12.934.814 21,342
COther 1933 204 879 - 5023 945 .
Inventories 23,337 548 - 44 517 3357473 330642
Tolal cument assels 20, 13,552 26,717 B Z,238,088 a9,07¢,322 _ . B118,284
Noneumrant Assats:
Larg-torm rote receivables - 1.083.422 - TR 422 -
Capital agsals:
~and and land rgidts 1,120,807 458355 981,300 2.571.882 214 065
Jislritution system 119,932 482 211,068,037 30,401,627 361,602 167 -
uildings and mprovemenis FA707 3,019,793 £,641,425 19,734 €25 1687727
Machireny, fumiture 2nd sguipmet 2068, B48 445 538 151,527 2,667,061 25,782 652
Consucton in prograss T g =1,82% 546 40, 240 12,233,712 450, 582
Less accumulatad deprecialicn (54 38% 06E {56, 056 2061 012,808,527 102147 BO2Y (168.278.884)
Total capital @asers (nst of
accumuiated deprecistion) 83.084.690 138.566.043 28,607,902 287 651635 9.851,673_
Total noncurent a55e(s 46 084 690 171 02 465 28607 802 288,715 057 9,851,073
TOTAL ABSETS § 109,195,242 197,740,148 $ 30,845,988 5 3377860TD 14,9€7 367
LIABILITIES ANR NET POSITION:
Liabilitios:
Current liabiifes:
ACCOunts payable 5 4.631,348 TEE 8T 3 160,581 ¥ 607,385 % 126,573
Aocried employse benafts REERT 2397 B4l 316,43 56,228
Currem portion ¢f long-lemm debi 2,09%.4971 2,716 80 435,078 5251948 -
Accrued interast 130,996 tE3.621 15,820 300,547 -
Taial current liabifittes paysbie . .
from urrestriciad assels 7063 058 3TAR A4 30,900 11476272 1.182.801
Current liabilifias payatle from restricted assets:
Consiruction ecntrects and retanases payable 1,37 §E5.915 - 580,293 -
Customer deoosits . 778,078 - — - 7Te.0%8 -
Tasar curment Wakiitiss payable
fram resticled assefs TE2452 SEE.918 1538371 o
Taral currest iabiiies 7,852 41 4.328.332 34,000 12,847 643 1 182,801
Mercurrisnt Habilities:
Accruss amployes cenefis 291,238 164,518 41,020 557,183 B 482
Uneamed revenue - - - - -
Long-term dabt 24 B3E 720 29,325 484 ~ 3173008 87.39G, 243 -
Tatal noncurrent facilifias - 25,277 085 29,490,306 oy 23,226,035 57 847 308 81 LB2
Toral ighifities 33,125 466 33,815,838 3,694,833 70,803 035 * 284 PR3
Nat Positlan:
Med of investmient in capilal assets ad 131 406 141 814 236 24523310 230,930 554 4851073
Unrestricted 13,837 277 22110373 1,8035.2534 3,040,786 2E52,031
Tola! nat pasition 76,085,776 183,824,511 Zf.2867.053 266,280,340 13,703,104
TOTAL LJABKATIES AND NET POSITION $ 109,148,242 197,740,149 H 50,848, 585 3 337,785,379 14,9267 3657

The neies Lo the financial stetements sre ar integral part of this statemeant
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for sales and services:
Service charges
Electric
YWyater
Waslewater
Other
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Electric
Water
Depreciation
Utility santracts
Flant management
Ciher
Total operating expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment armings
[onations and grants
interest and fiscal charges
Other
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCONE (.G3S) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributians
Transters in
Transfers out
Total contrbutions ang fransfers

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL MET FOSITION - beginning of penod
RESTATEMENT

TOTAL NET POSITION - heginning of periad, as
restated

TOTAL NET POSITION - end of period

The notes ‘o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GOVERMMENTAL
WATER NONMAJOR ACTMITIES
ELECTRIC SERVICES ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FLUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS
$ - $ - $ - 3 - 3 15785357
53.780,319 - - 3,780,315 .
16 545 938 - 16,545,938 -

- 8.384.470 - 8,384,470 -
563,560 2,313,955 5,112,375 5,389,960 -
54,743,979 27,244,362 5,112,375 87,100,717 15,785,367
7,265,433 - 7,265,433 -

- 7,737,541 - 77AT 541 -
3,473,766 5,146,573 998,445 9,618,783 2,174,353

34,760,711 5,719 601 - 41,480,312 -

- 2,320,108 - 2,320,108 -
- - 4,208,494 4,208,494 15,148,005
45,498,808 21,823,823 5,206,939 72,630,671 17,322,958
9,244,070 5,320,540 (94.564) 14,470,046 (1,537,501)
37,282 80,985 5.045 126,322 28 820

- - 25,589 25,569 -

{1.043.113) (820 540} (168, 783) (2,132,436) -
2,332,837 2,555 280 31,141 4,914 2568 213,498
1,327,006 1,715,735 (104,008) 2,838,733 242,318
10,671,076 7,036,275 (198,572) 17,408,779 {1,295,283)
510,454 2,708,648 1,339,193 4,558,296 £6,445
- 69,108 . 69,108 2 181,587
(7,165,714} (4,415,354) {177,859 111,788,907 (99,779)
[8.685.260) 1,637,577} 1,181,334 {7,61,503) 2,148,253
3,885,816 5,308,698 962,762 10,247,276 852,970
72,619,622 15€,08%,183 28,150,582 257,859,367 12,850,134

[4736,662) (563,370} {126,291) {1,126,323) -
72,182,660 158,525,813 26,024,281 256,733,054 12,850,134
$ 76068776  $ 163,824,511 § 26987053 5 266,580,340 $ 13,703,104
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FPROFRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
GOVERNMENTAL
WATER NONMAJOR ACTIVITIES
ELECTRIC SERVICES ENTERFPRISE INTERNAL
FUND FUND FUNDE TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS
CASH FLOWS FROM GPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Casn received from custamers § 577658 5 20,871.957 3 5,135,489 5 93184202 & 16,163,815
Paymenls \o suppliers 137,376.004; 113,873,808) 13,747 B21) (85,097 431) (12,800,098)
Franchise fees (1,654 910 (794,788 (66,133 {2,555 879} -
Fayments to employees for services {4,054 528) [2,297.21h t502,337) {5 854,085} (1941737}
Met eash provided by oparating activities 14,051,313 13,808,148 219,242 28,676,807 1,221,833
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FIMANCING ACTIVITIES:
~ransfers in - 59,108 - 59,108 2,181,587
Transfers out {7.165.714) {4.415.334) (177 559) 111,788.807 159,779)
Net cash pravided by {used for) noncapital
financing activities (7,195,714} (4,146,228 {177 859} [11,718,798) 2,081,808
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisittan of capital assets (5,874,548} (4,500,0808) {B62.351) {11,245,705) 1,B86,592)
Dorafions and grants - - 25,589 25589 -
Proceeds from issuance of long-ierm debt 2,032,550 2,032,500 - 4,055,000 -
Principaé paid on revenue and certificates of obligation bonds (1,630,753 (2,458,173} (379.249) (4 .466,175}
Inzarast paid on revenue and certificates of chligation bonds (1,042,786} (823,582 $171,538) {2,138,306) -
Bond issuance costs (543,787} (11,8773 (7,087 (862,751} -
Mat cash used for capital and related financing
activities {7,059,374) 15,967,938} {1,295,046) {14,422,358) {1,886,852)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 37,282 80,985 8,045 126,332 28,820
Change in temparary investments 1720530 {1.7971,229) 417 486 (2.074,273) (B&5 ETEY
Net eash provided by (used for) Investing activities {683,248} {1,690,234) 425531 {1,947 951} {836,755}
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (887,023} 1,801,748 {328,026) 686,699 580,094
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year 4,168 615 5,321,127 1,065 198 11,554,941 1,413,004
Cagh and cash aguivalents atend of year 3,281 542 }122875 TITA73 12,141,640 2,093,098
Classified as:
urrent asseis 2,935,795 7,853,385 TITAT3 11,529,266 2,093,058
Restricted asseds 342.75%4 265480 - 612,274 -
Tetal 5 3,281,682 5 8,122,875 ¥ FITATS § 12,141,640 3 2,093,096
Non-cash disclosure
Developer contributions k] 510 454 T 2703643 3 1,339,143 $ 455329% 3 -
Proprietary fransfers to :nternal senvice funds - - - 13,602
Gayernmentai iransfers te internal service funds - - - 52,843
The notes to the financial stafernents &re an integral part of ihis sialement. [continued)
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

GOVERMMENTAL
WATER NONMAJCOR ACTIVITIES
ELECTRIC SERVICES EMTERFRISE INTERNAL
FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL SERVICE FUNDS
COPERATING INCOME {LOSS) 5 9,244 070 3 5,320,540 5 (G4, 564) $ 4,470,046 T (1,537,601
Adjustments to reconcile cperating inccrne (loss) to
cash provided by operating activities:
Depraciation 3273765 5,145,573 GE8 445 9,818,783 2,174,853
Other income 2,332,837 2,555 280 31,141 4,919,258 213,498
increase (decrease) in unearmed revenue (900,089 - - (900,05 -
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (358,000} (52,885) - (450,883) -
Decrease fincrease) in invertories {1,007 ,804% - 7820 (993 854) 21,363
Decrease {increase} in accounts recsivable 164,427 1,072,314 17,562 1,254 308 164 960
Decrgase {increase) in customer deposits {64, 4347) (79,521} - (144,008} -
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable - 61,614 - 51,614 -
lncrease (decrease’ in accoums payable 1,086,663 {198,347; 151 ,665) 746,711 275,243
IMerease (decreasal in accrued employee benefits £3.801 20,548 10,509 94 958 3,917
MNet cash provided by operating activities $  14.051.213 $ 13806148 £ 319.348 % 20 878807 3 1,321,933

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSGITION
AGENCY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Due to other governments
TOTAL LIABILITIES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statementis




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Georgetown, Texas, ("City"}, included in the
accompanying basic financial statements conform to the generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) applicable to state and local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principies. The following notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

A

Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Georgetown was incorporated under the iaws of the State of Texas in 1848 and
operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The City's financial statements include
the accounts of all City operations. Generally accepted accounting principles require all funds
that are controlled by or are dependent on the City Councll to be included in the City’s financial
statements. The reporting entity is the primary government, or the City, and those component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the potential component unit's board and either
the ability to impose its will by the primary government or the possibility that the component unit
will provide a financial benefit or impese a finansial burden on the primary government. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government's
operations and so data from these units are combined with the data of the primary government.
Based upen these considerations, the City's financial statements include the Georgetown
Transportation Enhancement Corporation as a blended compenent unit.  Discretely presented
component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the primary government, and
whose exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misieading or
incomplete. Based upon these considerations, the City’s financial statements include the
Georgetown Econcmic Development Corporation as a discretely presented component unit,

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT

The Georgetown Transportation Enhancement Corporation {GTEC), the City’s 4B economic
development corporation, is a legally separate entity from the City that was created in May 2001
by voters approving an additional sales tax, GTEC is governed by a seven member board
appointed by City Council, of which, four are Council members. The City Council maintains
budgetary control over the corporation. The City Manager serves as the General Manager of the
corporation and the City's Chief Financial Officer acts as the Financial Manager. For financial
reporting purposes, GTEC is presented as a blended component unit within City operations
because its sole purpose is to utilize sales tax revenues for the improvement of the City's
transportation system. The revenues and expenditures for GTEC are accounted for in a general
capital projects fund. The City issues debt on behalf of GTEC in exchange for pledged sales tax
revenue that is transferred to the City to reimburse for debt service related to the bonds. GTEC's
debt is shown in the Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

The Georgetown Economic Development Corporation (GEDCQ) has been included in the
reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit. GEBCQ can not be considered a
blended component unit because the revenues are not only for the benefit of the City. GEDCO
was created by the City in May 2005, under the Texas Development Act of 1979 for the purpose
of prornoting, assisting, and enhancing economic and development activities on behalf of the City.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

It iz funded through voter authorized saies tax. The five member Board, which includes three City
Council members, is appoinfed by and serves at the discretion of the City Council. City Council
approval is required for annual budgets and honded debt issuance. In the event of dissolution,
net assets of GEDCQO shall be converted fo the City. The City accounts for GEDCO as a
discretely presented compenent unit on the government-wide financial statements.

GEDCO is audited as part of the City of Georgetown; however, separately issued unaudited
financial statements are available through the City of Georgetown’s Finance Department.

RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The Mayor and City Council are responsible for appointing a voting majority of the members of
some local boards and commissions, but the City's accountiability for these arganizations does not
extend beyond making the appointments. These entities are the Georgetown Industrial
Development Corporation, Georgetown Hospital Authority, Georgetown Housing Authority, and
Georgetown Higher Education Finance Corporation.

B. Basis of Presentation
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include both government-wide financial statements (based on the
City as a whele) and fund financial statements. Both sets of financial statements classify activities
as either governmental, which are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, or
business-type activities, which rely on fees and charges for support.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide Statement of Activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given program or function is offset by
the program's revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
program. Program revenues inciude 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given pregram and 2} grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Taxes and other ifems not properly included among program ravenues are reported
instead as general revenues. The effect of interfund activity within the governmental and
business-type activities columns has been removed from these statements.

Fund financial statements. The City segregates fransaclions refated to certain functions or
activities in separate funds In order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legai
compliance. Each fund is considered a separate accounting entity and the operations of each
fund are accounted for using a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
tiabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for
which they are 1o be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Separate
stalements are presented for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial staterments. These statements
present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major
funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

The government wide focus is on the sustainabitity of the City as an entity and the change in net

financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal pericd. The focus of the fund financial
statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories.
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Each presentation provides a different focus, which allows the reader to compare and analyze the
information tc enhance the usefulness of the statements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Governmental Funds are those funds through which moest governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds (in the fund financial statements) is on
the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources and include the General Fund,
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Prejects Fund. The individual funds are
described as follows:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used {o
account for alt financial resources except those required o be accounted for in another fund.

Georgetown Transportafion Enhancement Corporation {(GTEG) — This capital projects fund is
used to account for the City's 4B Corporation activities, created to administer the voter
approved Y2 cent sales tax for transportation improvements that aid in economic
deveiopment efforts.

Debf Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

General Capital Projects Fund — This capital projects fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of parks, buildings, and other
facilities. Such resources are derived from proceeds of general obligation bonds or other
sources of revenue specifically set aside for capital projects.

Non-major Governmental Funds

Special Ravenue Funds - The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
restricted {0 expenditures for specified purposes.

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

The Proprietary Fund Types are used to account for the City's organization and activities which
are similar fo those often found in the private sector. These funds are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises — where the infent of the City is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation} of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis ke financed or recovered mainly through user charges; or where the governing
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earmned, expenses incurred and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability
or other purposes.

Major Proprietary Funds

Eleclric Fund - This fund accounis for the City's electric utility, including operations,
maintenance of the infrastructure and expansion of the system within the City's service
ferritory.
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Water Services Fund - This fund accounts for the City's water, sewer and waler reuse
systems, including operations, contracted maintenance, internal maintenance, expansion of
the system within the City's service territory and the costs of environmental mandates that
arise.

Non-major Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - The funds that are operated as enterprise funds within the City but are not
considered major funds are the Stormwater Drainage and Airport Funds,

Intermnal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds, which provide services primarily to
other funds of the government, are presented in the summary form as part of the proprietary
fund financial statements. The financial statements of the internal service funds are
aflecataed in the governmental column when presented at the government-wide level,
Varicus operations are accounted for as internal service funds, such as cperational cosis
associated with automobile and heavy equipment owned by the City and made available fo
various departments, costs related to maintaining and repairing City owned facilities,
operational costs associated with the City's computer equipment within varicus depariments,
as well as jointly shared administrative departments.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary funds principal on-going operations.
Cperating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personnet and contractual
services, supplies and depreciation on capifal assets.  All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE — AGENCY FUNDS

The City's fiduciary fund is presented in the fund financfal statements by type. Since by dafinition,
these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (cafeteria plan participants, local
grantees, public improvement district, etc.) and cannoct be used to address activities or obligations
of the government, these funds are not incorporated in the governmeni-wids statements.

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporiing treatmeni applied o a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Measurement focus refers tc what is being measured and basis of
accounting refers to timing of revenue and expenditure recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
agency fund also uses the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement
focus means all asseis and liabilities {whether current or non-current) are included on the
statement of net position and the operating statements present increases {revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned, including unbilled utility services which are accrued. Expenses are
recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

85



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013

Governmental fupd financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. With
this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases {i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assels.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers all
revenuas available if they are collected within sixty (60) days after year-end. Expenditures are
recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for principal and
interest on general long-term debt, which are recorded when due, and compensated absences,
which are recorded when payable from current available financial resources.

Ad valorem, sales, hotel, and franchise tax revenues recorded in the Governmental Fund Types
are recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept. Licenses and permits, charges for
services, fines and ferfeitures, and miscellanecus revenues (except earnings on investmenis} are
recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until
actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and
availabfe.

C. Budgets

At least 30 days prior to the end of each fiscal year, the City Manager submits a proposed budget
presenting a complete financial plan for the ensuing fiscal year 1o the City Council {the Council).
Public hearings are conducted, at which time all interested persons' comments concerning the
budget are heard. The budget must be legally adopted by the Council through passage of an
ordinance no later than the twenty-seventh day of the last month of the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
Governmental and Proprietary Fund Types. Budgets for all funds were legaily adopted for the
period. Budgetary control is exercised at the division level.  All budgets are prepared on the
budgetary basis, recognizing encumbrances ouistanding at year-end as expenditures against that
year's appropriaticn. These encumbrances are reconciled to generally accepted accounting
principles where appropriate.

The Council may transfer any unencumbered appropriation balance or portion thereof from acne
division, office, department or agency to another at any time. The City Manager has authority,
without Council approval, to transfer appropriation balances from one expenditure account to
another within a single division, office, department, or agency of the City; however, unbudgeted
transfers between funds are prohibited.

The Ceouncil may authorize by a majority plus one vote, an emergency expenditure as an
amendment to the original budgetf, but only in a case of grave public necessity, to meet an
unusual and unforeseen condition that could not have been included in the original budget
through the use of reasonable, diligent thought and attention.
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Budget amounts are as originally adopted, or as fransferred pursuant fo authorization of the City
Manager or amended by the City Councit. Individual amendmenis were not material in relation to
the original appropriations, with the exception of amendments related to capital projects and grant
expenditures, whose actual costs were unknown when the budget was adopted. Lnencumbered
appropriations lapse each year at September 30

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual-
General Fund presents a comparison of budgetary data to actual results. The General Fund
utilizes the same basis of accounting for both budgetary purposes and actual resulfs, except for
the effect of encumbrances and unrealized investment gains and losses, which are reconciled to
the actual results for this comparison.

E. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed as an extension of formal budgetary control in all
governamental and proprietary funds. Encumbrance accounting is a& process whereby purchase
orders, contracts and other commitments for the expending of monies are recorded in order to
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. Outstanding year-end encumbrances are
reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because
the commitments are carried forward into the subsequent fiscal year,

F. Cash and Investments

For cash flow purposes, cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits, certificates of
deposits and deposits in authorized investment pools.

The operating cash balances from all funds are consolidated in pocled cash and investment
accounts. Excess pooled balances are invested in U.S. Treasury securities, U.8. Government
agency securities, fully collateralized money market funds and local government investment
pools. Maturities on all investments are consistent with the City's cash flow requirements,
investments are stated at fair value, or markeat price as of September 30, 2013, Interest eamings
are than allocated fo each fund based on average monthly pocled equity balances. Separate
cash and investment accounts are maintained for restricted cash such as debt service and bond
proceads reserved for future construction.

(. Restricted Assets
Certain cash and investments are restricted by various legal and contractual obligations. Included
in the restricted assets are capital recovery fees (impact fees) restricted by law for fuiure capital

improvements and customer deposits.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

H. Inventories and Prepaids
Inventories consist of electric materials, jet fuel, office and other supplies valued at the weighted

average cost method and are recognized as expenditures or expenses when used. The prepaid
items consist of required payments made fo a vendor for a contract in the following fiscal year.
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I.  interfund Receivables and Payables

Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and
payable accounts. Negative balances incurred in pooled cash at year-end are treated as interfund
receivables of the Water Services Fund and interfund payables of the deficit fund.

J.  Interfund Transactions

All legally authorized transfers have been appropriately presented as interfund transfers and are
included in the fund financial statements of both Governmental and Proprietary Fund Types. As a
general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

K. Intergovernmental Revenues

Intergovernmental revenues represent entitlements and shared revenues which are accounted for
within the fund financed. Such revenues, received for purposes normally financed through the
general government, are accounted for within the Special Revenue Funds.

L. Accrued Employee Benefits

All employees may accumulate a maximum of two times their annual vacation, up to a cap of 240
hours, or 30 days paid upon termination. Upon termination, non-Civil Service employees will not
receive payment of sick leave, unless they have a balance that originated prior to October 1,
2004, These employees were grandfathered under the old policy of receiving payment for one-
half of their balance of sick leave up to 60 days at the rafe of pay when the hours were banked.
Upon termination, Civili Service employees are paid for the entire halance of their Civil Service
sick leave earned after Cctober 30, 2003 or Ocfober 30, 2006 (ithe effective date of the
regulations in the City for fire civil service and police civil service employees, respectively), up to a
maximum of 90 days. Civil Service employees hired prior to the effective date of the adoption of
Civil Service regulations are also eligible under city policy to receive payment for one-half of their
sick leave up to 60 days. Sick leave in excess of the maximums for both regular and Civil Service
employeas is not paid upon termination, but will be paid only upon illness while in the employ of
the City.

Accumulated vacation and sick leave, which is expected fo be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources, is reported as expenditure and a fund liahility of the governmental
fund that will pay if. Amounts of accumulated vacation leave within governmental funds that are
not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reporied as 3
long-term lability on the statement of net position. No expenditure is reported for these amounts
in the fund financial statements unless the benefits have matured, i.e. unused reimbursable leave
still outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement. Accumulated vacation and
sick leave of proprietary fund types are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue {0 employees.

Net pension obligation (NPQ) is recorded as an accrued employaé benefit liability in the
government-wide financials and the proprietary fund statements. The NPO is eguat to the amount
that the annual required contribution for the retirement plan, with Texas Municipal Retirement
System, exceeds the actual contribution on a cumulative basis.
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M. Capitai Assets

Capitat Assets other than Streets & Drainage:

Capitat assets, which include property, plant, eguipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the applicable governmental or business-type aclivities column in the government-wide financial
statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. All capttal assets are valued
at their historical cost ar estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
assets are valued at their fair value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded
as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $5,000 or more and
an expected useful life of over one year.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
capitalized. Interest of $345,449 was capitalized in enterprise funds during the 2013 fiscal year.

Depreciation for assets not following the medified approach is computed using the straight-line
method on the composite assets based upon the estimated useful lives as follows:

Distribution systems 25-50 years
Buildings and improvements 10-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years

The City records capital contributions to proprietary funds as revenue. Total capital contributions
to the enterprise funds in fiscal year 2013 were 34,558,286 and $66,445 in the internal service

funds. Confributed capital is not recorded for governmental type funds, but is recognized as
having a value of $3,000,248.

Capital Assets - Streets & Drainage:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 provides for an alternative
approach to depreciation for measuring the value of infrastructure assets and the related costs
incurred to maintain their service life at a locally established minimum standard. In crder to adopt
this alternative method, the City must use an asset management system, and must determine if
the minimum standards are being maintained. This measurement occurs every three years at a
minimum. The City has elected to use this alternative method for reporting its street infrastructure
assets. The City confracted with the engineering firm of Kasherg, Patrick and Associates to
complete pavement condition surveys for the City’s street network during 2011,

The City uses the CarteGraph PavementView Pavement Management Information System to

track the condition levels of each of the street sections. The entire sireets inventory is captured
in the system and the condition of the pavement is based on the following factors:
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Q. Risk Financing Activity

The City of Georgetown is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
During fiscal year 2013, the City purchased general liability and property insurance from Texas
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Poal (TML-IRP). The City pays an annual premium to
TML-IRP for such coverage. TML-IRP purchases reinsurance and the City does not retain risks
of loss exceeding deductibles. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past
three years.

The workers compensation plan is administerad and paid through the Texas Municipal League-
Intergovernmental Risk Peol (TML-IRP). Under this ptan, the City does not retain risks of loss
exceeding the deductibles. TML-IRP also brokers the City's Aviation and Underground Storage
Tank Pallution liability insurance, as well as, the canine and surgical vet coverage. The City does
not retain the risks of loss exceeding the deductibles.

R. Credit Risk

Financial investments which potentially subject the City to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash, investments and accounts receivable. At September 30, 2013, there was not
a significant risk arising from cash, investments or accounts receivable.

S. Nature and Purpose of Reservatlions and Designation of Fund Equity

The City's Fund Balance is the accumulated difference between assets and liabiities within
governmental funds, and it allows the City to meet iis contractual obligations, fund disaster or
emergency costs, provide cash flow for timing purposes and fund non-recurring expenses
appropriated by City Council. The City Council has adopted a financial standard to maintamn a
General Fund minimum balance of 90 days of budgeted on-going expenditures and 75 days city-
wide. This policy establishes limitations on the purposes for which Fund Balances can be used in
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 54.

The City’'s Fund Balance reporis five components:

Non-spendable Fund Balance — includes inherently non-spendable assets that will never convert
to cash, as well as, assets that will not convert o cash soon enough to affect the current financial
period. Asseis included in this category are prepaid items, inventory and non-financial assets
held for resale.

Restricted Fund Balance — represents the portion of fund balance that is restricted to specific
purposas that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributers, laws or regulations of
other governments, such as hotel/motel tax and bond proceeds.

Committed Fund Balance — describes the portion of fund balance that can only be used for
specific purposes with constraints imposed by the formal action of the City Council's adoption of
an ordinance, and remains hinding unless the City Council removes the limitation.

Assigned Fund Balance — is that portion of fund balance that reflects the City's infended use for a
specific purpose but is neither restricted nor committed. Assigned fund balances are determined
by City management based on Councll direction, in accordance with our financial policies
adopted by resolution.

Unassigned Fund Balance — represents funds that cannot be properly classified in one of the
otiher four categories

i1



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

GEORGETOWN
TRANSPORTATION GENERAL NONMAJOR TOTAL
EMHANCEMENT DEBT CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL GORPORATION SERVICE PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
Fund Balance:
Nonspandable
Inventory 3 186087 & - 3 - 3 - ] - 3 18,687
Spendabie
Reslricted for:
Dabt service - - 1,108,220 - 1,105,220
Bond funds - - - 15,438,897 - 15,438,397
Hotelimote| tax - - - 515,525 515,828
Street marnterianca tax - 4,957,212 4,957,212
Pubtic safety - 188,072 188,072
Grants - 4,508 4,508
Othér purposas - 67 543 §7.543
Committed for;
Contingency TF.A00.000 - 7,400,000
Other capital projects - 12,292,345 - - - 12,292,845
Nonmajor funds - - - - 2174358 2474 388
Assignad to:
Encumbrances 1,631,482 I7ENM - 24,5958 183 A77 428 27,075,714
Unassigned 3,993,824 - - - - 3,899 524
Total fund balance 3 13,060,103  § 12,664,456 5 1,100,220  § 40,034,090 s 3,384,656 5 75,243,525

T. Deferred Outflows!/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and or balance sheef will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies fo a
future period(s) and g will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The City has only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred
charge on refunding reparted in the governmenti-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge
on refunded debt results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
refunded or refunding debt,

n addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. Fhis separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, reprasents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period{s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time.
The government has only cne type of #em, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting, which qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmentiat funds balance sheet. The amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property tax revenue.

L}, Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets, liahilities and respective deferred outflow
or inflows of resources. Net investments in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and
the outstanding balances of ahy borrowing spent for that acquisition, consfruction o
improvements of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed an their use either through (1) the enabling legislation adopted by the City, (2) through
external restrictions imposed by grantars, or (3) laws or regulations of other governments,
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

For cash flow purposes, cash and {emperary investmenis consist of demand deposits, cerificates of
deposits, and authorized investment pools. The operating cash balance from all funds is consolidated
in pocled cash and investment accounts. Excess pooled balances are invested in U.S. Treasury
securities, U.S. Government agency securities, fully collateralized money market funds and local
government investment pocols. Maturiies on all investmenis are consistent with the City's cash flow
requirements. Investments are recorded at cost. interest earnings are allocated to each fund based
on average monthly pooled equity balances. Separate cash and investment accounts are maintained
for restricted cash such as debt service, utility debt reserves, and bond proceeds reserved for future
construction.

The investmeni policies of the City are governed by State statutes and a City Council adopted
Investment Policy. Major provisions of the City's investment policy include: responsibility for
investments, autharized investments, security dealer selection and qualifying procedures, safekeeping
and custodial procedures, statement of investiment objectives, and investment reporting requirements.

DEPOSITS

Texas Statutes require that all bank deposits be insured or fully collateralized by the U.&. government
obligations or obligations of the State of Texas and its agencies. Market value of the colfateral pledged
must equal at least 102% of the bank deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’'s bank deposits was $8,663,210 and the bank balances
were $7,986,704 all of which were entirely covered by Federal depository insurance or by collateral
held by the City's agent bank in the City's name. The City's discretely presented component unit had a
carrying amount of negative $1,114,325 at year end, which is offset by daily hquidity deposits held in
Texstar. Bank balances were a positive 34 552,543, In addition, the City's Cerlificates of Deposils of
$29,811,075 are insured or fully collateralized in accordance with Texas statutes as described above.

In order to maximize interest earnings, the City ulilizes a controlled disbursement account, which
allows the City to deposit only as much money as needed to fund checks presented each day.

INVESTMENTS

The City is authorized to invest in certificates of deposit, direct obligations of the U.S. government, U.S.
government agency securities, fully collateralized direct repurchase agreements, no-load money
market funds whose portfolios meei the City's investment requirements, and in gqualified local
government investment pools as approved by the City Council.

Market Risk - Market risk is the potential for a decline in market value due fo rising interest rates. In
compliance with the City's [nvestment Policy, as of September 30, 2013, the City minimized the market
risk in the porifolic by limiting the weighted average maturity of security types to no longer than two
years; structuring the investment portfolio so that securities matured fo meet cash reguirements for
ongoing operations and capital improvement projects; monitoring credit ratings of portfolio positions to
assure compliance with rating requirements imposed by the Public Funds Investment Act, and
investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities and similar government investment pools.
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The City's investments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2013, are:

Prmary Government

Fair Weighted Average
Valua Waturity {days}
fnvestments
Certificates of Deposit $ 28,811,076 [<i]
Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) 11,855,814 1
Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR) 17,510,757 1
Viewnoint Bank Money Market 162 600 1
Comerica Bank Money Market 8,686,176 1
Scouthside Bank Money Market 10,037,708 1
BBVA Compass Bank Money Market 18,023,412 1
Total Fair Value of invesiments: 3 95 987 543
Portfolio welghted average maturity: 70
Carrying Amount - Demand Deposits $ 8,563,210
Totaf Cash & Ihvegiments: 5 104,550,753

Component Unit

Fair Weighted Average
\alue Maturity (days)
fnvestments
Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR) 8 3,550,493 1
Comerica Bank Money Market 1,002,050 1
Total Fair Value of investmenis; 3 4 552 543
Forifolio weighted average maturiy: 1
Carrying Amount - Damand Deposits 5 1.114 325}
Total Cash & Invesiments: 8 3,438,218

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the possibility that the issuer of a security will fail fo make timely payments
of interest or principal. In general, the lower the credit guality of a security, the higher the yield, with all
other factors being equal. In compliance with the City's Investment Policy, as of September 30, 2013,
the City minimized credit risk losses due to default of security issuer or backer by limiting investments
to the safest types of securities; pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries,
and advisors with which the City will do business; and diversifying the investment porifolic so that
potential losses on individual securities were minimized. Al the City's purchased investments in U.S.
Agencies were rafed AAA, AAA, and Aaa by Standard & Poors, Fitch and Moody's respectively.

For short-term liquidity requirements, the City primarily utilizes the Texas Short Term Asset Reserve
Program (TexSTAR}. JPMorgan Fleming Asset Management, Inc. and First Southwest Asset
Management, Inc. serve as co-administrators under an agreement with the TexSTAR board of
directors to provide investment and participant services for this peol.  JPMorgan Chase Bank or is
subsidiary J.P. Morgan Investor Services Co. provides the custodial, transfer agency, fund accounting,
and depository services for this pool.

The City also maintains an account with the Texas Local Government Investment Pocl {TexPoal).

Under the TexPool Participation Agreement, administrative and investment services fo TexPoo! are
provided by Federated Investors, Inc. through an agreement with the State of Texas Comptroller of
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Public Accounts. The State of Texas Comptroller of Pubiic Accounts is the sole officer, director, and
shareholder of the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company authorized te operate TexPool.

At year end, balances in TexSTAR and TexPool were rated AAAmM by Standard & Peoor's. TexSTAR
and TexPool operate on & §1 net asset value basis. In order to maintain a stable $1 price of the fund,
the poocts will sell portfolio holdings if the ratio of the fair value of the portfolio divided by the bock value
of the portfolio is less than 0.995 or greater than 1.005. The pools are stated at their fair value.

During 2013, the City realized no gains or [osses from the sale of investments, as the City's investment
strategy is to invest to maturity. The City recognized a net increase in the fair value of investments held
at year-end of $2,503.

3. TAXES

Property Taxes - Property is appraised and a lien on such property becomes enforceable as of
January 1st of each year. Taxes are levied on and payable the following October 1st. Taxes become
delinguent February 1st of the following year and are subject to interest and penalty charges. Under
an agreement which began August 1, 2000, Williamson County Tax Cffice coliects the City's taxes. In
the fund financial staternents, City property tax revenues are recognized when levied o the extent that
they are collectad in the current year. Taxes collected prior to the levy date to which they apply are
recorded as unearned revenues and recognized as revenue of the period to which they apply. All
collections from prior year levies are considered delinquent tax revenue for reporting purposes in the
vear collected. The allowance for uncollectible faxes at September 30, 2013 was $8,621.

The City is permitted by the State of Texas to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation
for general government services and for the payment of principal and interest an general long-term
debt. The combined current tax rate to finance general governmeant services, including debt service for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, was $.4100 per $100 of assessad valuation.

The Williamson Central Appraisal District (Appraisal District) is responsible for the recording and
appraisal of property for all taxing units in Williamson County. The Appraisal District is required to
assess property at 100% of its appraised value. Real property must be reappraised at laast every four
years. The City may, at ifs own expense, require annual reviews by the Appraisal District through
various appeals and, if necessary, lagal action. Under this system, if the rate, excluding tax rates for
bonds and other contractual cbligations adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the
previous year by more than 8%, qualified voters of the City may petition for an election o determine
whether 1o limit the tax rate to an increase of no more than 8%.

In September 2004, voters approved an initiative to freeze property taxes for homeowners over the
age of 85 or disabled. This measure mirrors the State of Texas Constitutional Amendment Proposition
13, which passed overwhelmingly statewide in 2003. "Prop 13" gives local governments the option of
“freezing” taxes for the elderly and disabled.

Sales Taxes - The City has adopted the provisions of Article 1066C, Vernon's Texas Civil Statutes, as
amended, which grant the City the power to impose and levy a 1% Local Sales and Use Tax within the
City. Proceeds of the tax are credited to the General Fund except for sales taxes generated at the
airport which are credited to the Airport (Enterprise} Fund. Collections and enforcements are effected
through the offices of the Comptroller of Public Accounts, State of Texas, who remits {0 the City
monthly the proceeds of the tax, after deduction of a 2% service fee.
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On October 1, 20601, the City began collecting an additional %% cent sales tax for its component unit,
GTEC, to fund transportation improvements that promote economic development. These funds are
reported in the GTEC General Capital Projects Fund, a blended component unit of the City.

On April 1, 2003, the City began collecting an additional ¥4 cent sales tax In accordance with Texas
House Bill 445 to fund maintenance on sireets that were in existence at the time the sales tax was
adopted by the voters. In November 2010, the citizens readopted this Y4 cent sales tax option. The
sunset provision will expire in March 2015. These funds are reported in the Streets Special Revenue
Fund.

On October 1, 2005, the City began collecting an additional 1/8 cent sales tax in accordance with the
Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979, Ardicle 5190.6, Section 4A Texas Revised Civil Statues
for the prometicn and development of new and expanded business enterprises. This sales tax is
administered through the Georgetown Economic Development Corporation {GEDCO), a legally
separate entity from the City. GEDCO is reported as a discretely presented component unit of the
City.

On October 1, 2005, the City began collecting an additional 1/8 cent sales tax to be used toward the
reduction of ad valorem property taxes. Proceeds are credited to the City's General Fund.

4. TRANSFERS

TRAMSFERS IN

Governmentzl Funds n Erterprise Funds
Wajor Furkds Monmajof Funds Ma)or Funds Normiajor Funds
Gen. Capite Soccd Intemal Mormajor TCTAL
Generd Fund| Detdt Senice | Proecls Fevenue Seniced Elaetic Walzer Erfenarise Fuswds | | TRAKNSFERS OUT
Governrmerdal Funds
Maor Furds
T {enem furd §  331450|| 5 S06B49) 5 3E07AY $ S48, 076
R GTEC § 1836 ) 3 1,534,520
A o copitd proecls 485 {73 &5, 151 |3 4,078,224
A
N |Memrrew Euds
g Specid rewnnnfonds (SRFS) || 8 48730 320,000 |3 365,730
F Intermal senics fnds 79,770 20,000 3 93,770
E
R |(Erterprise Funds
5 (Maorfinds
Elactric 4,171,861 2,007 873 048, 772 3 BRI 3 7195714
Viler sericss 200875 2007 973 204, 453 § 4,415,314
T [Nonvrejor fnds
Normajor enlemese nds 154,428 21,431 5 ¥, 653
TOTAL TRANSFERS K 5 56556735 1,935,800 5 4,3ar4z8|| s 1029922 § 2184587 § s es0e||s s w205
elimi 1 in Go ri-wide statements: § 4,500,737

NetTrersfers: $ 11,7137

The net transfers between the governmental types and business types fotal $11,718,799. Per the
City's fiscal and budgetary policy, utility operations transfer seven percent of gross billings for utility
services to the General fund as a payment of the profits of the fund or a return on investment. Other
types of fransfers include grant maiching, fire hydrant testing, equipment purchases and capital project
funding.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2013 was as follows;

Balance Deletions Balance
083012 Additions & Transfers Qr3gi13

Governmental activities:
Capital assets nof being depreciated

Land 3 8,441,015 3 1,413,685 3 5 2 854,700

Streets 143,211,246 16,135,122 - 158,345 368

Construction in progress 22,887 835 14,721,478 121,008,327) 16,589, 986
Taotal capital assets not being deprecrated 174,540 096 32270285 121,009,327) 185,801,064
Capital assets being depreciated

Equipment 31,847 373 2 317,835 (723,336} 33,441,873

Buiidings 58,128,979 85,733 - 3,215, 712

Improvements 33 250,475 5,878,651 - A8,829 126
Totat capital assets being depreciated 121,226,827 7,583,220 {723,238 128,488 711
Less scoumutaled depraciation for

Equipment {21,601,927) {2,484 890 F02.727 {23,384,088)

Buildings (9,456,536) {1,247 464} - {10,704,000)

Imprenements {11,187 518) {1,141 528) - §12,320,046)
Total accumulated deprecization {42, 245,975) (4 873.884) 02727 (46,417,132)
Total capital assets being depreciated, nat 78,080,852 3,109,336 {20.609) 82,069,579
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 253,520,948 ] 35,%79.521 ¥ (21,029 958} 3 267,870,633
Electric acfivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 3 1,120,807 s - 3 - S 1,120,807

Construction in prograss 6,668,554 5,858,182 {12,264, 860} 271,916
Total capital assets not being depreciated 7 735,401 5,888,182 {12,254 880} 1,392 723
Capital assels befng depreciafed

Equipment 1,944,147 124,699 2,068,845

Buildings TATOY - - 73,707

Improvements 107,275,502 510,455 12,146,527 115,932 484
Total capital assets being depreciated 108,243,356 635,154 12,146,527 22,075,037
Less accumulated depreciafion for

Equipment {688,410} {95,768 (754,179}

B uildings {30,366) {4,110) (34,478)

Improverments (30,190,528) (3,373.886) (33,564,414}
Total accumutated depreciation (30,809,304} [3,473,765) (34,383,063}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 78,364,052 (2,838,811) 12,148,527 87,601,968
Elactric activities capital assets, net 8 86,173,453 3 3,029,571 $ (118,333) 3 86,084,681

Schedule continued on naxt page
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Balance Ceietions Balance
08,3012 Additions & Transfers 913013

Water services activities:
Capital assels nat being deprecialed

Land b3 465,555 - 3 - 459 355

Construction in progress 16, 198,338 4,832 518 (3,209,310) 11,821,545
Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,667 693 4,832,518 {9,209,210) 12,330 8M
Capital assefs baing depreciafed

Equipment 417,118 28,470 - 446,580

Buildings 3,018,793 - - 3,019,783

Imprevements 199,603,280 2708 645 5,755,129 211,068,057
Total capital assets baing depreciated 203,040,191 2,738,118 5,756,120 214,634,438
{es5 scoumulated depreciation for

Equipment {298,253) {28,116} - (226,369}

Buildings {1,723,870) (93,477} - {1,817 447

Improwvements 49, 787,500) {5,034, 580) (54,812 480}
Tatal accumulated depreciation (51,80%.723) {5,146, 573) (56,5568 296
Total capital assefs being depreciated, net 151,230 458 {2,408 455) - 157,678,142
Water services activities capital assets, net $ 167,858,161 2,524,063 3 (9,208,310) 168,568,043
Other nonmajor business type activities:
Capital asseis nof being depreciafed

Land k] 981,500 - 3 - 581,500

Construction in prograss 491 537 788,523 11,249 810) 40,250
Total caprtal assets not being depreciatsd 1,473,037 798,523 {1,249 810) 1,021,750
Capifal assats being dapreciated

Equipment 151,627 - - 151,627

Buildings 3,356,218 - - 3,856,218

Irprovements 33,734,003 1,403 021 1,249,010 36,386,834
Total capital assets being dapraciated 37,741,848 1,403,021 1,249,810 40,394 G739
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Equipmant {158.885) {1,460) - {160,245}

Buildings (2,549,517} [124,819) - (2,674,236}

Improwements {9,101.630) [872,166] - 9,073, 546Y
Telal accumulated depracialion {11,810,082} (993, 445) - (12,808,527}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 25,831,766 1,203,089 - 27,588,152
Other nonmajor business-type activities

capital assots, net K] 27 404,803 2,001 622 $ {1,249, 210% 28,607 902
Total Business-type activities:
Capital assats not being depraciated

Land ] 2,571,662 - % - 2,571,882

Construction in prograss 23,358,469 11,699,223 (22,723,960) 12,233,7%2
Total capital assets not being depreciated 25,830,131 14,568 223 (22,723,980} 14,805,374
Capital assets being deprecieted

Equipment 2,512,892 154,164 - 2,E67.061

Buildings 6,549.718% - - 6,040,718

lmproemeants 240,612 TBS 4,622,124 22,152,458 367,387,375
Totak capital assets being depreciated 350,075,335 4,776 293 22,152,468 EF7, 004,154
Less accumulated depreciation for

Equipment {1,145,548) (125,345} - {1,270,693)

Buildings 4,303,853 (222, 408) {4,526,258)

Improwameants (89.075,708) {9.271.032% (98,350,740
Tatak accumulated depraciation (94,529,108) {9 B1B.783) - {104,147 522}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 255,545,286 {4.842.4380} 22,152,468 272,856,262
Total businessdype activities capital assets, net & 281:478,4‘17 5.758,733 3 (571,574} 287,661,656
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Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

Culture-recreation $ 589,650
Dewelopment 16,832
Environmental 874
Fire 125,183
General government 1,415,512
Highways & streets 348,206
Police : 201,674
Internal sendce funds 2,174,853
Total depreciation expense
governmental activities $ 4,873,884

Business-type activities:

Electric 5 3,473,785

Water services 5,146,573

Nonmajor 098,445
Total depreciation expense

businesstype activities $  9618,783

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
Invested in capital assets {net of related debt}
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 8 267,870,633 5 287,661,636 $ 555,532,269
Less long-term debt (125,693,088) (58,577,161) (188,335,249)
Add unspent bond proceeds 32,620,560 1,855,079 37,873,223
Net long-term debt {93,072,628) (56,722,082) {150,482 026}
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) $ 174,798,105 $ 230,939,554 $ 405,070,243
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LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Overview

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2013:

Balance Batance
September 30, September 30, Due within
2012 Additions Retirements 2013 ane year
Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds % 100,358 6864 $32.562 592 $ (16,281 149) $ 116,638,107 § 7.083052
{payable from tax pledge}
Premiums 116,645 - {16,664) 99,951 15,684
Sales tax revenue bonds 9,420,000 - {485,000} 8,855 000 485,000
Compensated absences 3.235161 1,564 440 {1.021,838) 3777763 1,479.445
Net pension obligation 1,265 088 9,317 - 1,274,403 -
Cther Post Employment Benefits 361,220 98 818 - 480,039
Arbifrage rebate payable 14,650 - - 14,6850
Total governmenial aclivities 114,768,426 34,235,168 (17,784,651 131,219,943 8,764,151
Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds 51,425,000 - {3,970,000) 47,455,000 4,125,000
Premiums 687,649 - (52,381) 635,268 -
Compensated absences 682 339 370,003 {277.088) 775,254 318,381
Net pension obligation 138,265 2,045 - 140,310 -
General obligation bonds 11.618,338 4 507 408 {1.573.851) 14,551 893 1,126,948
{payable from airport, siomnwater
and electric revenuas}
Total business-type aclivilies 64,551,589 4 879 456 (5,873,320} 63,557 725 5,570,329
TOTAL L.ONG-TERM DEBT $179,321,015 % 39,114,624 $ {23,657 971} $ 194,777,668 $14,334,490

Liabilities for compensated absences, net pension obligation and other post employment benefits that
are included in governmental activities are expended primarily in the General Fund as benefits are used

by the employees.

At September 30, 2013, there was $61,355 000 of authorized but unissued general obligation bonds.
There are no authorized but unissued revenue bonds.

ordinances.
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Fiscal
Year Ending Governmedatal Businesstype Total
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principat Interest

24 3 7,568,053 3 4 460,303 & 5,251,948 3 2,410,375 3 12,820,001 % 5,870,678
2015 7,579,158 4,193,638 5,605,842 2,195,908 13,285,000 £,389,606
2016 7,983,557 3,834,813 4,611,443 2,001,934 12,575,000 5,836,747
2017 & 0Bz2,095 3,628,430 4,762,905 1,839,115 12,845,000 5,467 665
2018 7,618,719 3,364,520 4,955 281 1,675,168 12,575,000 5,040,093

2019-2023 36,385,043 13,047 624 20,329,961 5,793,497 56,815,004 18,841,121

2024-2028 30,380,486 5,510.8610 14,179,536 2,045,748 44,560,001 B.555,356

2028-2033 13,430,021 2,236,791 2,409,978 163,981 15,839,059 2,402 772

2034-2037 6,434,005 544 360 - - 6,484 985 544 368

$ 125,583,107 $ 41821628 §  B2.008.893 $ 18127724 157,800,000 § 59,949,352

B. General Obligation Debt

A summary of Tax-Supported General Obligation Debt autstanding at September 30, 2013 follows;

34,130,000, 2005 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
instaliments through August 15, 2025; interest at 3% to 4.5% {porticn included
below) 3 355,000

514,080,165, 2005 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2020; interest at 3% to 4.75% (portion included
below) 4.760,175

$7,100,000, 2005A General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
instaliments through August 15, 2025; interest at 3.5% to 4.75% 675,000

$4,135,000, 2006 Combination tax & revenue certificates of chligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2026; interest at 4% fo 4.625% (portion included
below) 2,255,000

$13,070,000, 2007 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2027; interest at 4% to 4.625% (portion inciuded
below) 10,392,472

$8,715,000, 2007 Combination tax & revenue ceriificates of obiigation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2027, interest at 4% 10 4.5% 5,055,000

$4.395,000, 2008 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2028; interest at 3.5% to 4.625% (portion includad
below) 2882275

$5,400,000, 2008 Combination tax & revenue cerdificates of obligation due in annual
installments threugh August 15, 2029; interest at 3% {o 5% (portion included below) 4,655,000
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$2,433 565, 2009 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2029; inferest at 2% to 4.5% (portion included
below) 1,676,835

$2,487,351, 2010 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2029; interest at 1.75% to 4.15% (pertion included
below) 2,275,000

$1,370,000, 2010 General obligation bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2029, interest at 3% to 4.5% 1,240,000

$11,930,000, 2010A General obligation bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2030; interest at 2% to 3.5% 11,335,000

$9,720,000, 2011 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2031; interest at 2% to 4% 8,805,000

$12,500,000, 2012 General obligation bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2037; interast at 1.5% 10 3.625% 12,500,000

$1,650,000, 2012 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annuat
installments through August 15, 2032; interest at 1.5% to 3.375% (portion included
below) 1,532,500

$1,016,532, 2012 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annuat
installments through August 15, 2028; interest at 0.2% to 3.25% (portion included
below) 916,871

$12,500,000, 2012A General obligation bands due in annual instaliments through
August 15, 2037, interest at 2.0% to 3.25% (portion included below) 12,500,000

$9,600,000, 2013 General obligation bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2037; interest at 2.0% to 3.375% (portion included below) 8,500,000

59,646,983, 2013 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2025; interest at 2.0% to 4.0% (portion included

below) 9,502 337
Subtotal Tax-Suppored Gensral Obligation Debt 102 713,465
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A summary of Self-Supporting General Obligation Debt ocutstanding at September 30, 2013:

$435,000, 2005 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2025; interest at 3% to 4.5%; to be paid through
monthly Stormwater Drainage fees charged to utility customers within City limits 207,853

$1,804,835, 2005 General obligatien and Refunding bends due in annual
installments through August 15, 2020, interest at 3% to 4.75%; portion dedicated for
Airport Improvements, $1,240,200, to be paid with Airport fees. Portion dedicated for
Stormwater Drainage Improvements, $457,840, tc be paid through monthly fees
charged fo utility customers within City limits 599 825

$4,175,000, 2005 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2025; inferest at 3% to 4.5%; designated for GTEC
capital improvements fo be paid through revenues from the ¥ cent GTEC sales fax 1,887 347

$7,330,000, 2006 Combination tax & revenue refunding bonds due in annual
instaliments through August 15, 2024, interest at 4 2% to 5%; designated for GTEC
capital improvements to he paid through revenues from the % cent GTEC sales tax 6,630,000

$1,235,000, 2006 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annuat
installments through August 15, 2026; interest at 4% fto 4.625%; designated for
GTEC capital improvements to be paid through revenues from the % cent GTEC
sales tax 820,600

$439,6866, 2007 General obligaticn and Refunding bonds due in annual installments
through August 15, 2021, interest at 4% 10 4.625%; portion dedicated for Airport
Improvements, 323 855, to be paid with Airport fees. Partion dedicated for
Stormwater Drainage Improvements, $415,811, to be paid through monthly fees
charged to utility customers within City mit 402,528

$750,000, 2008 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2028; interest at 3.5% to 4.625%; to be paid through
menthly Stormwater Drainage fees charged to utility customers within City limits 457,726

51,076,435 2002 General cbligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2029; interest af 2% to 4.5%; portion dedicated for
Airport improvements, $58,375, io be paid with Airport fees. Portion dedicated for
Stormwater Drainage Improvements, $1,018,060 to be paid through monthly fees
charged to utility customers within the City limits 583 165

$1,010,000, 2010 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in apnual
installments through August 15, 2029, interest at 1.75% 1o 4.15%; to be paid through
monthly Stormwater Drainage fees charged to utility customers within City limits 905,000

$3,035,000, 2010 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual

instaliments through August 15, 2019, interest at 1.75% to 3.1%; paid through
Electric utility revenues 2,175,000
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$1.650,000, 2012 Combination tax & revenue ceriificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2032; interest at 1.5% to 3.375%,; designated for
GTEC capital improvements to be paid through revenues from the ¥ cent GTEC
sales tax 1,632,500

$2,185180, 2012 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2029; interest at 0.2% to 3.25%, designated for
GTEC capital improvements to be paid through revenues from the ¥ cent GTEC
sales tax 1,962,907

$5,233,289, 2012 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2029; interest af 0.2% to 3.25%; paid through
Electric utility revenues 4720221

4,065,000, 2013 Combination tax & revenue certificates of obligation due in annual
installments through August 15, 2033; interest at 2.0% to 3.25%, o be paid through
Electric and Water ulility revenues 4085000

$442,408, 2013 General obligation and Refunding bonds due in annual instaliments
through August 15, 2025:; interest at 2.0% to 4.0%,; portion dedicated for Airport
Improvements, $254,219, to be paid with Airport fees. Portion dedicated for
Stormwater Drainage Improvements, $188,18¢ to be paid through monthly fees
charged to utility customers within the City limits 435,775

$815,618, 2013 General obligaticn and Refunding bonds due in annual instaliments
through August 15, 2025; interest at 2.0% to 4.0%, designated for GTEC capital

improvements to be paid through revenues from the Y2 cent GTEC sales tax 901,888
Subtotal Self-Supported General Obligation Debt 28,476,535
Total outstanding General Obligation Debt as of September 30, 2013 $131,190,000

This amount is reported in the government-wide statement of activities as:
Governmental Activities $ 118,638,107
Business-type Activities 14,551,883
$131,190,000

C. Advanced Refunding/Defeasance

In pricr years, the City defeased bonds by placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds in an
irrevocable frust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the
City's financial statements. At September 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds
is $29,375,000.

On June 6, 2013, the City issued $11,005,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an
average interest rate of 3.4% to advance refund $145,000 of outstanding Series 2003 Combination
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation (average interest rate of 3.96%), $2,380,000 of
outstanding Series 2005 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Cbligation (average interast
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rate of 4.75%), $3,780,000 of outstanding Series 2005 General Obligation and Refunding Bonds
(average interest rate of 4.88%), and $4,430,000 of outstanding Series 2005A General Obligation
Bonds {average interest rate of 4.562%). The net proceeds after issuance (after insurance and other
iszsuance costs) were depesited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future
debt service payments on the defeased series bonhds. As a result, the following bonds are
considered {a be defeased and the liabilities for those bonds have been removed from the financial

statements.

Maturitics Series Series Series Series
2003 CO 2005 CO 2005 GO 2005A GO

2014 $ 145000 §$ - $ - 3 -

2015 - - - -
2016 - 200,000 790,000 363,000
2017 - 205,000 825,000 375,000
2018 - 215,000 490,000 380,000
2018 - 225,000 510,000 410,000
2020 - 235,000 210,000 430,000
2021 - 240,000 170,000 450,600
2022 - 250,000 180,000 470,000
2023 - 260,000 185,000 480,000
2024 - 275,000 195,000 515,000
2025 285,000 205,000 540,000

b 145000 §$ 2,380,000 § 3,760,000 $ 4,430,000

The City advanced refunded these bonds o reduce its total debt service payments over the next 13
years and to obtain a net economic gain (difference between the present values of debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $648,000.

D. Sales Tax Revenue Debt — Georgetown Transportation Enhancement Corporation

A summary of Sales Tax Revenue Debt outstanding at September 30, 2013 follows:

311,330,000, 2007 Senior lien sales tax revenue bonds due in annual installments
through August 15, 2027; interest at 4% 1o 4.5%,; repaid with 1/2 cent sales fax
revenue § 8955000

Total outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Debt as of September 30, 2013 $ B8,955000
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E. Revenue Debt

A summary of Revenue Debt outstanding at September 30, 2013 follows:

$1,225,000, 1988-B Taxable Utility System Revenue & Refunding bonds due in

annual instaliments through August 15, 2015; interest 21 8.15% t0 6.65% $ 175,000
$6,940,000, 2003 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual installments
through August 15, 2023; interest at 3.55% to 4.55% 355,000
34,025,000 2005 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2025; interest at 2.85% to 4.75% 2,780,000
38,665,000 2006 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual installments through
August 15, 2026; interest at 4% to 4.625% 8,515,000
$3,205,000, 2006 Utillity Systen Revenue & Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2020; interest at 4% t0 4.5% 2,140,000
$8,250,000 2007 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual instailments through
August 1§, 2027, interast at 4% to 4.5% 6 515,000
$3,935,000, 2007 Utllity System Revenue & Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2021; interest at 4% to 4.25% 2,285,000
59,415,000, 2008 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual installments
through August 15, 2028, interest at 3.5% 10 4.625% 7,780,000
$7.055,000, 2008 Utility System Revenue & Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2048; inferest at 3.5% to 4% 2,450,000
$10,120,000, 2010 Utility System Revenue bonds due in annual installments
through August 15, 2622, interest at 3% to 4% 9,205,000
$7,715,000, 2012 Uiility System Revenue & Refunding bonds due in annual
installments through August 15, 2023, interest at 2% 1o 4% 7.255 000
Total Outstanding Revenue Debt as of September 20, 2013 $47,455,000

F. Revenue Bond Advanced Refunding/Defeasance

All net revenues of the electric and water services system are pledged for the payment of debt
service for the revenue bands. Net revenues, as defined by the various bond ordinances, include
income and revenues derived from the operation of the system, after deduction of the amount
necessary to pay all operating, maintenance, replacement and betterment charges of the system.
These bond ordinances require that the net revenues, as defined, equal at least 1.25 times the
average annual debt service on all revenue bonds., The City was in compliance with fhis
requirement at September 30, 2013,
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In prior years, the City defeased revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the
City's financial statements. At September 30, 2013, the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds
is 18,565,000

G. Discretely Presented Component Unit — Loan Payable
Georgetown Economic Development Corporation (GEDCQ) received a loan from the Water

Services Fund as part of a tri-party agreement for economic development. The loan repayment
schedule by GEDCO is as foltows:

Fiscal
Year Ending GEDCO
September 30 Principal Interest
2014 3 55,000 3 45,000
2015 60,000 42,800
20186 60,000 40,400
2017 65,000 38,000
2018 65,000 35,400
2019-2023 375,000 133,650
2024-2027 370,000 42,750

$ 1,050,000 $ 378,000

7. RETIREMENT PLAN
A. Plan Description

The City providas pensian benefits for all of its fullfime employees through a non-traditional, joint
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan, in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System
{TMRS). The City of Georgetown is one of 849 municipalities having the henefit plan administered
by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. Each of the 849
municipalities has an annual, individual actuartai valuation performed. The following assumptions
were used for the December 31, 2012 valuations;

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Pericd 25.1 Years — Closed Period
Amortization period for new gains/losses 30 years

Asset Valuation Method 10-year Smocthed Market
investment Rate of Retumn 7.0%

Projected Salary increases Varies by age and service
Includes Inflation At 3.0%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0.9%
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The December 31, 2012 calculations were based upon the following benefits. Members can retire
at ages B0 and above with 5 years or more of service or with 20 years of service regardless of age.
A member is vested affer 5 years. The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the
City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial
constraints also in the statutes.

Membership as of 12/31/12

Number of:
Active members 478
Retirees and beneficiaries 114
inactive members 148
Total 739

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life
insurance plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the
Supplemental Death Benefits Fund {(SDBF). The city elected, by ordinance, to provide group-term
life insurance coverage to both current and retired employees. The city may terminate coverage
under and discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance befcre Novermber 1 of
any year to be effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employea’'s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual earnings, for the 12-month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an
“other postemployment benefit,” or OPEB.

TMRS issues a publically available comprehensive annual financial report that inciudes financial
stalements and required supplementary information (R8I} for TMRS. The report alsc provides
detailed explanations of the confributions, benefits, and actuarial methods and assumptions used
by the System. This report may be obtained from TMRS' website at www. TMRS.com.

The city offers supplemental death fo: Plan Year 2012 Plan Year 2013
Active amployees (yes or no) Yes Yes
Retirees (yes or no) Yes Yes

28



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

B. Contributions

The confribution rate for the employees is 7%, and the City matching ratio is currently 2 to 1, both
as adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the
contribution rate for the City is determined annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit
actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service
contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The normal
cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated
annually; the pricr service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded {overfunded) actuarial liabifity
{asset) over the applicable remainder of the plan's 25.1 year amottization period. Both the normal
cost and pricr service contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually
repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases. The City cantributes to
the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make
contributions monthly.  Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the
rate and the calendar year when ihe rate goes into effect. {(i.e. December 31, 2012 valuation is
effective for rates beginning January 2014).

The City's total payroli in fiscal year 2013 was $29 406,785 and the City's contributions were based
on a payroll of $29,326 690, Both the City and the covered employees made the required
contributions, amounting to $3,501 439 for the City and $2,052,768 for the employees. The City's
contribution amounted to 11.94% of the covered payroll during the fiscal year. The employees’
contribution amounted to 7% of covered payroll.

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress

Actuarial Valuation Date

1243172042
Actuarial Value of Assets (A) 569,132,809
Actuarial Accrued Liability (B §78,718376
Percentage funded (CY=EAY(B) 86.7%
Urnfunded {Over-funded) Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) {(Dy=(B)-(Ay 510585467
Annual Covered Payroll (E} 27,392,533
UAAL as a Percentage of Coverad Payrall (DYEE) 38.6%

*Based on calendar year ending 12/31/12, which varies from the City's fiscal year.
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Apnnual Pension Cost

Fiscal Year | Annual Pension APC Funded Percentage Net Pension Employer's
Funding Cost (APC) of Annual Ohbligation Contribution
Pension Cost (NFPO) as a % of
Contributed Covered Payroll
09/30/111 $ 3,718,933 $3,700,513 89.50 $1,333,043 13.24
09/30/12 $ 3,293,113 $ 3,222,805 97.86 $1,403,351 11.85
09/30/13 $ 3 512,801 $ 3,501,439 g9.68 $1.414,713 11.94

C. Net Pension Obligation Calculation

The NPO cost associated with the City's retirement benefits for the fiscal year ended September 30,

2013 and previous years, are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Annual required contribution $ 3,500,874 $ 3280012 $ 3,701,820
Interest in net pension obligation 88,235 93,313 98,596
Adjustment to annual required contribution {86,307) (80,212) {81,577)
Annual pension cost 3,512,801 3,283,113 3,718,836
Employer contributions (3,501,438} (3,222,805) {3,700,513)
Change in net pension obligation 11,362 % 70,308 5 18,426
Beginning net pension obligation 1,403,351 1,333,043 1,314,617
Net pension obligation $ 1,414,713 $ 1,403,351 $ 1,333,043

8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

In addition to the confribufions made fo TMRS, the City provides certain other post-employment
benefits to its retirees and dependents through its health insurance provider. an agent multipfe-
employer system. Full time employees of the City of Georgetown are eligible to receive continued
health benefits and dental and vision coverage for the person and the person’'s dependents uniess
anyone is eligible for coverage through ancther employer. Retirees of the City are eligible to continue
with coverage at the same level they had during empfoyment. Retirees are eligible at age 80 with 5
years of services or at any age with 20 years of service. Other post-employment benefit levels for
refirees are the same as coverage provided to active City of Georgetown employees in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the current City of Georgetown Health Plan.

Other post employment benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City recognizes the cost of
providing these benefits as an expense on the governmeni wide fund statements. The estimated
obligation of providing these benefits was $460,039 in 2013 according to a report on the results of the
actuarial valuation of assefs and benefits values associated with OPEB requirements. This is an
increase cf $98,81S over tast year's obligation of $361,220.

In fiscal year 2009, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 45. The Projected Unit Credit actuarial

cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the City's retiree health care plan. Using the plan

benefits, the present heaith premiums and a set of aciuarial assumptions, the anticipated future

payments aré projected. The projected unit credit method then provides for a systematic recognition
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of the cost of these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefiis
being earned by coveraed members as well as o amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liabifity.

The City is under no obligation, statutory or othenwise, to offer other post employment benefits to any
retirees, or their dependants. Allocation of city funds to make these benefits available is determined
on an annual basis by the City Council as part of the budget approvai process. In December 2010, the
City Council approved an ordinance that permanently segregates the refiree population from the active
employee population in the health plan and established a retiree stipend. Council agreed fo fund a
retiree supplement per month per retiree to stakilize the retiree rate to an amount comparable to their
current rates while a more permanent policy on retiree healthcare is developed.

A copy of the Actuarial Valuation Report for the Employee Retirement Benefit Program may be
obtainad by contacting Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company at 5605 N. MacArthur Blvd., Suite 870,
Irving, Texas 75038-2631.

The City recognized the following liability in the financial statements at September 30, 2013:

Annual Other Post Employment Benefits Cost and Net OPER {Obligation) Asset

The annual OPEB cost associated with the City's retiree benefits for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013 and previous two years, is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Annual required confribution $ 122,782 $ 119,208 $ 114,434
interest on net OFPEB ghligation 16,255 12,037 7.991
Adjustment to annual required contribution {15,080} {11,152} {7.404)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) end of year 123,977 120,031 115,021
Coniributions made (pay as you go} {25,158} (26,355) {25,114)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 98,819 93,736 89,907
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 361,220 267 484 177,577
Net OPEB obligation - end of year % 460,039 & 361,220 5 267,484
Assumptions:
OPEB

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2012

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit cost method

Amoriization method Lewvel as a percent of payroll

Remaining Amortization Period 30 years, open amortization
Assumed Rate of

Return on Investments 4.5%, net of expenses
Health Care Cost Trend Rate Initial rate of 8.5% declining to an
ultimate rate of 4.5% after 8 years
Payroll growth 3.0% per annum
Inflation rate 3.0% per annum

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status and the
annual required contributions of the City's retiree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
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Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members o

that point.

The City’s annuai OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the ptan, and the net
OFEB obligation for 2013 and the two preceding years are as follows:

Net OPEB Percentage of
Year Ended Annual QPEB Employer Obligation Annual OPEB
September 30 Cost Contributions End of Year Cost Contributed
2011 5 115,021 $ 25114 $ 267484 22%
2012 120,091 26,355 361,220 22%
2013 123,877 25158 460,038 20%
Funded Status
Actuarial Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
as of Value of Accrued Accrued Liability  Funded Covered for Covered
December 31 Assefs Liakility (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2011 $ 834008 % 854,006 0% $ 26,111 856 3%
2z 878,481 978,491 0% 27,263,189 4%
2013 878,491 878,491 0% 27,382,533 4%

9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

10.

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Infernal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their

salary until future years. Participation in the plan is optional.

The deferred compensation is not

available to employees untit termination, retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lang-Term Adreemenis

The City has the following long-term agreements, which represent significant commitments:

A,

Wholesale Power Agreements - On Jjune 28, 2012 the City of Georgetown delivered notice to
the LCRA declaring L.CRA to be in breach of the Whaolesale Power Agreement (WPA) covering
the supply of electricity and all related services o the City's Georgetown Ulility System (GUS).
Therefore, on August 13, 2012, per the terms of the WPA, the City of Georgstown delivered (o
LCRA a notice of termination to be effective on September 13, 2012. LCRA followed up with a
lawsuit in Travis County seeking a temporary injunction by the court to prevent the contract
termination, and also asked for summary judgment in their favor on the issue of breach.
Georgetown made a plea to the jurisdiction of the court based upon sovergign immunity. The
court denied the temporary injunction, summary judgment, and also ruied the case to be within
its jurisdiction. Georgetown immediately appealed to the circuit court on the plea and is
currently awaiting a hearing on that issue. A trial on the merits of the case is on hold pending
the final resolution of the piea to the jurisdiction, and could potentially take several years to be
resolved.
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Prior to terminating the WPA with LCRA, GUS received almest 90% of its power needs from
LCRA, but also had existing contracts with several other suppliers. Beginning on September
13, 2012 GUS began receiving energy from its other suppliers to replace the energy LCRA had
planned to serve. GUS also extended its aclive management of its daily energy supply to cover
the larger market exposures, congesticn issues, and real time settlements that LLCRA
previously handled. GUS currently has power arrangements to cover 100% of iis projected
needs through May 2015. GUS is currently evaluating iis energy needs through June of 2016.
Post 2016, GUS has covered 80% of its needs o 2036, and is maintaining a wind contract for
Southwestern University to 2028. The financial impact of these changes is projected lower
purchased power costs, which are being passed on to customers through lower rates, which
were changed to reflect a cost of service basis at the end of 2013 with higher fixed monthly
charges and iower variable KWh rates. Additionally, GUS' new long term contracts are mostly
renewable energy and therefore provide a hedge against carbon legislation costs.

B. Brazos River Authority {BRA) Water Contracts - Effective September 1, 2001, the City
revised its previous water availability agreemenis with the BRA to further plan for future water
needs and to standardize the pricing to a system-wide rate. The effective system-wide rate for
BRA's fiscal year beginning September 1, 2013 is $65.65 per acre foot and the City paid a total
of $2,018,844 for water during the fiscal year. The City has two separate agreements with the
BRA as follows:

(1) Lake Georgetown Water - This agreement, effective September 1, 2001 and expiring
August 31, 2050, requires BRA to make available to the City 6,720 acre-feet of water per
year at BRA’s system wide rate. The City paid $421,764 for water under this agreemeni
for the City's fiscal year.

(2) Lake Stillhouse Hollow Water - This agreement, effective September 1, 2001 and
expiring August 31, 2040, requires BRA o make available to the City 25,448 acra-feet of
water per year at BRA's system wide rate. The City paid $1,587,180 for water under this
agreement in fiscal year 2013.

C. Brazos River Authority - Williamson County Regional Raw Water Line Agreement -

The City is a party to an agreement dated June 30, 1988, with the Brazos River Authority
{BRA), City of Round Rock, Jonah Water Special Utility District and Chisholm Trail Special
Utility District. The Brazos River Authority designed, constructed, owns and operates a pipeline
to transport water from Lake Stillhouse Hollow to Lake Georgetown to benefit the parties in the
agreement. Total project construction cost for the raw water line was approximately $40 million.
In 2007, BRA refunded a portion of the original $89 million in debt. It is approximately $69
miltion, including principal and interest.  Each participant agreed to pay for the annual cost of
debt and operations of the line. The City's obligation is $31 millicn, including principal and
interest, to be repaid annually through 2032. The amount for fiscal year 2013 was $1,021,945,
The following schedule reflects the City's obligation:
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Year Ending September 30 Amount
2014 5 1,011,837
2015 1,006,612
2016 1,011,837
2017 1,011,368
2018 1,011,098
2019-2032 16,256,134
Total $ 21,308,484
D. Texas Capital Fund Programs - The City has received awards from this program, which is

operated by the State of Texas to assist in local economic development. Two types of
assistance are provided to businesses relocaiing to the area: (1) infrasiruciure improvements
and (2) low cost funding for facility construction. Infrastructure improvements become the asset
of the Cily upon construction, without repayment of the grant to the State. If the City receives
funding to construct a facility for a business, the City owns the facility and leases it to the
business. These lease paymenis are then repaid to the State. The leases and pass through
payments are recorded in the Agency Fund of the City. The City has three active awards for
facility censtruction, where long term agreements are in effect:

{1) Reedholm Instruments, Inc. - This facility was completed in 1827 and lease paymenis
began in March 1997. The business is cuirent on lease payments and has an outstanding
balance of $66,933 as of September 30, 2013.

(2} Xycarb Ceramics, USA, Inc. - This facility was completed in January 1998 and lease
paymenis began in February 1988. The husiness has an outstanding balance of $109,227
as of September 30, 2013.

{3} Schunk Quartz - This facility was completed in January 1898 and lease payments began
in February 1998. The business has an oustanding balance of $109,227 as of September
30, 2013.

E. Chisholm Trail Special Utility District (CTSUD) Merger Agreement - In September 2013, the
City and CTSUD approved an agreement to merge CTSUD's system with the City. The City and
CTSUD started the discussion of potential merger of the two entities beginning in the fall of
2011. Both parties engaged the services of muitiple consultants o investigate the potential
options for regicnalization, merger, system requirements and financial costs and benefits, A
study completed in June 2012 concluded that significant cost savings could accrue to CTUSD
utiity customers through a consolidation. After review of potential governance structures, a
contract was negotiated by both parties that uses the existing Georgetown Utility Systems
governance and provides for the purchase of all CTSUD assets by the City in an amount
necessary o defease the existing CTSUD debt. The purchase of the system was evaluated and
supported by independent consultant review contained in a report published in June 2013,
Under the terms of the September 2013 contract, the City began managing CTSUD on
November 1, 2013 and will continue to do so until such time that the asset fransaction has been
approved by appropriate regulatory agencies. Once regulatory approvals are received, the City
will purchase the assets, offer employment to the existing CTSUD employees, and accept
existing CTSUD customers as “Out of City” customers. Funds for the purchase wiil come from
existing CTSUD cash balance, City Water Services Fund, and debt issuance. The purchase of

94



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

the CTSUD systemn and fransfer of the approximately 7,300 CTSUD customers is expected to
occur late spring of 2014. Once the consolidation is completed, CTSUD will be dissolved.

F. Chisholm Trail Special Utility District - In February 1889, the City and CTSUD entered intc an
agreement which provided CTSUD water treatment capacity in exchange for allowing
Georgetown the right to provide water service in the Highway 195 and expanded Sun City areas.
The City transferred to CTSUD, a phased financiat position in the Lake Water Treatment Plant
{(EWTP), valued at $1,681,070, equaling 4.38 mgd of the off-peak plant capacity. In 2009, the
City and CTSUD entered into a subsequent agreement to: 1) convert the existing 4.36 mgd of
LWTP off-peak capacity to 4.09 mgd of firm capacity, 2) jointly construct and operate expanded
facilities at the Lake Water Treatment Plant with such 11 mgd expansion scheduled to start in
March 2011, 3) construct a new treatment plant at a new site south of Lake Georgetown, and 4)
an option to purchase a portion of CTSUD water service territory for the sum of $1,265,787. The
LWTP expansion was completed in 2013. CTSUD has paid their share of the construction costs
via guarterly settlements. The project has not been closed out. Final payment is pending final
punch list completion. CTSUD owns 9.59 mgd of capacity in the LWTP representing 33.65% of
the total capacity of the plant as of September 30, 2013. CTSUD pays prorata operating cosis
for all water produced at the LWTP. Once the merger with the City is completed, this treatment
capacity will revert back to the Gity.

G. Highlands at Mayfield Ltd - In July 2005, the City and Highlands at Mayfield, Lid (Highlands}
entered into an agreement, subseguently amended in October 2006, to provide for partial
reimbursement by Highlands for the cost of constructing a 1.25 mg elevated storage tank to
provide water service to the development. Upon notification by Hightands that it would not be
able to make the reimbursement totaling $465,319 required by the contract, the City and
Highlands amended the contract in Sepitember 2010 to defer the payment until August 2012 in
exchange for interest payments until the reimbursement payment is made. The Highlands has
made their quarterly interest payments as required and requested that one additional interest
payment plus the capacity payment of $465,319 be made on December 31, 2012. Due to high
costs to the Developer asscciated with design of and esasement acquisition for the Park
Alignment Waterline and the additional engineering, construction and easement acquisition costs
related to the required alternate water fine, the contract was amended again in May 2013, The
amended contract states that the Capacity Payment will bear interest at the rate of 3.6% per
annum from January 1, 2013 uniil paid. The Capacity Payment, plus accrued interest, will be
due and payable on the date of closing of the sale of the District's first bond issue and will be
paid by the District cut of the proceeds of such bonds.

H. Del Webb Corporation {Sun City Texas) - The Del Webb Corporation {(Del Webb) began
development in April 1995 of a proposed 8,500 unit; 5,300 acre active retirement community to
be called Sun City Texas. The City, through a Development Agreement, and in exchange for
payment of Service Improvement Fees (SIP fee - discussed below) provides fire protection,
wastewater, water and electric service to Sun City. The project is annexed into the City limits as
phases of the project are platted. Home sales hegan in June 1895 and were expected to
average 425 homes per year for 20 years. As of September 30, 2013, 8,710 units have been
completed.

In May 2008, the City approved the Eighth Amendment to the Development Agreement with
Del Webb. The Eighth Amendment set the build out at 7 600 age restricted units at Sun City.
Additionally, 1 escalated the payment of "stranded costs” and addressed the water and
wastewater capacity needed to serve the 2,500 age restricted units above the 5,000 units
originally defined in the Seventh Amendment. The SIP fee for units 5,001 through 7,500 was
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also set in this agreement at $3,292 per unit. As of September 30, 2013 there were 1,710 units
under this agreement.

l. Georgetown Village Public Improvement District - In 1599, the City of Georgetown created
the Georgetown Village Public Improvement Disirict No. 1, pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas
Local Government Code. The City is required to construct and provide operation, repair and
maintenance of parks, recreational facilities, alleyways, lighting, landscaping and related
improvements to the district that are above the standards that are met elsewhere in the City.
Property owners are assessed an annual maintenance assessmeant of $0.20 per $100 valuation.
Assessment revenue of $224,910 was recognized for 2013, As of September 30, 2013 all costs
associated with the Georgetown Village Public Improvement District have been reimbursed.

J. Cimarron Hills Public Improvement District - In May 2000, the City and Paloma Cimarron
Hills, L.P. entered into a development agreement for & 606 home, 813 acre subdivision within
the City's Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). As part of this agreement, the City created the
Cimarren Hills PID to reimburse the developer for costs of certain infrastructure improvements.
Each lot within the development is assessed an annual fee based on iis type of usage. The City
also collects a per unit transportation fee which will be used te fund necessary roadway
improvements and bridge crossings in the area. As of September 30, 2013, 234 ots had been
sold and 117 homes had been completed for this development. PID assessment collection
began in 2002, In 2013, PID assessments were 32,6849 103, The developer was reimbursed
$2,617,857 from current year collections and available fund balance. The assessments and
related disbursements are recorded in the Agency Funds.

K. Wolf Ranch Towne Center - In July 2003, the City approved a developmeant agreament with
Simon Properties for the 750,000 sg ft Wolf Ranch Towne Center. The project includes Target
and 70 other retailers and restaurants. As part of the agreement, the City provided utility
improvements to the site, as well as, funded $10.5 million of highway improvements for the
project. The $10.5 million was funded with debt to be repaid by Georgetown Transportation
Enhancement Corporation (GTEC). Improvements to SH 28, as well as, provide the frontage
road for IH-25 were constructed as part of this project. As of September 30, 2013, $10,555,000
of GTEC debt had been issued for this project.

The City's development agreement with Simon includes a sales tax rebate allowable under
Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Gavernment Code. Fifty-three percent of the 1% general
operating sales tax revenue generated at the development is rebated to Simon as an economic
development incentive. This arrangement contimues for 20 years or up to $15 million, which
funds the pukblic on-site improvements paid by Simon.

In June 2004, the City created the Wolf Ranch Public Improvement District (PID) #1 for alt Simon
owned property within the Wolf Ranch develepment. In the event that revenues from the project
are insufficient to fund any outstanding debt related fo the project, an assessment would be
levied against the propery in the PID to protect the City from potential revenue shortfalls.
Sheould revenues meet or exceed expectations, no assessment is made. The revenues did not
meet expectations, therefore the assessment increased.

As a practical matter, the sales fax rebate due under the 380 agreement is nefted against the
FID assessment payable. The net balance in the Public Road Improvement District assessment
receivable is $3758,944, including interest, as of September 30, 2013.

L. Citigroup, NA, Inc. - In November 2008, the City enfered into a 10 year tax abatement
agreement with Citigroup, NA, Inc., who constructed a $475 million data center within the City.
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The abatement began in tax year 2009 (fiscal year 2008/09). The Georgetown Economic
Development Corporation (GEDCO) also entered into an agreement with Citicorp, NA to fund
$1.3 million of offsite wastewater improvements as an incentive for the creation of 50 jobs, The
amount of the abatement for tax year 2013 (fiscat year 2012/13) is $105.5 million of appraised
market value.

M. Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) - In December 2010, the City Council approved the
award of a contract for the acquisition and deployment of an AMI system to Elster integrated
Solutions for an amount not to excead $8.6 million. The implementation will take place over a
three year time span. The confract was amended in December 2013 to extend the existing
contract through March 31, 2014 at the same price, terms and conditions. As of Saptember 30,
2013, there is $7,860,030 in expenses associated with this project. The project will be complate
when the final acceptance testing is complete and signed off on per schedule B of the coniract.
The project will be funded with cash reserves and/or revenue bonds issued by the Electric Utility.

iN. Williams Drive Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) was established in November 2006
to fund improvements needed for redevelopment of the Wiliiams Drive gateway area. A master
plan for the area was developed in 2006, with implementation planned for future years. As of
Septemhber 30, 2013, $38,184 has heen collected, with no proceeds invested in projects.

Q. Downtown Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone was establishad in 2004 to fund improvements
in the downtown overlay district to assist in funding the downtown master plan. As of September
30, 2013, 8627 842 of taxes and interest earnings has been collected, of which $600,622 had
been invested in designated projects within the zone.

P. Rivery Park Tax Increment Reinvesiment Zone Rivery TIRZ) was established in 2008 to fund
a convention centerfhotel complex, as well as, an expansion to Rivery Park. The City and
Williamson County agreed to raimburse up to $25 million for the project. The City will contribute
100% and Williamson County will contribute 80% of their respective property tax valuation
increase genarated at the 32-acre sile to fund the project. The City will remit half of the 1% City
sales tax generated at the site to Williamsen County as reimbursement. As of September 30,
2013, $46,641 has been collected with no proceeds invested in projects.

Q. Williams Drive Expansion Project - In April 2008, the City entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MCU) with Williamson County for the expansion of FM 2338 (Williams Drive).
The Counly agreed to up front the costs of the project in order to accelerate its construction to
address safety issues near Sun City. Under the MOU, the City agreed to repay the County at a
later date for the City's share of these costs. The City will be responsible for §5% of the total
project costs, estimated at $22 million, for the portion ¢f the project inside the City.

in January 2009, the City Council approved an infer-local agreement with Willlamson County to
address repayment for the Wiliams Drive expansion project as previously approved as a
Memorandum of Lnderstanding in April 2008. In December 2008, the City was notified that the
City was awarded $8.8 million from the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
(CAMPQG) for funding their portion of the project. These funds will be forwarded directly to the
County for funding the project. The City has reimbursed the County $7,564,466 of CAMPO
funding. The remaining balance of $4.7 millicn was paid by the City as of September 2012.
Approximately $1.2 million of outstanding, not grant funded costs related to the relocation of
utilities are currently being reviewed by the City with final payment to be negotiated in 2014
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R GCV Enterprises LLC, dba Grape Creek Winery - In October 2011, City Council approved an
aconomic development agreement with GCV Enterprises LLC, dba Grape Creek Winery fo
astablish and operate a winery on the downtown square. Geargetown Economic Development
Corporation {GEDCO) entered into an agresment with the developer to reimburse up to
$280.000 for improvements fo the property and patio related to the project. Downtown Tax
increment Reinvesiment Zone entered into a reinvestment zone agreement with the developers
in September 2012 to fund $60,000 for construction improvements. In addition, GERQCO has
entered into a lease agreement with Grape Creek for an initial term commencing on March 1,
2012 and ending five (5) vears after the Open Date. Grape Creek shall have three (3)
consecutive options to renew the term of the lease, each for an additional five (5) year term.

11. FINANCIAL HEDGING

In an effort to mitigate the financial and market risk associated with the purchase of natural gas,
energy, and congestion price volatility, the City has established a Risk Management Policy. This
policy was authorized by the City Council and is led by the Georgetown Utility Services Board.
Under this policy, the City enters into forward contracts for natural gas, swaps, and congestion
rights for the purpose of reducing exposure to natural gas, energy, and congestion price risk. Use of
these types of instruments for the purpose of reducing exposure to price risk is performed as a
hedging activity.

At September 30, 2013, the City had multiple outstanding confracts, with wholesale customers to
provide power supply and/or qualified scheduling entity services. For the power supply customers,
the City charges an energy charge which is based on the quantity of power supplied multipliied by a
fixed price, or multiplied by a fixed heat rate and a fuel index price. In order to hedge the City’s risk,
the City has entered infoc corresponding power supply agreements with counterparties to hedge
against energy price or heat rate fluctuation in the market.

Congestion Revenue Rights

Pre-assigned Congestion Revenue Rights (PCRRs) and Congestion Revenue Rights (CRRs)
function as financial hedges against the cost of resclving congestion in the Electric Reliability
Council of Texas (ERCOT) markel. These instrumentis allow the City to hedge expected future
congestion that may arise during a certain period. CRRs are purchased ai auction, annually and
monthly at market value. Municipally owned utilities are granted the right to purchase PCRRs
annually at 10-20% of the cost of CRRs. These instruments exhibit all three of the characteristics of
settlement, leverage, and nef settlement to classify them as derivative instruments.

Risks

Credit Risk. The City's over-the-counter agreements for natural gas and energy expose the City to
credit risk. in the event of default, the City's operations will not be materially affected. However, the
City does not expect the counterparties to fail fo meet their obligations. Tha City maintains contracts
with contractual provisions under the EEI (Edison Electric Institute) and EPC {Energy Procurement
Contract) agreements.

The congestion revenue rights expose the City to custedial credit risk in the event of defauit or
nonperformance by ERCOT. In the event of default or nonperformance, the City's operations will
not be materially affected. However, the City does nat expect ERCOT 1o fail in mesting their
obligations as they are a reguiatory entity of the State of Texas.
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Termination Risk. Termination risk is the risk that a derivative will ferminate prior to its scheduled
maturity date due to a contractual event. Contractual events include illegality, tax and credit events
upon merger and other events. The City's exposure to termination risk for over-the counter
agreements is minimal due to the high credit rating of the counterparties, and the contractual
provisions under the EEl and EPC agreemenis applied to these confracts. Termination risk is
associated with all of the City's derivatives up to their fair value of the instrument.

Netting Arrangements. The City enters into netting arrangements whenever it has entered inte mare
than one derivative transaction with a counterparty. Under the terms of these arrangements, should
one party become insolvent or otherwise default on its obligations, close-out netling provisions
permit the non-defaulting party to accelerate and terminate all outstanding transactions and net the
transaction’s fair values so that a single sum will be owed by or owed {0 the non-defaulting party.

12. ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In fiscal year 2013, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards {GASB)} Statement
63, “"Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and
Nat Position”, and Statement 65, “ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”. Statement
63 will improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effect on a government's net position. The
objective of Statement 65 is to either properly classify certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or {o
recognize cerain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of
resources (expenses or expenditures) or inflows of rescurces (revenues).

The implementation of Statement 85 resulted in the reclassification of the beginning net position of
the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. The deferred charges for issuance
costs were reclassed as expense of prior periods and resulted in the adjustment below:

Governmental Activities

Net position at September 30, 2012 $ 198,802,874
Change in reporting for deferred charges for debt issuance cosis (1,710,171)
Net position at September 30, 2012, restated $ 197,092,703

Business Type Activities

Water Nonmajor
Electric Senices Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds Total
Net position at September 30, 2012 $72619,622 $ 159,089,183 §$ 26,150,582 § 257,859,387
Change in reporting for deferred charges for debt
issuance costs (436,662) {563,370) (128,291) {1,128,323)

Net Position at September 30, 2012, restated $72,182,960 § 158,825,813 $ 26,024 291 § 256,733,064
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A. On December 17, 2013, EDF Renewable Energy (EDF-RE)} and Cielo Wind Power LP {Cielo)
finalized a Purchased Power Agreement {(PPA) with GUS to supply 144MW of power from the
Spinning Spur Il Wind Project. This praject is expected to begin cammercial operations slated
for late 2015. GUS is a partner with Garland Power and Light in the purchase of the rights to the
energy provided from the project, with Garland receiving 50MW of the total 1834MW capacity. The
PPA also assigns all Renewable Energy Credits generated by the project to GUS and Garland on
a ratio basis. The term of the PPA extends for 20 years past the commaercial oparation date,

B. Development agreements for a 220-room Sheraton hotel and conference center at the 32-acre
Rivery site ware approved by City Council on December 10, 2013 and January 14, 2014. The
Summit at Rivery Park (Rivery) project will include a 16,000 square-foot conference center that
can accommodate up to 4,500 people. Plans for the project include future phases with retall
stores, restaurant sites, single-family homes, and multifamily residences for a total project
investment of $150 million, including $65 million for the hotel, conference center, and parking
garage. Private investors will fund maost of the project cost.

The site is located within the Rivery TIRZ to capture the increased properly valuation by the
project. A total of $16.8 million in future City and County property taxes generated at the site will
be used to reimburse the City and the developer for the cost of the hotel and conference center,
parking garage, and public improvements. This includes $12.5 million of investments by the City
and 4A Georgetown Economic Development Corporation, $750,000 by the 4B Georgetown
Transportation Enhancement Corporation, and $3.5 millicn by the developer.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies, principally the federal government, are subject to
audit and adjustment by the agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already ccllected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the grantor canncot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

Litigation

The City is involved in varicus legal actions in which claims of varying amounts are being asserted against
the City. The City follows the practice of providing for these claims only when they become probable and
reasonably determinabte in amount. In the opinion of City management, these actions will not result in a
significant change in the City's financial position.

Construction Contracts

Estimated costs to complete significant consiruction projects in progress at year-end totaled approximately
$22.487,000 for Governmental Funds and approximately $859,000 for Enterprise Funds.
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Texas Municipal Retirement System Trend Data

Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual asa% of
Fiscal Value of Accrued Liability Percentage Accrued Liahility Covered Covered

Year (1) Assets {AAL) {1} Funded {UAAL} (1) Payrol Payroil
2004 $ 18,185567 $ 22,347.396 81.4% $ 4151829 $13688,260 30.3%
2005 20,947 887 25,168,237 B3Z2% 4,220,550 14,985,460 28.2%
2006 23,848,260 31,247,085 763% 7,388,695 16,585,727 446%
2007 27478717 36,054,408 76.2% 8575691 18,062,706 47 5%
2008 31,091,875 47,706 550 852% 18,614 675 21,074,348 73.8%
2009 34,184,686 52,405,684 65.2% 18,220,998 23,634,408 77.4%
2010 38,645,252 528515887 734% 14,206,735 25250743 56.3%
2011 54,329,259 66,412 267 81.8% 12,083,008 26,111,956 46.3%
2012 61,924,599 72,851,512 85.0% 10,926,813 27,283,189 40.1%
2013 89,132,808 78,718,376 86.7% 10,585.467 27392833 386%

Source: Texas Municipal Retirement System {"TMRS") Annual Report and City payroll reparts.

Notes:
{1 Trend data presented is information as of December 31 of Lhe previous year, which is the fiscal year of the TMRS.

Other Post Employment Benefits

Actuarial Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual of UAAL
as of Value of Accrued Accrued Liability Funded Covered for Covered
December 31 Assefs Liakility (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2011 $ 854,006 3 854008 0% 5 25,111,956 3%
2012 978,491 978,491 0% 27,263,189 4%
2013 978,491 978,491 0% 27,392 533 4%

Source: Gabrigl Roeder Smith & Company, Actuarial Valuation Report

Notes:
{17 Actuarial accrued liabilities for year end 2011 are based on a December 31, 2003 study. Actuarial accrued ligbilities
for year end 2012 and 2013 are based on a Decamber 31, 2011 study.
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR STREETS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS

GASE Statement 34 allows the City to use the Modified Approach with respect io infrastruciure assets
instead of depreciating these assels. The Cily Council adopted an average PCI level of 85 which is
considered “good” condition for a street. The City’s system for reporting assets is fully discussed in Note N
on page 70 of the notes. The following is additicnal information for the City's streets infrastruciure for fiscal

year 2013, This information is updated every three years and comparative data is included.

Condition Rating Summary

Center
% of Line % of

Condition Rating Segments Segments Miles Segments
Very Good 90-100 2,194 721% 190.8 72.4%
Good 80-90 557 18.3% 455 17.3%
Fair 45-80 282 $.3% 26.0 9.9%
Poor <45 11 0.4% 1.1 0.4%

3,044 100.0% 263.4 100.0%

Notes:

[a] Center line miles will vary from the total number of center line due fo street
segments that were omitted from the survey. Street segments that were either
scheduled or currently receiving maintenance were omitted from the street survey.

PCI Rating by Functional Class
2005-2007  2008-2010 2011-2013

Arterial @1.91 93.00 89.70
Collector 88.38 93.75 86.30
Local 91.00 92.70 87.50
Total 90.87 93.00 88.00

Costs to Maintain System at Designated Level

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30, 2013 2012 201 2010 2008 2008

Estimated Mairfenance Cost  $2,768,631 $3448359 $3350,973 $3643734 $3324234 $2885734
Budgsted Maintenance Cost 3578410 3484079 3078770 3623688 3530234 4,284,000
Actual Maintenance Cost 3,553,228 3170,741 32889757 2,805,768 2308171 2,637,268
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Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Speciaf Revenue Funds are used fo account for specific revenues that are legally restricted for expendituras for
particular purposes.

Court Fees — to account for the receipt and expenditure of court fees that are legally restricted for court
security and technology.

Conservation — to account for the Energy Conservation Fee that is charged to Electric customers. This fee is
used for the enactment of House Bill 3693 to address the issue of peak demand by initiating energy
efficiency initiatives and conservation strategies. The funds collected will be used for a weatherization
program and soiar water heating program.

Development — to account for the receipt of private donations, grants, and money raised through special
events to provide assistance to building/property oewners for maintaining the appearance of the downtown
historic district. Funds are distributed through an applicaticn/approval process with either a low-interest foan
or grant, and to account for the receipt and expenditure of revenues from building proceeds to further
develop downtown structures,

Fira Billing and Donations ~ to account for the receipt and expenditures of funds received by the Ciy for
various fire services, including calls for service, donations, abandoned vehicle revenue and inspections,

Library Restricted — to account for the receipt and expenditure of restricted donations such as memorials and
gifts for a designated library purchase or proegram. Also accounts for the receipt of the Texas State Library
grant for librarian salaries and books.

Parks — to account for revenues earned by the City from activities on City park land, which are restricted for
impraovements to park land and for parkland dedication fees paid by developers, which are restricted by
zones for new parks. Also accounts for the partial administration of a federal drug prevention grant in
coordination with Georgetown Project.

PEG Fee — to account for the receipt and expenditure of PEG fees that are legally restricted for capiial
expenditures reiated to the City’s cable access channel.

Pclice — to account for a Texas Department of Transportation grant for a Selective Traffic Enforcement
Project (STEP) related to overtime costs and the raceipt and expenditure of seized donated funds.

Streels Sales Tax — to account for the receipt and expenditure of revenues collected from the ¥ cent sales
tax approved by the citizens in November 2001 under Texas House Bill 445. The funds are required to be
spent on maintenance of streets that were in existence at the time of adoption of the tax.

Tourism — to account for the receipt and expanditure of funds received by the City from the assessment of
hotel and motel occupancy tax. Usage of funds is restricted to promotion of tourism and arts within the City.

Transpertation — to account for the receipt and expenditures of funds received by the City for the Williams
Crive expansion project.

Village Public Improvement District — to account for the receipt and expenditure of the revenues callected
from property assessments paid by Georgetown Village Public Improvement District residents and the
developer to fund maintenance on upgraded parks facilities within the subdivision.

Downtown, Gateway and Rivery Park Tax Increment Reinvestment Zones (TIRZ) —~ to account for public
improvements within an area that will generate private-sector development. The tax base is frozen at a pre-
development level angd the increases in taxes derived from increases N assessed valuations are o retire
bonds eriginally issued for the development or o leverage future growth in the assigned areas.




GITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDE
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SPECIAL REVENLE FUNDS

FiRE
COURT BILLING AND LIBRARY
FEES CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT DOHATIONS RESTRICTED PARKS

ASEETE;
Cash and cast equivalents 3 31378 5 208,702 3 191 885 5 66 266 % 13225 5 85,853
Irvestments 39.937 VB, -’ 244 232 54.3389 16431 290 831
Ascounts receivahle:

Tax - - - -

Grans - - - - -

Cther 33,420 TTE 50,438 375
TOTAL A35ETS 3 71,318 3 437,081 ) 453,663 3 228,281 5 80,434 5 375, 868
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGE
Llahkilities:
ALeounts payab'e 3 RN % 481 1) £2,234 ] - 3 2490 3 LY
LInearnad revenue e - N - 7767 z

Taotal lizbilifics 3370 461 7TETE 2,430
Fund Balange:
Reastrictzd &7 548 4,508 - - -
canmetted 426,560 0eE1F 150,605 - THES12
Assinned 280,10« - TG 004 108,520

Tozal furd balarcs 57,948 458 EgC 3597.229 150.6C5 75004 265.832
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 5 Ma8 s 497061 § 469,869 5. 226281 8§ 0484 5 876,869
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SFECIAL REVEWUE FUNDS

TAX
INCREMENT VILLAGE PUBLIC
PEG STREET REINVESTMENT IMPROVEMENT
FEES FCLICE T8X ZONES TOURISM TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
5 2718 5 74915 2091258 4854 5 222700 % - 157,558 3.492,308
37,824 G5 347 2610854 E3i71 263435 260,525 4,445 521
- 412 874 - - 412,274
- - - - - 43 331 - 22381
- 162,763 44,445 - 444 356,571
g BV, 43 3§ 333,028 5,074,827 112,608 3 66D, 581 § 43,361 368,630 8,764,238
5 - 5 1,405 117515 6800 3 140%  § 43,361 7981 270,504
- - - - 21.600 - - 83,576
B 1409 117515 800 35,056 43,367 7,957 364,580
67,543 120,126 4857 212 - 515 525 - - 5 782,850
- 211496 - 11016.005 - 350,548 2174, 358
- - - - - - 477 428
67,543 331616 4.857.212 106,005 515.575 280,548 7,384,556
H sTEL 3 333,025 6,074,827 2805 § EE0,58t 5 43,361 188,520 # 764,226



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENIHTURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERMNMENTAL FUNDS
F1SCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REVEMUES:
HetelMoia| bax
Properiy assessment
Sales tax

Charges for services
Fires and forfeitures
Grarts ard denations
Investment income
Other

Total ravenues

EXPENDITURES:
Culture - recreation
Devaloprment

Fira sevices
Highways and sireats
Prlice

Capkial aulay

Totai expandituras

EXCESS (DEFICIEMNCY} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FIMANCING SOURCES (USES):

Trarsfers in
Trahsfers aut

Total other financing sources (uses)

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALAMGES, Beginring of pariad

FUND BAL ANCES, End of period

SPECIAL REVENLUE FUNDS

FIRE
COURT BILLING AND LIBRARY
FEES CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT DONATIONS RESTRICTED PARKS
$ - - 3 - $ - - $
) _ } -9 356 -
B8.974 - - - - .
- - 264,594 36,755 140,659 1,250
544 2.039 2,188 564 153 5,318
o 959,129 111.8:0 1.680 - 247,255
68,518 251,158 378,390 151,395 140,912 251,827
- 275,937 47,554 - 126,52 57,333
- . 48,740 - - -
- - 165,772 -
126 469 ; - - -
e . 725,05 - - 130,564
128,469 275,937 869,309 166,772 126,912 218,597
N (58,951} {14,789) 1490,318) 115,377) 13,800 32,930
28,752 470 060 - 29,700 -
e METI0 o - - - (260003
i17.978] _ 470,000 - 25,700 (22.000)
{74,828 {14,769} (20,218} 18,377 43,800 4,930
143,875 511,339 418,148 165,982 34,404 850,902
$ 67048 & 456,580 & 387,229 § 150,605 ) 78,004 5 BE5,932
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SPEGIAL REVENUE FUNDS B e 2013
TAX
INCREMENT WILLAGE PLUELIC
PEG STREET REINVESTMENT IMPROVEMENT
FEES POLIGE TAX ZONES TOURISM TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

s y 8 - g - § - 5 553143 . 5 . 553143
- - - 162, 380 - 224 310 387 280

- - 2,331,520 - - - 2,331,639
a7.457 - - - . . . 76,853

_ _ . - . . . 59,674

- E3.925 - - - 43,381 . 555,584

1] ga0 19,814 714 2,080 2212 3C,490

- 58403 - - 9 09 N o 783107
57,542 139,178 2,347 453 163,094 550,219 43,361 227122 4,891,080

- - %93 582 134,358 1,318,376

- ; y " - - 45,740

- - - . . . 166,772

- - - - 23 361 - 43 361

- 3,081 - - y 205,550

- } 2,056,487 198,037 - - - 3,110,483

B 20,081 2,058,467 195,037 593,582 43,361 134,358 4,490,282
57,543 58,007 288,986 (32,8431 92,764 798

y 10,897 463,073 . 27,500 - 1,025,922
- ] . (197.0008 {9s.000] - - {366,730]

. 10,697 3E3a73. {197,000 7D - - 562,197
87,543 59,924 752,058 (229,343 {10,963 - 92,764 563,990
261 822 4 205,153 335,948 525 488 - 297, TRe TTECESE

R - S R <= -1 T N X -7 s N S T X T T 515,528 - 5 250,549 8,254,656




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COURT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BEUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP} - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUBGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Court fees 3 93000 3§ 93000 % 63,074 (24,026}
Investment eamings 300 800 544 {288}
Total revenues 93,500 93,800 89,518 {24,282}
EXPENDITURES:
Persorpef 58,053 58,753 57,805 948
Operations 155,569 128,872 69,066 59,808
Total expenditures 212,652 187,625 126,871 60,754
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {119,852} 93,825) {67,353) 36,472
OTHER FINANCING SGURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in 28.0563 28,753 28,752 (1
Transfers out (20,000} (48,727} {46,727} -
Total other financing scurcas (uses) 8,053 {17,974) {17,975} {1}
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY} OF REVENLIES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING SCURCES (USES) - BUDGETARY BASIS {111,798) {111,799) {75,228} 36,473
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of period 111,798 111,795 142,874 31,075
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of pericd $ - $ - 87,546 67,548
Adiustments to GAAP,
Reverse current year encumbrances 400

FUND BALANCE - GAAF BASIS

End of period $ 67,946
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CITY QF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CONSERVATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL
ORMSINAL. FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Investment eamnings 5. 500 5 500 % 2038 1.539
Conseryation revenue 240,00 240,000 259129 19,129
Toial revenues 240,500 240,500 261,168 20,668
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel - 32,200 28,070 4130
Oparationsa 242,394 252,292 240.771 11,521
Tatal expenditures 242384 284,492 268,841 15,651
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {1,894) {43,992} {7.673) 36,319
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of pariod 1,894 43,992 503,009 459,017
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period 3 S - 435 336 495,336
Adjustments to GAAP:
Reverse current year encumbrances 1254
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of period 3 496,550
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CITY OF GEORGETCOWN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL VARIANCE
CRIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY TO FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS BUDGET

REVENUES:
Grants and ertitlements & 135,380 % 135,180 % 264,504 § 129.414
Imvestment earnings 4014 400 2,186 1,786
Technalogy fee 15,000 43,101 59,997 21.896
Cher 50,000 50 000 41,613 (8,387)
Totat revenues 200,530 233,681 378,380 144,709
EXPENDITURES:
Operations 215,801 248,902 145,655 103,247
Capital outlay 1,144,180 1,144,180 741,180 403,000
Total expenditures 1,359,981 1,383,082 886,835 506,247
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {1,15%,401) (1,159,401} {508,445} 650,856
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 570,000 370,000 470,000 {500C,000)
Total other financing sources 970,000 970,000 470,000 (500,000)
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) CF REVENUES

OVER EXFENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING 5CURGCES - BUDGETARY BASIS {189.4G1) (189,401) [38,445) 150,956
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of period 374,383 374,353 151,863 (222,490)
FUND BALANCE « BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period 5 184,952 % 184,952 113,418 $ (71,534
Adjustments to GAAP;
Reverse current year encumbrances 283,811
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of petiod 5 397,229

110



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

FIRE BILLING AND DONATIONS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP} - RECONCILED TO GAAR BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ORIGINAL ACTUAL YARIANCE
& FINAL BUDGETARY TO FiNAL
BUGGET BASIS BUDGET

REVENUES:
Grants and entilemants $ - $ 17,183 17,183
Investment earnings 2,000 584 {1.438)
Fire incident killings 50,000 109,356 58,356
Cther 3,000 24292 21.292
Total revenues 55,000 154,395 96,395
EXPENDITURES:
Qperations 171,580 149,568 22,024
Total expenditures 171,580 149 556 22,024
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {116,580} 1,839 118,419
FUMND BALANCE, Beginning of period 116,580 147 634 31.054
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period 3 - 149,473 149,473
Adiustments to GAAP:
Reverse current year encumbrances 1,132
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of period $ 150,605
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CITY OF GEOQRGETOWN, TEXAS

LIBRARY RESTRICTED SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCH.ED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REVENUES:

Grants and entitterrents
fhvestrnent earmings
Conations

Tatal revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Personned
Operaticns

Capitat

Tatal expendituras

EXCESS (BEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES:
Transfers in

Total ather financing sources
=XCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OWVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SCURCES - BUDGETARY BASIS
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of period

FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,
End of period

Adjustments to GAAP:

Reverse current year encumbrances

FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS
End of pericd
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2013
AGTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BURGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET
51863 S 51,863 79280 27,417
400 400 153 (247)
60,000 £0,000 81,379 1.379
112,263 112,263 140,812 28,549
50,863 58,573 58,573 .
107,268 90,646 51622 39,024
- 16612 16,612 -
158,131 165,831 126,807 39,024
{45,868) (53,568) 14,006 67,573
22,000 29,700 29,700 -
22,000 28,700 29,700 -
(23,868) (23,868) 43,708 67,573
23,868 23,858 34,293 10,425
- 5 - 77598 § 77,998
8
78,004



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013

2013

ORIGINAL ACTUAL

& FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE

BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 3 5200 $ 3,318 3 {1,882}
Othar 120,250 248,508 128,258
Tatal revenues 125,450 251,826 126,376
EXPENHTURES:
Operations 151,031 95,757 65,264
Capitat outlay 624 387 153,362 471,025
Total expenditures 775,418 243,129 526,289
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

DOVER EXPENDITURES {649,968) 2,697 652,865
OTHER FINANCING {USES):

Transfers out {28,000) (28 0003 -
Total ather financing (uses) {28,000 (28,0004 -
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENLIES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING {USES)

- BUDGETARY BASIS (677,968) (25,302} 652,665
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of peried 877,963 824283 148,315
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period $ - 798,980 % 795,980
Adjustments to GAAP:

Reverse current year encumbrances 56,852
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS
End of peried $ 865,832
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PEG FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDRULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONGCHL.ED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ORIGINAL ACTUAL
8 FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Investment eamings L 46 48
PEG fee revenue B7 487 67,497
Total revenues 87,543 67,543
EXPENDITURES:
Personnel - -
Cperations - -
Total expenditures - -
EXCESS OF REVENUES

QVER EXPENDITURES 67,543 67,543
FLIND BALANCE, Beginning of period
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period $ 87,543 67,543
Adjustments to GAAP:
Reverse cumant year encumbrances -
FUND BAILANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of pericd 67,543
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

POLICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BUBGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Grants and entitlements 3 13,288 $ 63,288 $ 41,139 $ (22,149)
Investment earnings 770 770 849 74
Donations 25,000 25,000 28,954 3,854
Other - 2,000 2,000 83,402 85 402
Totat revenues 41,068 91,058 139,344 48,288
EXFENDITURES:
Personng! 26,576 26,576 19,591 6,585
Operations 54,963 114 963 81,183 33,780
Capital outlay 67,958 67.968 17.685 50,303
Total expenditures 159,507 209,507 118,438 91,068
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {118,449} {118,449) 26,305 139,354
OTHER FINANCING SOURGES:
Transfers in - - 10,8497 10,897
Total other financing sources - - 10,897 10,887
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES ANB OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES - BUDGETARY BASIS {118,449) {118,448} 31,802 153,251
FUND BALANCE, Beaginning of period 118,445 115,445 260,584 142,145
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period $ - $ - 292,396 5 292,396
Adjustments fo GAAP:
Reverse cuirent year encumbrances 38,220
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of period $ 331 616
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STREET TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAFP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REVENUES:

Sales tax
Investmant earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Operating

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANGING S0URCES:
Transfers in
Total other financing scurces

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVERUES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES - SUDGETARY BAZIS
FLIND BALANGE, Beginning of pericd

FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,
End of period

Adjustments to GAAP:
Reverse cumrent year encumbrances

FUND BALANCE - GAAF BASIS
End of period

2013
ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET
$ 2,087,000 8  2,087.000 5 2,331,639 5 244630
10,000 10.000 15,6814 5,814
2,097,000 2,097,000 2,347,453 250,453
1,144,000 2,775,282 2,775,282
1,144,000 2,775,282 2,775,282 -
953,000 {678,282) (827,629) 250,453
- - 483,073 463,073
- 463,073 463,073
953,000 {678,282) 35,244 713,526
1,086,061 2.717.343 2,138,119 (579,224}
§ 2,039,061 $ 2,039,061 2,173,363 § 134,307
2,783,849
$ 4,957,212
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAPR BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SERPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL
CRIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUBGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVEN{ES:
Property assessments 3 153,467 § 153,467 8 162,380 L 2913
Investrent eamings 1,000 1,000 714 (286)
Total revenues 154,467 154,467 163,094 8,627
EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay 22 501 196,278 196,038 242
Toetal expenditures 22,501 196,278 196,036 242
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 134,966 {41,811) {32,842) 2,869
OTHER FINANGING (USES)
Transfers out {197 000 (157.000) {197.000) -
Total other financing {uses} {187, 000 (197,000} {197,000) -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SCURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND

OTHER FINANCING {USES) - BUDGETARY BASIS {65,034) (238,811} {229,042) 5,868
FUND BALAMCE, Beginning of period 148,163 321,840 332.145 10,205
FUND BALAMCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of pericd 3 83,129 $ 83,129 102,203 3 19,074
Adjusiments to GAAP:
Reverse cument year encumbrances 3.802
FUND BALAMNCE - GAAP BASIS

End of period 5 106,005



CiTY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

TOURISM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAF) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Hotel/Moted tax 3 435,000 3 483,623 $ 653,142 649,520
tnvestrnent earnings 3.500 3,500 2,050 {1,450)
Other 95870 95,870 96,026 [B844)
Tofal revenues 524,370 582,993 650,219 67,226
EXPENDITURES:
Parsonnel ' 160,891 218,668 218,668 -
Operations 297,722 345,068 345,068 -
Total expenditures 488,613 564,726 564,738
EXCESS {DEFCIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 48,757 18,257 25,483 67,226
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Transfers in - 27,500 27,500 -
Transfers out (95,000 (95,000) {95,000} -
Total other financing sources {uses) (85,000 (67.500) (67,500)
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES {USES) - BUDGETARY BASIS (49,243) (49,243) 17,983 67,226
FUNLD BALANCE, Beginning of period 476,818 476,818 485474 8,656
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period § 427,575 3 427,575 503,457 75,882
Adjustments to GAAP:
Reverse current year encumbrances 12,088
FUND BALANCE - GAAF BASIS

End of period § 515,528
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ACTUAL VARIANGE
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY TO FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS BUDGET
REVENUES:
Grant Revenue - 43,361 $ 43,361 -
Total revenues - 43,361 43,361
EXPENDITURES:
Qperations 43,361 43,361
Total expenditures - 43,361 43,361
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXFENDITURES - - -
FUND BALAMCE, Begmning of period -
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,
End of period B R
Adjustments o GAAP:
Reverse current year encumbransas
FUND BALANGCE - GAAF BASIS
Eng of period $
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

VILLAGE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES {BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAR BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

2013
ORIGINAL ACTUAL
& FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE
BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET

REVENUES:
Property assessments 225,134 224910 (224)
Invastment earmings - 2212 2212
Total revenues 225,134 227122 1,588
EXPENDITURES:
Cperations 225134 155,677 65,457
Total expenditures 225,134 159,677 65,457
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY)} OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES - 67.445 67,445
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of period 177,867 219,589 42122
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period 177,867 287,434 109,567
Adjustments toc GAAP;
Reverse current year encumbrances 63,115
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

350,549

End of period
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Supplementary Individual Fund Financial
Statements and Schedules — Major Governmental Funds

These supplementary statements and scheduies are inciuded (o provide management
additional information for financial analysis.




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
~ Invesiments
Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts):
Delinguent taxes
Sales taxes
Other
Prepaid items
Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Total liahbilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of
resources

Nonspendable

Spendable:
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESQURCES,
AND FUND BALANCE

2013 2012

$ 4644162 % 3,764,478
5,910,753 4,791,154
199,571 201,513

1,857,933 1,465,031

2,448 052 2.018.730

13,903 5,137

4,794 2,110

3 15,077,169  $ 12,248,153
$ 1,476,720 % 1,071,583
350,776 545 160
1,827,496 1,616,743

199,570 -

199,570 -

18,697 2.110

7,400,000 7,000,000
1,631,482 1,210,247
3,999,924 2,419,053
13,050,103 10,631,410

$ 15,077,169  $ 12,248,153
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,.EXPENDITU RES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

REVENUES:
Property taxes:
Current
Gelinquent
FPenalties and interest
Other
Sales tax
Franchise taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for service
Fines
Deonations and grants
investment income
Ofher income
Tetal revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Culture - recreation
Development
Fire services
General government
Highways and streets
Environmentat services
Police
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND RBALANCES

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of pertod

FUND BALANCES, End of perfod
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2013 2012
9,684,339 3 8,932,034
44,828 29.070
79,306 02,538
234,550 198,084
10,007 841 8,837,465
4,471,487 3,824,052
1,536,660 1,236,478
9,302.816 8,268,168
670,582 616,815
202,837 17,218
34,810 42 523
1,222 561 519,319
37,492,507 32,713,763
7.945 906 7.183,369
1,579,575 1,890,481
8,638,166 7,580,667
2.906,971 2,992 852
3,378,979 3,424,145
4, 857,396 4,823,170
11,471,418 10,498,193
40,780,411 38,402,877
(3,287,504) (5,689,114)
6,655 673 8,200,518
(449,078) (34,641)
5,706,597 6,165,877
2,418,693 476,763
10,631,410 10,154,647
13,050,103 ¢ 10,631,410




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BAZSIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NGN-GAAF} - RECONCILED TO GAAF BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE FOR 2012}

REVEMUES:

TAXES:

Froparty fax:
Current
De&dirquernt
Penalties and mterest

Totai property tax

Saies tax

Franchise taxes

Other

Totai taxes

LICENSES AND PERMITS:
Permits and inspection fees
Licenses

Total licenses and permits

CHARGES FOR SERVICES:
Library

Anirnal services

Farke and recreation
Ervirormantai services

Fira pretection

Faolice supporn

Total charges for services

FINES AND FORFEITURES

INTEREST AND OTHER:
Inygsunant income

Raat

Mizcellarecus

Toal interesi and othar

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
CH TURE - REGREATION:

Dawvntown & Carrmiruty Servce Admin,

Per sonrel
Cperaticns

Totzi dowdawn & commuanity yve acmin

Parks:
Persamrel
Operaticns
Capital cuet:ay

Totai oarks

Racreation:
Fersgrnal
Operations

Tetal recreaticn

Recrealion programs:
Persornel
Dperations

Tetal recraaticn pregrams

2013 2012
ACTUAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE BUDGETARY
BUDGET BUDGET EASIS TO BUBGET BASIS
k] 9,820,000 G105 000 & 0684 339 (420,681 § 2,532 934
#31,000 7000 44,525 {25,172} 29.07C
om0 80,054 79,355 (g4 92,538
5,580,000 12,265, 000 9,808,563 (455 A37Y 9553640
8885 150 5,853,754 10,007,841 1,144 091 5537 464
3,796,460 3,795,450 4,474 487 675,027 3,924,052
208000 208,000 234,550 25,550 244,763
. .22,848.210 23,133,210 24,522,441 1,389,231 22,059,319
371,300 971,300 1,527,833 £56,333 1,252,833
_inoco 12,000 200,225 *0,225 7.080
581,500 981,500 1,548,068 BB6,568 1,259,932
71,520 71 620 81783 10,163 75,310
2,000 7.000 2,646 G456 381
2,271 806 2,211 8040 1,834,072 2FTTVE) 1,577 440
E,825 00 5,826,000 5,800,775 {1,025 225} E141.648
1,255,000 1,255 OO 1,322,842 57,843 911,857
133,350 133.950 148,422 14,472 137,580
10,500,370 10,500,370 8,290,291 {1,210,075) 8,244,714
.. . B7B500 875,500 670,581 | §205,818) 516,815
40,000 40,020 34,511 15.488) 42,703
165,000 169,000 186,070 {2,330 160,734
233,400 401,385 1,260,455 858,07¢ 375,804
442 400 610,285 1,461,036 850,651 575,241
35,648,980 36,101,965 37,492,407 1,390,442 32,760,522
260,236 331 246 321,246 -
38,730 48 515 48512 3
00 GAG 27,78 379.758 3
1208 4°6 1,246 521 1,204,383 42,158 1,166,562
973,501 9/2 436 w7, 90 34,706 908,229
100,000 im0 59,986 14 48,578
2783317 2,349,017 2,242 130 T6.578_ 2,125,169
1,620,557 1,044,587 1,030,274 12,313 975,363
G563 940 344,145 835124 4,021 505.334
1,280,527 1,668,732 1,985 ASH 23,334 5,380,517
877,336 885,058 814 577 70,481 745,786
816,746 829128 89,673 19,463 ... BCYLED
1,691,084 1,714,182 1,624 250 29,934 < 553226
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2013 2042
ACTUAL ACTUAL
ORIGENAL FIMAL SUDGETARY VARIAMCE BUDGETARY
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET BASIS

Litrany:

Personnel 3 1080570 5 < 081270 & 1,040,288 41012 & SETE 4

Operations 535,706 6361EE 320,733 14.42% 558,158

Cagital outlay 140,988 141,508 141,505 1 129.888
Teatad [forzry 1.736.841 1,757,941 1.702,4%3 945,452 1615257
TOTAL CULTURE - RECREATION 7,880,835 8,159,635 7,914,044 245,588 7,264,807
DEVELGPMENT:
Plarning:

Personne: TOE. 153 652 227 853,227 - 588,197

Operations 147.134 137,404 10640,544 A7 080 157 230
Tetal planring gs3.287 SEDE3 SED 3/.080 B4s 527
Inspection services:

Parsoars BB, 323 BEY 9273 BE2 EE 1787 538,132

Cmerations 142,385 144 985 137 B8 {130 93,409
Tolal insoechon services 814,308 244,908 820 7
Code enforcement:

Fersornel 230,050 230,855 ey vt 3 841 Z8¥ 38

Operations BE. 728 H8. 22 - 85,325
To'al code enforsement mEIE. L 3mas 353064
TOTAL DEVELGPMEMT 1,983,186 1,854, 330 1,889,138 55,152 4,880,232
EMNVIRONMENTAL SERVICES:
Envronmerital 3ervices

Fersonnel &2, 76T B7,8587 585,921 11,846 54,397

Operat:ons 5.184,234 6,032,734 4 y95,008 ' 339,226 4£708,075

Capial Qutlay 5 000 158,000 150,000 5,0CC =153
Tetal environmental services o 5,282,001 5257 101 £,000,929 - 256,172 4,783,110
TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVIGES 5,252,001 8,257,101 5,000,329 1,256,172 4,763,110
FIRE SERVICES:
Suppurt Services,

Persoanel 600,624 632,533 B3390 K| 548,540

Ooeraticns 425847 353,742 287,458 3,253 374,652
Tolal sUpport services 1.Z6.275 1.023,335 1,020,072 3,256 923,132
Emrargency Services:

Pastrrel 6.517 225 6,734,848 G.728.779 159 § 366,520

Opearatiens 242,008 892,748 a%2 6a0 a8 B4, 560

Capital oullay - - - - 484,374
Total emergaricy Servces TG0 335 7630 538 7631439 257 _BETETIS
TOTAL FIRE SERVICES B,386,611 8,655,031 #,651,518 3,513 7,508,868
GENERAL GOVERNMEMNT:
Geraral government

Cperaticna 2458203 1,865,846 1710105 155,741 1.813.557
Tolal asreral governmert 2,455,233 1,865,846 1.710.105 156,741 1.813.667
City council

Persornel 221,587 249,952 249,952 - 217 348

Gperatisns 180,283 178,473 136252 43,221 129270

Capital cutlay - 1.44% 1.448 - -
Totg? cigy councit . 462,87 429,870 386 545 43,221 348 518

[continuad)



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NCN-GAAP}Y - RECONCILED TO GAAF BASIS
FISCAL YEAR ENMDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE FOR 2012)

City marager's office:
Personne
Cperaticns
Capital outlay

Toial city managers office

Cammunication office;
Persorral
Cparations

Total communication affice

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS:
Tranzgortatian Acmin.
Personne:
QJoerations
Capitan gutlay
Tolal iranspoanon admin

Strasts.
Prersonnel
Qperatizns
Capital outay

Tosa streets

TGTAL HIGHWAYS ANT STREETS

POLICE SERVICES:

Crganization and administration:
Parsonnal
Chper ations
Capital cullay

Tetal erganization and administraticn

Freld operatiors burezu
Personnel
Dperations

Tetal el oparations bureau

Anmal servizes:
Ferscnnel
QOperat:ons

Tetal animzl services

Muriginal cour:
Parsonnet
Dperations

Tetal municipal cours

TOTAL POLICE SERVICES

2013 2012
ACTUAL ACTUAL
GRIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANGE BUDGETARY
BUDGEY BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET BASIS
3 IE0LF 3 447,038 agziea § G738 % 488,113
138,434 156,739 156,735 4 154,491
- 12,039 t2 03as - 40 7873
508,451 509,876 551 937 57935 550,357
174,098 150,533 80,833 - 173,501
85,653 56.598 58,537 10,161 55,052
241 531 257 531 247 370 10,161 238,685
3,607,215 3,163,123 2,896,081 267,062 3,049,383
245,013 2ER,840 758,540 - 243,509
OIS0 T1.674 7,858 126,154y 17,850
- - 38,125 (28.125) 341 486
316,814 328,614 382,923 (54,3093 603,044
1,023,141 917,722 17,722 - TS9.542
1,138,284 1,163,151 1183591 - 1,115,415
1,252,000 1,498,457 1.444 BT 54 310 656 736
3.411,495 3,575,480 3575400 54 310 2567 637
3,728,238 3,308,024 3,808,023 1 3,170,741
111,752 429,722 420721 1 L2480
1,360,202 1,282 328 4,381 704 824 1,783 955
- - - - A70E
1,771,955 1,823,080 1.812 425 [t 1656184
T 7ed248 TEA1TRE FETV 002 4750 TEEE 520
31518 482.321 “8218A 122 454.57 4
4,110,764 8,164,073 B.359150 4.882 F.7A7 054
483,377 £77 8T 475 607 2370 418, 108
206,957 205,057 192,154 12,902 179,345
EE8,134 B8, 834 567 TR 16173 555 qEa
417,448 424,738 375,330 48,408 370,084
147 G50 127 260 426 300 955 105 287
531.7208 551,908 501.630 50,358 475,381
11,082,151 11,212,055 11,141,606 71,048 10,524,113
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TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
CYER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING BOURCES (USES):
Tranzfers

Transtars aut

Total other financing sources {uses})

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
WER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SCURCES {USES) -
BUDGETARY BASIS

FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,
Beginning of penod

FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,
End of period

Adjustments to GAAF:

Reverse current year encumbrances
Record net unreaiized ga.n {loss) on nvestments

FUND BALANCE - GAAF BASIS. End of period

2013 212
ACTUAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE BUDGETARY
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET BASIS
% 43030238 & 43,308,298 § 41,400,718 1,908,580 % 38,251,284
____________ (7,384,268 {7,207 334} {3,908,312) 3,299,022 {5.190,642)
5,429,042 6,508 571 B,653,673 146 852 B.200.518
{154,553 1799 976 798,075) - 134,541
5,324,489 5,708,745 5 B5R 5OT 146,863 5,185,677
(1,056,769} {1,457, 588} 1,948,265 3,445,674 675,235
0,025,829 3,466,549 9.470.237 1,588 8.746,109
5 T960,060 3 7.969,060 11,418,522 3,449 462 9,421,342
1631482 1,210,247
99 1180}
3 13050103 I 1 R
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GEORGETOWN TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT CORPORATICN

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS:

Investments
Accounts receivable:
Sales Tax
Grants

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund Balance:
Committed
Assigned

Totai fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

128

2013 2012
9,713,398 11,341,753
825,748 851,125
2,875,172 -
13,214,318 11,992,878
549,862 984,908
549,862 984,908
12,292,845 8,770,010
371,611 2,237,980
12,664,456 11,007,970
13,214,318 11,992,878




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GEORGETOWN TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012

REVENUES:
Sales tax $ 4,663,277 3 4,138,751
Development coniributions 484 532 474,726
Investment earnings 18,408 38,303
Grant revenue 2675172 -
Other 915,891 -
Total revenues 8,758,280 4,651,780
EXPENDITURES:
General government 235202 185,399
Capital cutlay 4,066 538 6,352,838
Total expenditures 4,301,740 6,538,237
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 4,456,540 (1,886,457)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds - 1.650,000
Principal retirement (465,000} (450,000)
Interest and fiscal charges (398,234) {435,058)
Transfers out (1,936,820} {2,880,613)
Total other finanging sources (uses} (2,800,054) {2,115,672)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,656,486 (4,002,128)
FUND BALANCES, Beginning of period 11,007,970 15,010,098
FUND BALANCES, End of period $ 12,664,456 $ 11,007,970
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GEORGETOWN TRAMSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE FOR 2012)

REVEMUES:

Sales tax

Grant revenue
Investment earmings
Cther

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Cperations

Capitzl qutlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS (BEFICIENGY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCHNG SOURCES (USES):

Bond proceeds

Arincipat, interest and fiscal charges

Trarsfers out

Tetal other financing sources (uses)

EXCESS [DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES [USES) - BUDGETARY BASIS

FLUND BALANCES, Beginning of perion

FUND BALANCES - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period

Adjustments to GAAP:

Reverse current year encumbrances
Record nel urrgalized galn on invesiment

Reverse bond interest

FUND BALANCES - GAAP BASIS

End of paricd

2013 2012
ACTUAL ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE BUDGETARY
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET BASIS
s 4,050,000 4050000 5 4562277 S 513,277 L 4,138,751
. 8,788 220 2875172 15,113,058 -
20,000 20,000 19,448 {552) aso78
530,000 530,000 1,400,423 §70,423 474725
4,600,000 13,388,230 & 758,370 14,629,910} 4,551,555
268,552 265,892 254,827 14,085 187,084
4862500 15205340 3,648 071 11,647 369 4,261 679
5,131,392 15,564,832 3,902,858 11,661,934 4,448,763
{531,392) (2,176,602) 4,855, 422 7,032,024 202,792
- . . 1,680.000
(B6S,5685) |865.559) (665,559) - {887,309}
(4,948,387 £1,84,387) (1,836,820} 12,587 12,880,613)
{2,814.848) 12.814,945) 12,502,375} 12 567 RREFA: 250
{3,248,338) {4,991,548) 2,053,043 7,044 581 {1,815,130)
7,710,269 5,256,479 10,286,714 931,235 10,734,338
] 33 a1 4,363,351 12335,757 & TOTEEE 519,208
371,610 2,237 9E0
324 272
{47,745} (50,070)
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B3 12,664,456
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS:

Investments
Accounts receivable;
Delinquent taxes

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES AND FUND

BALANCES

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund Balances:

Restricted
Total fund balances

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES

131

2013 2012
1,109,220 1,743,931
136,659 144,235
1,245,879 1,888,166
136,658 138,842
136,669 138,842
1,109,220 1,749,324
1,109,220 1,749,324
1,245,879 1,888,166




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012

REVENUES:
Ad valorem taxes:

Current 5 7,356,823 3 6,814,269

Delinguent 32,074 15,727
Total ad valorem taxes 7,388,857 £,829,956
Investment earnings and other 3,758 10,171
Total revenues 7,392,655 6,840,167
EXPENDITURES:
Principal retirement : 5,887 644 5,083,987
Interest and fiscal charges 3,187,838 3,528,879
Total expenditures 9,175,482 8,612,966
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES (1,782,827) (1,772,798)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds - 3,181,711
Payment o refunding escrow agent (11,356,689) (3,416.787)
Transfers in 1,936,820 1,780,613
Refunding bonds issued 10,562,592 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,142,723 1,545,537
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (640,104) (227,262)
FUND BALANCES, Beginning of period 1,749,324 1,976,588
FUND BALANCES, End of period $ 1,109,220 $ 1,749,324
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

DERT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES (BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAPR) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE FOR 2012)

2013 2012
ORIGINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE ACTUAL
& FINAL BUDGETARY TO BUDGETARY
BUDGET BASIS BULDGET BASIS

REVENUES:
Ad valorem taxes $ 7250000 % 7,388,887 3 138,857 % $5.829,995
Investment earnings 10.00C 3.897 {6,103 8,987
Total revenues 7,260,000 7,392,794 132,794 6,839,982
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Principal, interest and fiscal charges {9.728 035} (9,088,525} 639,510 (8,239,806)
Bond proceeds - 11,005,000 11,005,000 8,415,000
Payment to refunding escrow agent - {11,832,350) {11,832 350) (9,036, 729)
Transfers in 1,949,387 1,936,820 (12,567} 1,780,613
Total other financing scurces (Uses) {7,778 648) {7,973,055) (200,407) {7,080,922)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES {USES) - BUDGETARY BASIS {518,648) {586,261) {67,613) {240,940)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of period 1,701,184 1,685,620 {5,664) 1,838,580
FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of period % 1,182,536 1,108,359 $ {73,177} 1,685,620
Adiustments to GAAP:
Reverse bond interast - 53,496
Reverse unrealized (l0ss) gain on investments (139 208
FUND BALANCE - GAAP BASIS

End of period 5 1,108,220 $ 1,749,324
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Accounts Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted
Assigned

Total fund halances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

134

2013 2012
$ 18,081,820 $ 11,355,809
23,013,225 14,452,848
107,216 100,842
$ 41,202,261 $ 25,909,499
3 972,406 $ 1,399,057
195,765 185,765
1,168,171 1,594,822
15,438,867 18,112,418
24,685,183 6,202 258
40,034,090 24,314,677
$ 41,202,261 $ 25,909,499




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012

REVENUES:
Investment earnings ) 124,363 $ 106,330
Grants & Donations 57,167 136,824
Other 39,000 808,420
Total revenues 220,530 1,052,574
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 9,583,600 8,745,206
Total expenditures 9,583,600 8,745,206
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {9,363,070) (7,692,632)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds 22,000,000 14,150,000

Interest and fiscai charges (185.719) (130,209)

Transfers in 4,347 426 1,100,000

Transfers out ' (1,079,224) {2,415,697)
Total other financing sources (uses) 25,082,483 12,704,094
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 15,719,413 5,011,462
FUND BALANCES, Beginning of period 24,314 677 19,363,215
FUND BALANCES, End of period $ 40,034,090 $ 243148677
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CITY OF GEQRGETOWN, TEXAS

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES {(BUDGET BASIS) -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - RECONCILED TO GAAP BASIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 (WITH COMPARATIVE FOR 2012}

2013 2012
ACTUAL ACTLAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BUDGETARY VARIANCE BUDGETARY
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS TO BUDGET BASIS

REVENUES:
Investment earmings 3 20,060 g £3,000 $ 124,285 % 74288 % 107,185
Graris & Donations - - 57,1E7 57,167 135,824
Other - - 35,000 38,000 508.413
Total revenues 50,000 50,000 220,458 170,456 1,053,428
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 14,405,000 28,703,570 28,379,350 324,220 13,430,387
Bond issuance cost 304,560 304,560 188.716 318,841 130,259
Total expenditures 14,709,580 29,008,130 28,565,069 443,061 13,560,606
EXCESS (DEFICIENGY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXFENDITURES {14,659 560) {28,958 130) [28,344,613) 613,517 {12,507 173}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds 158,632,560 18,632,660 22,500,000 2,457 440 14,150,000
Transfers in - - 4,347 426 4,347 428 1,100,000
Transters out (1.542.000) {1.453.000 (1,079,224) 323,776 (2,415,637
Total olher financing sources (uses) 43,685,560 18,128,560 25 268,202 7,138,642 12,834,303
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OWER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES {USES) -

BUDGETARY BASIS {970,000) {10,828 570) 3,078,411} 7752139 327,128
FUND BALANCES, Beginning of period 14,986 118 24 554 682 1B.515,232 15,339,457) 17, 7BE 147
FUND BALANCES - BUDGETARY BASIS,

End of Pericd S 44,026 118 5 14,026 119 15,438,821 $ 1,412 702 18,113,272
Adjustments 10 GAAP:
Reverse unrealized ipss on invesiments 75 (853)
Reverse current year encurmbrances 24,595 164 8,202,258
FUND BALANCES - GAAP BASIS,

End of pericd 5 41,054,080 $ 24,314,677
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Combining Financial Statements
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds - The City's utilities are accounted for and operated in a manner simifar to private
business enterprises. Each ulifily, accounted for as an independent enlily, s an enferprise fund.
Enterprise fund accounting is used where the infent of the City Council is to finance or recover the costs
of providing goods or services o the general public on a continuing basis primarily through user charges
or when the City Council has decided that periodic determipation of net income s appropriate for
accountability purposes.

Airpart Fund - used to account for revenues and expenses related to the operation and maintenance of
the City's airport. All activities necessary to provide such services are accounied for in this fund
including, but not limited to, adminisiration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt
service, billing, collection and capital improvements.

Stormwater Brainage Fund - used to account for revenues and expenses related to the operations,
capital projects, and debt service of the stormwater drainage facilities.

Internal Service Fund - This fund is used fo account for services performed by one government
organization or department for ofhers.

Fleet Management Fund - The City uses this fund to purchase and account for ail major equipment and
vehicles. Each item is assigned an annual lease value which the leasing departiment pays to the
Internal Service Fund. The annual lease value is detarmined by the projected replacement cost divided
by the years of useful life of the item. The payments made by the departments enable the Internal
Service Fund to replace equipment and vehicles on a pre-planned schedule to minimize maintenance
costs and reduce safety risks due to worn out egquipment and vehicles. The fund also provides
maintenance for all vehicles through the Vehicie Service Center.

Joint Services Fund - The Joint Services Fund is composad of depariments which provide services 1o
more than one city fund. Charges for services provided are determined by allocating each specific
department's cost to the using fund.

Facilittes Maintenance Fund - The City uses this fund to account for janitorial service, light
maintenance, painting, landscape maintenance and reofing and air conditioning repairs for all City
buildings. Each building is assigned an annual maintenance cost, which is paid to the Internal Service
Fund by the cccupying departments, based on square footage occupied. The payments made by the
departments enable the Intermal Service Fund to provide major and miner facility repairs on a pre-
planned schedule to minimize maintenance costs and provide preventative care to reduce leng-term
maintenance and replacement costs.

Information Services Fund - The City uses this fund to account for purchases and maintenance of the
City's computer systams. Each department pays an annual predetermined lease payment, based upen
the equipment the department has. These payments enable the fund to replace older equipment and
upgrade the City's computer resources and provide assistance in maintenance of equipment. This fund
also provides for the management of the City's computer systems through persannel in the Information
Services depantment.




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS:
Curreni Asseta:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable:

Services (net of allowance for uncoliectibles)
inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Land and land rghts
Distribution system
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, furniture and equipment
Consiruchion in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capitsl assets (net of accurmuiated depreciation)
Tolal noncurrent assefs

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Liabilities:
Currant liahilities:
Accolnts payabte
Accrued Employee benefits
Current poriton of long-term debt
Accrued interest
Total current liabilities

Noncurent habilities:
Accrued Employee benefits
Long-term delit payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total fabilities

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets (net of related dekt)
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

STORMWATER TOTAL

AIRPORT DRAINAGE NONMAJOR
FUND FUND ENTERPRISE FUNDS
81,524 655,649 $ 737,173
103,757 834,463 938,220
254,323 264,443 518,766
44,927 - 44,927
484,531 1,754,555 2.238,086
981,500 - 981,500
73,335 30,622,292 30,601 627
9,641,425 - 9,641,425
157,577 14,050 161,627
- 40,250 40,250
(6,736,453) (6,072,674} {12,808,527)
4,103.384 24 504.518 28,607,902
4,103.384 24,504,518 28,607,902
4,587,215 26,259,073 $ 40,846,988
67,661 52,391 5 160,552
8,074 20,266 28,340
137,951 297,127 435,078
3,858 12,072 15,930
217,544 422 386 639,800
11,588 29,444 41,030
614,165 2,564,840 3,179,005
625,751 2 594,284 3,220,035
843,295 3,016,840 3,859,935
3,351,269 21,642,550 24,993,819
393,351 1,599,883 1,093,234
3,744,620 23,242 433 26,987,053
4,587,915 26,259,073 $ 30,846,388
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT COF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING REVEMNUES:

Other
Total operating revenues

OFERATING EXPENSES:
Depreciation
Other

Total operating expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings
Donations and grants
Interest and fiscal charges
Other
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)

INCOME {LOSS] BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital cortributions
Transfers out

Total contributions and transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION - beginaing of peried
RESTATEMENT

TOTAL NET POSITION - beginning of period, as restated

TOTAL NET POSITION - end of period

STORMWATER TOTAL
AIRPORT DRAINAGE NGNMAJOR
FUND FUND FUNDS

2,906,267 2,206.108 5,112 375
2,906,267 2,206,108 5,112,375
155.598 842,847 998 445
2,967,558 1,240,936 4,208,494
3,123,156 2,083,783 5,206,939
{216,889) 122,325 (94,564)
1,240 8,805 8,045
25,589 - 25,589
(48,394) (120,389} (168,783)
31,144 - 31,141
9 576 (113.584) (104.,008)
(207,313) 8,741 {188,572)
. 1,339,193 1,339,193
- (177,859) {177,859)

- 1,161,334 1,161,334
{207,313) 1,470,078 862,762
3,989,755 22,160,827 26,150,582
(37,822) (68,469) {126,261)
3,951,933 22,072,358 26,024,291
3,744,620 23,242,433 26,987,053

133



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERFPRISE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

STORMWATER TOTAL
AIRPORT DRAINAGE NONMAJOR
FUND FUND ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers 3 2,922 118 5 2213373 % 5,135,489
Payments to supplisrs i2,699,273) (1,048,348) (3,747 621)
Franchise fees - (66,183) (66,183)
Payments to employees for servicas (263,034) {239,303) {502,334
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities {40,191} 859,538 819,348
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCGING ACTIVITIES
Transfers out - {177.858) (177,859
Net cash provided by (used for} noncapital

financing activities - {177,858} {177,858)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acguisition of capital assets 63,827 [758,524) (862 351}
Daonations and grants 25 589 - 25,589
Bond issuance costs {1,113} {5,984) (7,087}
Principal paid on revenue and certificates of obligation bonds (112,927) {266,322) (379,249}
Interest paid en revenue and certificates of obligation bonds {49.114) {122.824) (171,938}
Net cash provided by (used for} capitat and related

financing activities {201,392} {1,193,654) {1,395,048)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest recaived 1,240 5,805 8.045
Change in temporary investments 134,582 282,894 417,486
Net cash provided by {used for} investing activities 135,832 289,659 425,531
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (105,751} {222,275} {328,026)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 187,275 877 924 1,065,199
Cash and cash equivaients at end of year $ 81,524 $ 655,649 $ 737173
Classified as:

Currant assets 31,524 655,649 737,173
Total 3 81,524 $ 655,649 3 7ITAT3
Nan-cash disclesure

Developer contributions 3 - $ 1,339,193 $ 1,339,193

{continued)
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT QF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED}
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS} $

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
cash provided by (used in} operating activities:
Depreciation
Other income
Decrease (increase) in nventoriss
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
Increase {decrease} in accrued employee benefits

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3

STORMWATER TOTAL
AIRPORT DRAINAGE NONMAJOR

FUND FUND ENTERPRISE FUNDS
(216,889) 122325 $ (94,564)

155,506 842,847 998,445

31,141 ; 31141

7,920 . 7.920

10,297 7,265 17,562
(30,120} £121,545) (151,665

1,862 8,847 10,508

(40,191) 859,539 5 819,348
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
AS OF SEFTEMEBER 30, 2013

ASSETS:

Current:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Prepaid expense

Accounts raceivable
invertories

Total current assets

Property and equipment:
Land and land rights
Butldings and improvements
Machinery, furniture and equiprnent
Units in progress
Total property and equipment cost
Less accumulated depreciation
MNet property and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:

Liakilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payahle

Accrued employee benefits
Total current liabilities

Long term liabifities:
Accrued employes benefits
Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Invested in capital assets (net of refated dett)
|Unrestricted

Total net position

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET POSITION

FLEET JOINT FACILITIES INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT SERVICES MAINTENANCE  SERVICES TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND 2013
$ 940012 $ 403150 § 477662 § 272285 5 2093098
1,196,378 513,112 607.933 346,519 2,663,942
- 7,400 - . 7,400
. 21,342 - - 21,342
- 330,512 - - 330512
2,136,390 1,375,525 1,085,595 618,764 5.116,204
; 214,086 - - 214,066
26,181 813,680 831,866 . 1,671,727
18,940,629 1,171,440 704,641 4,965,842 25,782,552
- - 459,582 - 459,582
18,966,810 2,199,186 1,996,089 4,965,842 28,127,927
{11.301,220) (1,941,619 {1,007.361) (4,026,154 (18,276,854)
7,665,590 257 567 988,228 539,688 9,551,073
$§ 9801980 $ 1533002 § 2073823 & 1,558472 § 14,967,367
$ 107577 5 783247 $ 120682 § 100,067 § 1,126,572
15,706 . 16,961 23,561 56,228
123,283 789,247 137 643 132,628 1,182,801
20,908 - 26,553 34,000 81,462
144,192 789247 164,195 186,628 17264 263
7,665,590 257 567 968,228 939,688 9,851,073
1,992,198 486,278 921,399 452,156 3,852,031
5,857,788 743,845 1,909,627 1,391,844 13,703,104
$ 9,801,980 $ 1,533,092 5 2073823 5 1,558,472  § 14,967,367
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES [N FUND NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES - Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administration

Accaunting

City wide HR services

Conservation

Econamic devalopment administration
Employee and organizational services
Farilities maintenance contracts
Facilities maintenance services
Finance and administration

Fleet management operations

GE8

[nformation resources

Information rescurces capftal replacement & contracts
Juint services contracts

Legal services

Main Street

Purchasing

Service center

Systems engineering

Utility office

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Investment earnings

Qther

Total nonoperating revenues

INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total contributions and transfers

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of period

NET POSITION, End of period

FLEET JOINT FACILITIES INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT SERVICES MAINTENANCE SERVIGES TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUNE 2013

2,058,382 $ 9127417 $ 2047778 § 2,651,780 15,785,357
- 706,304 - - 796,304

- 590,808 - 580,800

- 221,894 - - 221,894

- 320,555 - - 320,555

- 337,528 - - 337 528

- 834,574 - . 634,574

- - 1,122,301 - 1,122,301

- - B21,6882 - 621,882

- 925,570 - - 925,570
366,718 - - 366,718

- 368,704 368,704

- - - 931,202 931,202

- - 1,431,036 1.431,036

1,159,961 - - 1,150,961

- 540,733 - - 540,733
128,407 - . 128 407

- 565.796 - - 565,796
1,062,483 - - - 1,052,483
- 1,667,286 - - 1,687,268

- 1,364,262 - - 1,364,262
1,122,955 20,888 128,637 904 473 2,174,953
2,542,156 9,274,567 1,870,820 3,635,418 17,322,958
(483,774) {147,150} 176,958 {1,083,635) {1,537,601)
11,542 1,893 7,804 7.581 28,820
63,880 133,615 - 16,003 213,498
75,422 135,508 7,804 23.584 242,218
(408,352) {11,642) 184,762 (1,060,051) {1,295,283)
93,145 - (40,302) 13,602 BE.445
1,598,171 198,243 136,000 251,173 2,181,587
} . {89.779) - {88,776}
1,689,315 195,243 {4,081} 264,775 2,148,253
1,280,964 186,601 180,631 {795,276) 852,970
3,376,824 557.244 1,728.444 2,187,120 12,850,134
8,657,788 3 743,845 5 1,969,627 § 13591544 13,703,104
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

FLEET JOINT FACILITIES INFORMATIGN
MANAGEMENT SERVICES MAINTENANCE SERVICES TOTAL
_ FUND FUND FUND FUND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIKNG ACTIVITIES:
Deparment contributions 5 2122282 $ 5425792 § 2,047,778 3 2,567,983 $ 16,163,815
Payments to suppliers {831,583) {9.002,139) {1,270,6827) (1.695,766) {12,900,095)
Payments to employess for services {486,859) - (400,543) {1,054 385) {1,941787)
Met cash provided by {used in} operating activities 703,840 423,653 376,608 {182,168} 1,321,833
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCARITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in 1,596,171 188,243 136,000 251173 2,181,587
Transfers out - - {99,775} - (89.77%
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital

financing activities 1,596,171 198,243 36,221 251,173 2,081,808
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets (1,643,985) (18,402) {49,026) (175,479} (1,886,832
Net cash provided by (used in}

capitat and related financing activities (1,643,985) {18,402 {49,026} {175,479} {1,886,892)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest recsived 11,542 1,893 7,804 7.581 28,820
Change in tamporary invesiments (373,838} {338,017 {208,100 55,380 {865,575}
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (362,296} {337,124) {200,296) 62,981 (836,755)
Met increase {decrease) in cash 293,730 266,370 163,507 (43,513) 680,094
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning cof year 545,282 136,789 314,155 315,778 1,413,004
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year 940,012 403,159 477,662 272,265 2,093,098
Classified as:

Current assets 940,012 403,159 477 862 272,265 2,093,098
Total 3 840,012 % 403,158 & 477,662 & 272,265 $ 2,093,008
MNon-cash disclosure

Proprietary transfer to intemal service funds 5 - ¥ 5 - 5 13,602 $ 13,602

Governmental transfers to internal service funds 93,145 - {40,302} - 52,843

{continued)
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2013

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
cash provided by (used in} operating activities:
Depreciation
Other income
Dacrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable
Inerease (decrease) in accounts payahle
Increase (decrease) in accrued employee benefits

Net cash provided by {used in) operafing aclivilies

FLEET JOINT FACILITIES INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT SERVICES MAINTENANCE SERVICES TOTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND 2013
$  (483774) 3 (147,150) $ 176958  $ (1,083,535) § (1,537.801)
1,122,955 20,888 126,637 804,473 2,174,953
63,880 133,615 - 16,003 213,498
- 21,363 - . 21,363
- 164,760 - 200 164 960
1.757 230,177 71693 (28,384) 275,243
(978) - 1,320 9,175 9,517
3 703,840 F 423,653 § 378,808 § {182 168} 3 1,321,833
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Supplementary Individual Fund
Financial Statements — Enterprise Funds

These supplementary staterments are included to provide management additional information for
financial analysis.




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

ELECTRIC FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMEER 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSBETS:
Curremnt Assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash egubvalents - restricted
tnvestments
Investments - restricted
Frepaid expenses
Accounts receivable;
Services (net of allowance for uncolleclibes)
Cther
Irventories
Toial curent assets

Nancurrent Agsets:
Deferred charges « band issuance costs
Total noncurrent asseis

Property and Equipment:

Land and |and rights
Distribution system
Buildings and improvernents
Machinery, furniture and eguipment
Canstruction in progress

Tewal cost propery and equipmendt
Less accumulated deareciation

MNat property and equiprment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Liabilities:
Currant izbilities:
Accounts pavabie
Accrued employes benefits
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest
Tota! current fabififies payable from unresiicted assets

Current liabilities payahle from resiricted assets:
Construction contracts and retainages payable
Cusiomer depcsits

Tolal current Nakitiies payabie from resincied assels

Total current fabiities

Long term liakilities:
Accrued employee benefits
\Inearmed revenue
Long-term debt
Tatal noncurrent abiifies
Tofal Fahiffies

Net Position:
Investad in capital assers (et of ralated dabit)
Unrestricted

Total net pasition

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

TOTALS

2012

$ 2638798
242,794

3740288

436,382

388,000

8,455.398
518.336
3323546
20,113,552

4,120,807
19532 483
73,707
2,068,846
271,816
123,467,759

34,383,059
89,084,890

H 109,198,242

3 4,661,348
177 6473

2,095,571

130,996

7,065 958

3,378
775078
782453

7852411

381,335
24 585,720
25,277,055
33,129,465

64,131,499
11,937 277
TEOES 778

S osass2er

148

2012

3 1,797 448
EYRRL-T

2,983,708

472 441

8,821,328
317.833
2,326,742
149,084,668

{107,125
{107,125

1,120,807
107,275,502
¥3.707
1,944,147
5,668,584
117,082,757

20,909, 3043

96,173,453

S fosasges

s 3,564 655
150,152

2,141,898

130,689

5,987,378

3,375
£43.565
A4B,540

6,834,315

324 925
9G0.085
24,442,045
25,697,050
32,531,374

59,589,503
13,030,113
72.B19,622

S 0515090



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

ELECTRIC FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012

QPERATING REVENUES:
Electric services b 53,780,319 $ 58,403,735
Cther:

Penalties 389,745 424,018

Connection and hookup fees 573,815 516,862
Total other 963,560 940,880
TOTAL OPERATING REVYENUES 54,743,979 59,344,615
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Electric cperations:

Personnel 4118430 3.8687723
Cperations 3,147 003 4,960,318

Total electric operations 7265433 8.828,039
Depreciation 3473765 4 668,208
Electric contracts 34,760,711 41,581,895
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 45,499,909 55,377,043
NET CPERATING INCOME 9,244,070 3,966,672
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment earnings 37282 57,443

Interest and fiscal charges {1.043.113) (1,029,405}

Donations and grants - 7272

Other 2,332,837 21225825
Total nonoperating revenuas (expenses) 1.327.006 1,167 935
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 10,571,076 5,124,607
GCONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributions 510,454 811,231
Transfers out {7.195.714) {4,175,597}

Total contributions and transfers (6.685.260) {3.264,386)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,885,816 1,860,241
NET POSITION, Beginning of period 72619622 70,759,381
RESTATEMENT {436,662} -
NET POSITION, End of period $ 76,068,776 $ 72,619,822
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

WATER SERVICES FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash ang cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Investments
Investments - restncted
Prepaid expenses
Accounts receivable;
Services (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Other
Tatal curremnt assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Long-term nowe receivables

Daferred charges - oond issuance costs
Total noncurrent assels

Property and Equipment:

Land and :and righis
Drstribution system
Buildings and imeravemenis
Machinery, furniture 2nd equipment
Construction in progress

Total cost property ard equipment
Less accumuiated depreciation

Net property and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Arccounts payable
Accried emplaoyee benefits
Current portion of lang-term debt
Accrued intarast

Tatal current liabifities payable from unrestricted assets

Current liabilities payablie from restricted assets:
Censtruction conracts and retainages payable

Total current iabifities payable from restricted assets

Total current liabiiities

lang term lighilities:
Accrued employee benedits
Long-term debt
Total nencurrent liabilities
Taota! iabiities

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt)
Unresiricted

Total net position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

TOTALS

56.958.296)

150

2013

7,863,365

289,480
9,595,656
2,198,051
1,935,843

3,080,650
504,809
26,717,684

1,053 422

1,083,422

469,355
211,868,057
3.018,793
446 588
11,921,548
226,925,339

169,969,043

197,740,148

785,457
112,297
2,716,899
163 521
3,768,414

556913
556,318

4,325,332

184,818
29,375 488
29,450,308
33,815,638

141,814 2368
22,119.275
183,924 511

197,740,149

2012

3 5,802,544
£18.583

7,512,824
2,509,554
1,642,858

4,788 880
1,348,692
24,124,136

1115036
454,493
1,566,529

469,355
198 803,230
2,019,792
417,118
16,198,338
219,707 bad

{51,808,723)
167,898,161

§ 193,588,826

3 G83.514
103,305

2,557 883

156.683

3.801.665

636,439
836438

4438,104

153,362
29,608,177
30,061,539
34,499,643

137 808,013
21,280,170
153 083,153

3 193,588,825



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

WATER SERVICES FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

DOPERATING REVENUES:
Water/|rrigation;
Water services
Wastewater sarvices
Irrigation sarvices
Watarf\Wastewater tap fees
Totail waterfirrigation

Other:
FPenalties
Connection and hookup fees
Service feas

Total other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Water services distribution:
Persanne|
Cperations
Total water services distribution
Depreciation
Water services plant management
VWater services contracts

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING INCOME

NCNOPERATING REVENMUES {EXPENSES):

investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Other

Tatal nonoperating revenue (expenses)

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBLUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:

Capitat contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out

Totai contributions and transfers

CHANGE IN NET FOSITION

. NET POSITION, Baginning of pariad

RESTATEMENT

NET POSITION, End of perfod

213

2012

3 16,326,985
8,384,470

218,940

1,317,047

16,432 979
8,281,802
311,820
592,412

26,247 455

25,719,013

185,949
80,007
750,952

596,508

183,389
57,458
526.638

27,244,363

877.496

26,596,509

2.317.767
5419.774

7.737.541

5,146.573

2,320,108

6,719,601

2,304,673
4,749,181

7,053,864

5.061.453

4.349.341

§.419.081

21,923,823

20,883,709

5,320,540

5,712,800

80,595
(920,540}
2,555,280

1,715,735

87.017
(713.569)
1,844,052

7,018,275

1,217,500

6,836,200

2,708,649
69,108
(4,415,334)

1,627,292
69,108
(2,209,300}

{1,637 577)

(612,800

5,298,693
155,089,183

(563,370)

& 163,924,511

5,317,400

162,771,783

159,089,183 .
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STORMWATER DRAINAGE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 and 2012

TOTALS

2013
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 655,644
Investments 834 463
Accounts receivable:
Services (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 264,443
Total current assets 1,754,555
MNoncurrent Assets:
Ceferred charges - bond issuance costs -
Total noncurrent assets -
Property and Equipment:
Distribution system 30,522,292
Machinery, furniture and equipment 14,050
Consfruction in progress 40,250
Total cost property and equipment 30,576,592
Less accumuiated depreciation {6,072, 074)
Net property and equipment 24,504 518
TOTAL ASSETS § 26,259,073
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Liabiiities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 a2 881
Accrued ermployee benefits 20,266
Current portion of long-term debt 297 127
Accrued inferest 12,0672
Total cusrent tiahilities 422356
Long ferm liabilities:
Accrued employee benefits 25444
Long-term debt 2,564,840
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,594 284
Total liabilities 3,016,640
Net Position:
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) 21,842 550
Unrestricted 1,599,883
Total net position 23,242 433
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 5 26,259,073

152

877,924
1,117,357

271,708

2,266,988

82,485

82,485

27 933,290
14,050
491,536

28,438,876
(5,229,228}

23,208.648

25,569,122

214,436
16,398
280,163
14,507

525,504

24,865
2,848,126

2,872,791

3,398,295

20,081,359
2,078,468

22,160,827

%

25,569,122




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

STORMWATER DRAINAGE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENLUES:
Stormwater drainage fees

Qther:
Penaities
Total other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Stormwater drainage:
Fersonnel
Cperations
Capital Quilay
Total stormwater drainage

Depreciation
TOTAL QPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENLES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings

Interest and fiscal charges

Total nonoperating ravenus {expenses)

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributions

Transfers out

Total contributions and transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of period

RESTATEMENT

NET FOSITION, End of period

2013

$ 2,189,968

2012

16,140

2,118,378

16,140

14.432

2,206,108

14,432

247 950
092,987

2,132,810

191 642
836,752
2,146

1,240,236

842.847

1,029,540

773,304

2,083,783

122,325

1,802,844

8,805
{120,389)

329,966

(113,584)

9,689
(102,175)

8,741

(92,485)

237 ABO

1,339,193
(177 858)

1,161,334

1,479,198
(149,297)

1,170,075
22,160,827

(88,458

1,329 901

$ 23,242,433

1,567,381

20,503,446

153

22,160,827




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

AIRPORT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eguivalenis
Inveskments
Accounts recaivable:

Senaces {net of allowance for uncotlectibles)
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Deferred charges - bond issuance Gosts
Total noncurrent assets

Property and Equipment:
Land and land rights
Distribution system
Bedldings and improvements
Machinery, furniture and aquipment
Total cost property and equipment
Less accumuiated depreciation
MNet property and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Liahbiiities:
Current ligbilites:
Accounts payable
Accrued employee benefits
Currert portion of long-term debt
Acerued interest
Total currant labilities

l.oing term liabilities:
Accrued emplayee benefits
Long-term debt
Total nancurrent liabilities
Total tiabilities

Net Position:
Imvested in capital assets (net of related debt)
Unrestricted

Total net position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

154

TOTALS

23

81,524

103,757

254323
44,027

484 531

951,500
79,335
9,641,425
137.577

10,839,837
(6, 736.453)

4,103,384

4,587,915

67,661
5,074
137,951
3,858

217,544

11,586
514,165

523,751

543,205

3,351,260
393,351

3,744,620

4,587,815

212

187,275

238,348

264520
§2.847

743,081

36,709

36,709

981,500
79,335
B.577.597
137577

10,776,009
(6,580.854)

4,195,155

4,974,955

97,781
7.233
126,778
4,578

233,370

10.565
730,265

748,830

§85,200

3,330,111
E59,644

3,888,755

4,974,955




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

AIRPORT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES N FUND NET POSITION

FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:
Fuel saies

Contract leases

Hangarfie down rental fees
Terminal sales

Cther

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administration:

Personnel

Cperations

Capital
Total administration

Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPERATING LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings

Interast and fiscal charges

Dongtions and grants

Other

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses}

TRANSFERS:
Transfers out
Total fransfers

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of period
RESTATEMENT

NET POSITION, End of period

2013

2012

$

2,332,810
215,079
345,916

2.985
9677

2.341,998
217,024
320,322

1,800

2,906,267

2,881,144

264,886
2.718,962

{16,300)

258,437
2,458,478
90,772

2,967,558

165,588

2,808,857

157.432

3,123,158

2,866,119

(216,889}

(84,975}

1,240
(48 ,394)
25,589
31,144

2,180
(46,626)

140,329
37,291

9.579

133,174

(45,940)

(45 940)

(207,313)

3,889,755

(37.822)

2,259

3,987,486

3,744,620

3,989,755
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Agency Funds
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

The Agency Fund is used lo account for assets and liabilities hefd by the Cily acting as an agent for
others.

Public improvement Districts (FID) — to account for the receipt of the revenue collected from
property assessments paid by Cimarron Hills residents to fund the infrastructure of the new
deveiopment. The City acts as an agent for the collection of the assessments and then sends
the revenue to an Escrow Agent for Cimarron Hills.

Texas Capital Fund Repayments — to account for the lease payments received from businesses who
have benefited from the Texas Capital Fund economic development grants and the corresponding
payments to the state to repay the grants. Reedholm instruments, inc., Xycarb Ceramics, and USA
Schunk Quartz, Inc., are the businesses currently in the repayment/lease mode for these grants.




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER 1, SEFTEMBER 390,
2012 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2013

Public Improvement Districts:

ASSETS:

Cash and cash eruivalents S 4,079 2,553 4738 2,817 656 38,901

AGCounts receivable 257,451 - 257,451 -

TOTAL ASSETS s 261,530 2,653,478 2,875,107 39,801

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable b 8,766 2,653,478 2,622,343 39,801

Bue to other governments 252 764 - 252,764 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 281,530 2,653,478 2,875,107 39,901
Texas Capital Fund Repayments:

ASSETS:

Accourts receivable 3 359,143 - T3.757 285 386

TOTAL ASSETS $ 359,143 - 73,757 285,386

LIABILITIES:

Due to other govemmenis § 355 142 - 73,787 285,356

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 355,143 - 73,757 285,336
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents b 4079 2653478 2 617,656 39,801

Accounts receivable 616,504 - 331,208 285 386

TOTAL ASSETS $ 820,673 2,653,478 2,548,864 325,287

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable $ 8,766 2653478 2,822 343 39,801

Due to other governmenits 511,807 - 326,521 285,336

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 620,673 2,683,478 2,848,864 325,287
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS
Land 3 9,654,248 3 8,226,949
Buildings 55,722,175 - 55,618,858
Improvements 197,002,817 175,327,032
Machinery, furniture and equipment 7,640,185 7,326,131
Construction in progress 16,140,405 22,390,637
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 286,159,840 $ 268,889,607
INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS
General Fund ' $ 6,388,676 $ 6,262,773
Capital Projects Funds:

General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation 113,184,984 103,339,203

State grant 4,100,020 1,007,385

Other 146,647 916 145,400,368
Spectal Revenue Funds:

Federal grant 2,265,506 2,265,506

Cther 4,415,118 2,383,250

State grant 2,351,975 2,351.975
Transfer from proprietary fund 4,829,208 3,902,708
Acquisitions prior to August 31, 1885 - source

undetermined 1,976,439 1,976,439
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAFPITAL ASSETS $§ 286,159,840 $ 268,889,607
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CONSTRUCTION
LAND BUILDINGS IMPROVEMENTS ECQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS ToTAL
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Culture-recreation
Library % - % 11,0735082 b E1,340 £3 922 330 3 - i 12026622
Farks adminisiration - 539193 1,880,082 32,718 - 2551974
Farks maintenance Fd3.675 AG55 2,417,735 247 292 - 3 414 521
Recrealion 1.627 664 2148070 1,145,528 1,050,085 - =876 332

Totai cuiture-recreation 2,271,243 13,867 300 5,508,586 2252 310

Developmeant

Planring admiristration - - - 124728 - 124728
Flanring - - 38242 - 34292
Long range planning -
Inspections - - B5.9750 - 35575
Total development - - 274 345 - 22& 915
Economic development
Adminsiration : : o EEOOE w9 : 20459
Total economic development - - 23,000 5,485 - 30,489
Environmental services
Enviranmental services 494 O0C - - 79.573 - BY3.873
Total environmental services 484000 T T ESE : 578573
Fira
Administratior. 13,614 - 1,564,547 103,508 - 2071672
Cparatiens - 2,896,071 R 241,380 OB - 3,507,983
Total fire 13,614 28968,0°1 2,195,897 74,131 - 35796583
General Governmert
City ceungil S53,.0E4 522136 145,832 47,998 - 1,270,080
ity manzger's office 2HGER2 - 115,592 24,507 - EETRE]
Faciltias B55 044 30 553,405 3,775,517 355 586 - 95 935742
Ganeral governmert 2,330,048 7180181 4,471,898 673,784 - 14 £65 709
Total general government - 388 26 . 38305_31_ g‘_ 0,459,628 1.162,065 - 51,808 E42
Highways and straets
Bridges - - 10,277 Q22 - - 10,277 022
Btreets - - 150,457,222 343 409 - 180,B0E.E41
Streats czpital imaravemenis 24994368 - 149,522,042 423,044 - 22,4335 552
Total highways and streets 2. 994,368 - 180286, 267 772,453 - 184,023,115
Police
Admimisiration - §5.521 466,825 1,429,188 - 1,981,438
Operaticrs Sureay - - - G36 282 - 93E,262
Animal services - THY.E4 90,485 90,207 - 368,237
Municipal court - - - 13,602 - 13,802
Total palice - 253,082 557,318 2,469,259 - 3 875,529
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 5,654,258 £5722,173 |z ety qeoas 7 : - RIS
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS - ~ - - 15,140,405 “6,140,208
- - - 16140405 6,140,408
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS §  GEBAZAE & IBT2A17E H SOr.002.Eny ] 7 B40, 195 H 16,140,405 3 286,159 B4D

This schedula oresents only the capital 2sset balances related to governmental funds. According’y, the
capitai Assa’s related to nternzal service funds are exclaced from the above amounds,
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CITY OF GEOCRGETOWN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2013

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Culture-recreatton
Library
Farks admiristration
FParks mainfenance
Fecreation

Total culture-racreation

Devalopment
Planning adminisiration
Planring
Inspections

Total develapment

Economic development
Administration
Total economic devefopment

Environmental services
Erviranmental services
Total economic develupment

Fire
Administration
Ciperations

Total fire

General govertiment
City souncil
Caiy manager's office
Facilitics
General government
Total generai government

Highways and streets
Bridges
Streets
Slreets capital imorovements
Total highways and streets

Folice
Administration
Operations bureau
Animal services
Municipal eourt

Total police

TOTAL GAPITAL ASSETS

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS

BALANGE BALANGE
93042012 ADDITIONS DELETIQNS $30/2013

12,056 622 - . 12.056.622
2.551,974 . - 2,551,974
3,414,591 - - 3,414,591
4207287 1,648,045 - 5 876,332
22,250,474 1,645,045 - 23,899,519
124,728 - . 124738
34,212 - 34,212
65.975 - - 65,975
224915 - - 224.915
30,480 - - 3,459
30459 - 30,489
573,573 - - 573,573
573.573 - - 573.573
83,557 2,074,847 - 2,158,404
3,389,347 118 637 - 3,507,584
3.472.904 2193484 . 5 663,388
1,370,050 - - 1,370,950
430,163 6.878 437 041
20,508,586 - - 30,506,536
19,287 867 119,944 - 19.407.837
51,594,588 128 822 . 51,721,608
9,588,154 9,588, 191
143470255 2.793,285 - 152,263,540
5,415,554 15,757,829 - 22,173,383
164,472,000 19.551.114 . 184,023 114
1.961.538 - - 1.961.538
Q36 262 . . 936,262
9BR,227 - - 968,227
13,602 - . 13,602
3,878,529 - - 3,875,629
246,498 570 23,520,465 - 270,040 435
22.390.837 14.718.783 20.560.025 16.140.405
22,350,537 14.716.793 20,969,025 16,140,405
768,885,507 38,239,258 20,660,028 286.158.840

This schedule presants only ihe capilal assel balances related 1o governmental funds. Accardingly, the
capital assets related to internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts.
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Georgetown's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.

Contants:

Financial Trend

These schedufes cbntafn trend information 1o help the reader understand how the
government’s financial performance and well-being have changed over fime.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's
maost significant focal revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information fo help the reader assess the affordability
of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicafors to help the reader
understand the environment within which the government’s financial activities
take place.

Operating information

These schedules confain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government’s financial report related
to the services the government provides and the activities it performs

Sources. Unless otherwise noted, the informaticn in these schedules is derived fram the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in 2003; schedules
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.




CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total gavernmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities nat position

Primary government
Invested n capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

2013

2012

2011

2010

$ 174,798,105

$ 168,511,071

$ 157,839,959

$ 148,011,871

1,100,220 1,748,324 11,164,691 20,329,342
40,995,207 28,542,479 21,859,346 15,909 956
+$ 216,802 532 % 188,802,874 $ 19G,803,886 § 184,251.168

5 230,938,554

36,040,788

$ 220,809,892

37,049,395

§ 210,252,607

30,771,961

$ 107,910,197

35,786,263

$ 266,980,340

§ 257 659,387

$ 241,024,868

§ 233686460

% 405,737,659
1,109,220
77,035,993

$ 388,321,083
1,749,324
B5,581.674

$ 388,092,868
11,104,581
52,631,307

$ 345822068
20,329,242
51,696,219

b 483882872

$ 456,862 261

$431,828,784

3 417,947,625
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 142,880,051 $ 133,508,840 $ 116,738,893 $ 122,268,551 $ 107,692,319 $ 98,516,068
22,047 068 20,856,842 36,306,468 18,284,528 16,838,756 12,067 284
14,563,686 16470,172 5,598,174 6.567.654 9,833,877 7,168,828

$179,470,803

3 170,835,754

3 158,643,540

3 147.060.734

$ 134,363,052

3 115.753,180

$187,953.410

33,007,046

3 167,724,985

29144 912

5 141211847

30,295,984

& 117419122
5,389,063
30,842,450

$ 96081179
1,251,844
31,383,246

§ 88.000994
389,312
29,760,025

$ 221,460,956

3 198,868,907

$ 171,507,941

§ 153,750,635

$ 130,726,269

$ 118,150,331

$330,813,481
22,047 066
48,071,232

$ 301.233.935
20,856,642
46,615,084

$ 257,950,845
36,306,468
35,894,168

$ 239,687,673
23,643,592
37,810,104

$ 205,773,498
18,088,800
41,227,223

$ 184,517,062
12,456,596
36,829,853

$ 400.931.759

3 367.705.661

5 330,151,481

5 300,841,369

$ 265,089,321

3 233,803,511
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Expenses
Governmenial activities:
Culture-recreation
Development
Fire
General government
Palice
Streets
Environmental services
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activitias
Airport
Electric
Environmental sesvices
Stormwater
Water
Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary government expenses
Program Revenues
Governmental aclivities;
Charges for services:
Culture-recreation
Deée!opment
Fire
General governrnant
Police
Strests
Environmental services
Cperating grants and contribufions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities
program revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services:
Alrport
Electric
Environmental services
Stormwater
Water
Operating grants and cantributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type activities
program revenues
Total primary government
program revenues
Net (expense}revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government net expense

2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 9775209 $ 9328048 $ 9.383.530 $ 8,076,669
1.650.530 2,284,858 2,374,321 2,345,178
8,144,092 8,634,002 8,110,294 7,196,359
8,447,308 4,861,250 2293,370 5,201,299
12,042,342 11,522,334 11,025,444 10,787,024
5,459,183 5,564,890 5,522,933 5,730,882
4,855,404 4,830,921 4,339,101 4,206,166
3,808,108 4,375,653 3,656,673 3,624,723
53,180,181 51,391,756 50,719,666 48168110
3.171,550 3,012,745 3.751,193 2,811,208
46,543 022 56,407,348 54,289,631 50,756,369
2,204,172 1,905,019 1,970,307 1,789,680
22,844.383 21,587,278 22,224,384 20,124,249
74,763,107 82,922,390 82,235 495 75 491,504

§ 127,943,288

$ 134,314 146

5 152,955 181

3 123,658,614

$ 2425587 $ 22857209 $ 2,252608 $ 21450107
1,659,670 1,668,635 805,118 1,125,058
1,433,679 1,137,882 1,032,663 1,195,871
1,261,561 1,206,894 435,826 487,264

959,027 896,703 1,009,004 1,265,589
1,125 - - -
6,059,904 5,491 485 5118570 4,808,271
256,593 955,438 962,183 405,023
5,008 666 2,431,374 4,422,720 2,747,483
20,056,812 16,073,830 16,136,792 14,185,666
2,806,267 2,881,144 3.288.816 2,435,613
54,743,979 589.344.615 58,535,067 60,136,705
2,208,108 2132810 2.036.047 1,860,007
27,244,383 26,596,509 27142 B48 22022414
25,589 147,601 127,051 -
4,558,256 3817721 2,062,382 4,842 643
1,684,602 95,020,400 83,292,011 91,386,382

S 111,741,414

$ 111,084,230

§ 109,428,803

$ 105,582,048

5 (33,123,369}
16,821,495

$ (35.317.926;
12,098,010

$ (34,582,874}
11,086,516

$ (33,082,444)
15,904,878

$ (16,201,874)

3 (23.219.916)

$ (23.526,358)

$ (18,077.566)




2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 8,696,162 $ 6,478,982 $ 5460488 $ 5,649,191 $ 4,701,552 $ 4.773.059
2,381,380 2,457 868 2518,113 2,325,761 2,081,017 1,956,243
6,835,927 5,553,135 4,962,020 4,397,108 3,767.816 3,862,168
5,107,748 3,604,501 3,227,227 3,671,786 4,405,436 4,005,079
11,026,676 9,595,062 8,251,836 7,392,816 5,961,731 5,833,644
4,372,708 3,147,899 5,212,766 3,757,919 1,522,161 2,752,225
4,287,029 - ) _ ) ]
3,650,388 4,181,243 2,976,803 2,010,469 2256135 1,253,034
46,358,016 35,518,690 32,609,253 29,204,980 24 675,848 24,436,352
2,441,533 3,469,377 2,589,385 2,753,948 2,606,270 1,962,826
48,444,272 48,183,299 38,836,172 37,866,853 29,026,475 26,237.073
. 4,315,729 3,611,767 3,516,487 2,868,758 2,740,495
1,807,147 1,689,013 1,447 690 1,370,267 1,216,219 986,876
20,011,184 18,980,021 17,584,962 15,668,061 14,234,366 13,218,349
72704136 76,627.439 64,169,976 61,178,616 49 952.588 45,145619
$ 119,062 152 $ 112,148 129 $ 96,779,200 $ 90,383,606 $ 74 628,436 $ 69,581,971
$ 1481854 $ 1391418 $ 1,401,150 $ 991,508 3 812,920 $ 672882
827387 1,230,533 1,506,801 1,761,165 1,350,955 1,007 581
1400208 1,044 870 848,066 210,453 478,378 141,280
5,121 1418786 783,235 635,548 1,452 .
1,184,135 1,344,259 1,182,064 880,807 838,302 769,389
- . 26,900 101,685 - -
4,582,794 . . . . ;
1,268,957 492 632 683,731 168,863 900,681 176,169
1,600,980 909,200 3,654,737 £.153,637 13,474,330 110,077
12,330,536 7,833,705 9,876,693 10,903,662 17,857,018 2,967,378
2,234,637 3,308,880 2,473,286 2,505,754 2,352,094 1,667,154
57.164.312 52,848,962 44,028,755 42,525,728 25,002,038 30,152,942
- 4,398,047 3,738,774 3,446,566 3,207 268 2,932,480
1,913,548 1,832,165 1,793,773 1,718,068 1572.854 1,331,962
23,541,415 23,313,864 20,800,851 20.318.603 17046731 15,500,302
17 378,138 11,071,807 8,850,968 14.217.294 5,665,628 12,051,096
102,232,048 96,771,834 81,686,407 84,821,021 65,866,613 63,635,936
$ 114,562,584 $ 104.605,539 $ 91,563,100 $ 95,724,683 $ 83,723,631 $ 66,603,314
$ (34,027.480) B (27.684985)  $(22732.560)  $(18,301,328)  § (6.818,830)  §$ (21468,974)
29,527,912 20,144,395 17.516.431 23,642,405 15,914,025 18,490,317
$ (4499568 § (75405900  $ (5216,129) § 5,341,077 $ 9,095,195 $ (2,978,657)
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
LAST TEN FiISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

2013 2012 2011 2016
General Revenues and Other
Changes in Net Assets
Governmentai activities,
Property Tax $ 17,037,036 15,751,826 14,362,895 14,360,142
Sales Tax 17,002,757 15,045 582 14,148 242 13,482,999
Taxss - other 1,331,281 1,143,217 1,100,480 1,000,571
Franchise taxes 4,471,487 3,924,052 3,874,815 2603222
Interest on investments 241,449 230,788 187,314 140,384
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - -
Other 1,129,389 710,403 A5G0 308 537,528
Transfars 11,719,789 6511026 5,871,447 8,637 964
Total governmentai activities $ 52933198 43,316,904 41,135 601 38,762,810
Business-type atlivities:
Intarast on investments s 128,322 156,329 171,847 133132
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - -
Other 4,919,258 4,003 968 2,971,392 2835458
Transfars [11,719,799) (8,511,026} 16,871,447) (8,837 964)
Total business-type activities (6,674,219 (2,350,723} {3,728,108) {3,669,374)
Total primary government $ 46,258,879 40,966,175 37,407,493 35,093,436
Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities “$ 19,809,829 7,998,978 5,652,727 4,780,366
Business-type activities 10,247 276 8,747,281 7,328,408 12,235,504
Totaf primary government $ 30.057.105 17,746,259 13.881.135 17,156,870
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
14,934,694 12,610,638 10,737,981 5 8,919,604 $ 8329395 S 6.527.438
12,543,671 13,236,686 12,206,099 10,962,790 8.496,160 7.395,657

278,982 1,134,493 1,185,511 844,718 748,301 586,921

2,801 666 2,739,557 2.083,306 2,209,235 1,942 248 1,844 683

504,145 2,222,652 2,085,055 1,308,706 507038 171,949
- - - - 859286 -

3,415,713 803,334 - 463,719 1,167 654 466,185
8,184,258 7,126,529 5,987 414 6,230,148 5,220,063 5,671,960
42 662,529 39,877,199 34 265,366 $ 31.028,010 $ 27,271,143 3 23,063,793

667,389 1,018,860 1,495 484 $ 1673167 S 732.461 $ 444,169

- . . - 160,949 -

2,580,006 2,295,472 4,417 805 3,935,942 588,566 883,338
(8.184,258) {7,129 529) (5,987 414) (6,230,148) {5,220,063) (5.671.960)
(4.936,863) (3,815,197} (74,125) (618,039) (3,338,087 (4,344,453)
37,725,666 36,062.002 34,211 241 $ 30,410,971 $ 23.933,056 $ 18,719.340
8,636,049 12,192,214 11,552,806 $ 12727682 $ 20,452,313 $ 1,594,819
24,591,049 16,329,198 17,442,308 23,024,366 12,575,938 14,145,864
33,226,008 28,521 412 28,995 112 $ 35752048 $ 33,028,251 $ 15740683
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

General Fund
MNonspendable:

Prepaids and inventory
Committed:

Contingency
Assigned:

Encumbrances
Unassignead
Total general fund

Other governmental funds
Restricted:
Debt Service
Bond Funds
Hotelimotel tax
Street maintenance tax
Public safety
Cammitted:
Othar capital projects
Nenmajar funds
Assigned:
Encumbrances
Total all other governmental funds

General Fund
Reserved
Unreservad

Total general fund

Other governmental funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reparted in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total afl ather governmental funds

2013 2012 2011
$ 18,697 LA 2110 % 8,061
7,400,000 7,000,000 5,847,000
1,831,482 1,210,247 1,403,968
3.999,824 2,419,053 1,894,618
$ 13,050,103 5 10831410 $ 10154 647
$ 1108220 §  1,749.324 $ 1,975,588
15,438,897 16,112,418 17,748,555
515,525 526 488 480,582
5,029,263 4,205,153 3,215,322
188,072 244 963 306,926
12,282,845 8,770,010 10,682,665
2,174,368 2,293,194 1.899,631
25,444,232 8,891,080 5.105,133
5 62192422 $ 44,792,637 § 42395400

Nate: City of Gecrgetown first applied GASE Statement No. 54 in fiscal yaar 2011,
therefore, the new fund balance distinctions far years prior to fiscal year 2011 are not available.
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2010
§ 1,160,185
8,801,923
EEENREEN
$ 30050827
§ 30,050,627



2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
1,001,711 855,743 $ 1,342,069 $ 1,038,758 $ 1,181,485 $ 952,348 $ 879.218
9,508,572 10,988,752 9223131 7,917,556 5,289 465 4.484 457 3.104.887
10,507 683 11,842,495 & 10,565,200 % B,955314 $ 7470854 $ 5.436,805 5 3984105
28,932,873 10,889,996 § 20548352 5 11,214,177 $ 5,280,890 $ 4,166,714 § 4040224
- - - - - 462,040 279,158
- 18,173,048 19,043 457 9.778.067 12,388,201 9,182,972 1,948,752
29,932 873 29,063,046 $ 39691308 § 20.992.244 5 158,670,191 5 13,821,728 } 5,268,134
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

Revenues
Property taxes

Property assessment
Sales tax and other taxas
Franchise taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for service

Fine and fordfeitures
Donations and grants
Investment income

Cther revenue
Total revenues

Expenditures

Cuiture - recreation

Development
Fire services

General government
Highways and streets

Folice

Environmental Services

Capial outlay
Debt service

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
aver expenditures

Other finanging scurces (uses)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Sale of property
Capital lease issued
Payment to refunding escrow

agent
Bonds issued

Total other financing
sources (Uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital

expenditures
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2008

$ 17197460 & 15883636  § 14591564 8 14572432  $ 14,169,419
387,290 353,269 313,093 262,060 278,082
17,790,450 15,698,207 14,724,741 13,9687 624 13,289,438
4,471 487 3.924.052 3,874,815 2,603,222 2,801,666
1,536,660 1,236,478 890,948 841,392 791,882
6,479,669 8,493,243 8.199.073 8,157 485 7,687 489
739,556 682,760 810,850 1,080,361 981,228
3,979,292 1,687,184 4,121,825 3,078,392 2,058,301
212,629 230,788 187,313 140,384 737,755
2,960,559 2,870,008 1,735,082 1,585,584 1,897,179
58,755,052 51,059,625 49,449, 204 46,288,916 44 693,339
9,262 282 8,377,084 8,220,049 7,773,346 7,535,763
1,626,315 2,155,243 2,195 537 2,088,809 2.213,899
8,804,038 8,253 567 7,725,794 6,909,597 6,507 024
3,144.173 3,178,251 3,505,481 3,288,185 3,324,758
3,422 340 5,061,214 6,044,755 5171678 3,840,312
11,677,968 10,577,384 10,221,220 10,026,352 10,137,983
4,857,396 4,823,170 4,321,888 4,199,433 4,285,345
16,760,621 15,938,457 12,604,835 8,930,286 12,444 569
5,452,644 5,533,987 4,998,369 4,791,550 4,478,467
3,771,791 4,094,247 3,686,318 3,642,426 3,608,738
69,780,468 67,992,604 53,623,246 56 821,662 58 466,858
{11.025,418) (16,932,079) (14,174,042) {10.532,746) (13,773,519}
13,969,841 9,734,354 7.915723 8.895,212 10,055,272
(4,331,850) (5,492,299) (2,654,379) (2.847 628) (3,367,769)

(11,356,689} {3.416,787) . - -
32,562 502 18,081,711 21,650,000 3,867 351 8,575,000
30,843,864 19,806,979 26,911,344 9,904,635 13,262,503
S 19818478 § 2874000 $ 12,737,362 § (627811) $ (511.018)
18.7% 18.5% 17.0% 17 8% 17.6%



2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 12,703,508  $ 10938488  § 9,047,916 $ B408150 5 7.217.442
210,659 155,864 173,611 89,134 81,916
14,000,228 13,053,780 11,495,335 8,927,263 7,797,747
2,739,567 2,083,306 2,209,235 1,942,246 1,844,683
1,158,433 1,527,886 1,723,082 1,266,295 1,078,048
2,289,493 1,830,286 1,067,460 985,540 919,219
1,110,815 1,067,934 907.983 773,882 584,999
208,803 83,731 168,863 798,822 286,246
2,222 952 2,085,055 1,308,706 507,038 171,949
2,823,254 1,412,119 1,428 485 2,134,184 764,592
39,557,713 34,538,449 29,620,076 25,802,854 20,846,841
8,325,780 5,397 344 4,968,902 5,197,709 4,509,436
2.454.810 2,611,432 2127927 1,052,474 1,914,223
5.380,247 4,903,325 4,171,627 3,675,033 3,832,320
3,038,876 3,018,023 2,302,417 1,987,048 1,805.879
2,768,367 1739495 1,761,494 1,741,217 1,931.782
9,222,704 8,162,359 7,070.088 5,766,432 £.585.002
21 622,846 15,538,147 15,950,142 11,916,076 6,570,321
3,495,684 2,755 592 2,387,035 2,500,901 1,262,782
4,480,504 2,808,116 2,307,846 1,897,649 1,253,034
58,789,818 47 034,833 43,047 378 36,668,537 28 785,779
(19,232,105 (12,496,384} (13,427,302) (10,863,583} (7.918,038)
10,198,752 7,823,154 8,580,426 6,400,033 5,856,656
(4.658,144) (3,658,105} (3,940,019} (2,691,211} (1,454,546}

47.029 54,599 31,102 896.113 .
- - - - 283,120

. (3,160,147} (7,736,794) (9,243,904) -
4,395,000 31,645,334 20,300,000 22,385,166 12,240.000
9,980,637 32,804,835 17,234,715 17,746,197 16,925,230
$ (9.251,468) § 20,308451  § 3.807.413 $ 6882614  $ 5,006,292
21.5% 19.5% 17.3% 17.8% 14.3%
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL

YEAR

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

2013

Source: City of Georgetown Tax Assessor.

TOTAL
TAX LEVY

CURRENT
TAX

COLLECTIONS

$

7,525,174

6,694,027

9,442,853

11,500,980

13,156,095

14,828,927

15,142,165

15,098,808

16,444 180

17,806,346

$

7,215,477
8,274,192
9,096,910
11,138,968
12,744,960
14,349,606
14,653,346
14,635,299
16,050,914

17,384,594

176

PERCENT
OF LEVY

COLLECTED

95.88%

96.17%

96.34%

96.35%

96.87%

96.77%

96.77%

95.93%

9v.61%

97.63%

DELINQUENT
TAX
COLLECTIONS

] 30,048
161,088

76,076

111,081

91,036
139,828
127,176
120,002
44,797

76,902



TOTAL OUTSTANDING

COLLECTIONS DELINQUENT

AS A PERCENT QUTSTANDING TAXES AS A

TOTAL TAX OF CURRENT DELINQUENT PERCENT OF

COLLECTIONS LEVY TAXES CURRENT LEVY

$ 7,245,523 96.28% § 279,852 3.72%
8,435,230 97.02% 258,748 2.98%
8,172,986 97.14% 277.077 2.93%
11,250,029 97.82% 250,991 2.18%
12.835,996 97.57% - 320,807 2.44%
14,489,434 87.71% 339,483 2.29%
14,780,622 87.61% 361,643 2.39%
14,755,381 97.73% 343,417 2.27%
16,095,711 97.88% 345,082 2.12%
17,461,496 98.06% 344,851 1.94%
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL

YEAR

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2008

2010

2011

2012

2013

Source: City of Georgetown Tax Assessor.

$1,936,628,300
2,094,086,974
2,367 ,009,144
2,748,816,041
3,330,727,230
3,788,863,117
3.780,404,329
3.786177.221
3.885,150,718

4,033,324,389

1) Net of exempiions.

REAL PROPERTY
ESTIMATED
ASSESSED ACTUAL
VALUE (1} VALUE

$ 1,936,628.300
2.094.066,974
2,367.099,144
2,749,816.041
3,330,727 280
3,768,863.117
3,780,404,329
3,786,177.221
3,885,150,718

4,033,324,389
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$ 196487678
166,921,358
187,265,408
136,821,317
238,557,091
244,892,514
248,488,943
268,771,730
311,033,417

382,683,821

PERSONAL PROPERTY
ESTIMATED
ASSESSED ACTUAL
VALUE (1} VALUE

$ 196487678

166,921,359

157,265,408

136,821,317

238,557,081

244 892 514

248,488,943

289,771.730

311,033,417

382,683,621



TOTAL

ASSESSED

VALUE (1)

$

2,132,115,978
2,960,988,333
2,524,364,552
2,886,637,358
3,569,284,321
4,014,755 631
4,026,893,272
4,055,948,951
4,196,184,135

4,416,008,010

ESTIMATER

ACTUAL
VALUE

RATIO OF TOTAL
ASSESSED VALUE
TO TOTAL ESTIMATED
ACTUAL VALUE

$

2,132,115,978
2,260,988,333
2,524,364,552
2,886,637,358
3,569,264,321
4,014,755,631
4,026,893,272
4,055,948,951
4,196,184,135

4,416,008,010
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100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

106.00%

100.00%



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR & NINE YEARS AGO

2004
PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL OF TOTAL
TYPE OF ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED
TAXPAYER BUSINESS VALUE VALUE(1) VALUE RANK  VALUE{1)

SFG Wolf Ranch LP Development £58.111,460 1 1.32% 13,318,758 2 0.83%
Citigreup Technology Inc Development 42,792,849 2 0.96%
Citicorp North America Bevelopment 35,008 424 3 0.78%
St. Bavid's Healthcara Partners Hospitai 30,985 918 4 0.69%
The Bassham Trust Development 25,770,814 5 0.58%
South Austin Ave Prof Bldg Hospital 20,400,000 6 C.46%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Bus Trust  Development 16,154,708 7 0.36% 11,330,873 4 0.54%
Two Rivers GT Ltd Development 15,398,038 ] 0.34%
Del Webb Texas Lid Development 13,358 637 g 0.30% 22,953 679 1 1.08%
Hewlett Holdings, Lid Autemobile Dealer 12,399,126 10 C.28% 9,690,832 9 0.4G%
Verizon Scuthwest Utifity 13,195,030 3 0.62%
KH - Georgetown Pariners Ltd Development 10,540.552 5 0.50%
Rivery Towne Crossing LP Development 10,362,207 & 0.49%
HE Butt Grocery Company Grocer 10,318,657 7 0.45%
Rivery Partners Bevelopment 10,003,210 8 0.47%
Mac Haik Ford Lincoln Mercury  Automobile Dealer 89672087 10 0.46%

$ 271,340,967 6.06% ~§121,385,385 5.74%

Total

Source: Cily Tax Assessor/Collector.

{1y The total assessed vaiuation for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 was certified at $4,479,836,955.

* Per gerified mll.  Ooes not include same major property owners wWhosa property is under protest a5 of date of carffication.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF GEORGETQWN

DEBT GEORGETOWN

FISCAL GENERAL SERVICE TOTAL INDEPENDENT WILLIAMSON

YEAR FUND FUND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY TOTAL
2004 022 0.10 0.32 177 048 2.57
2005 0.23 C.11 0.34 176 0.51 2.61
2006 0.21 0.14 0.35 1.73 G.50 2.58
2007 022 0.15 0.37 1.63 0.50 2.50
2008 0.20 0.15 0.35 1.29 0.49 213
2008 0.20 0.15 0.35 1.29 0.47 2.1
2010 0.21 0.14 0.35 1.29 0.49 213
2011 0.21 0.14 0.35 1.38 0.46 217
2012 0.22 0.16 0.38 1.36 0.46 2.20
2013 0.24 0.17 0.41 1.40 0.45 2.26

Source: Information furnished by respective tax assessars,
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

NAICS Sectors 2013 2012 2011 2010
Agricufture/Forestry/Fishing/Hunting - % 4825 B - $ -
Mining, quarrying, ¢ii & gas extraction - - - _
Utilities 16,031 408 18,253,904 18,628,820 20,319,600
Construction 5384717 4,967 279 4002432 3,625,542
Manufacturing 8,564 720 4,585,577 5,873,360 8,061,587
Wholesaie trade 16,091,304 16,186,257 14,174,184 10,063,489
Retail trade 446 244 500 405 055,103 378427824 380,552 640
Transportation, warehousing 1,218,175 1,242 588 1,061,271 767.634
Information 33,781,552 30,485,692 29,916,065 27,915,345
Finance, insurance 563,047 482,899 424 931 459 599
Real estate, rental, leasing 2,370,540 2,165,251 3,781,875 2,716 214
Professional, scientific, technical sves 8,234,560 7.522 451 5,292,086 5294148
Management of companies, enterprises - - - -
Admin, support, waste mgmt, remediation sv¢ 4,042 428 3,801,364 3,359 965 3,464,947
Educational svcs 357 267 372,185 154,382 28427
Healthcare, social assistance 227,115 308,645 444 834 389,729
Arts, entertainmert, recreation 12,894,531 11,914,044 11,362 973 10,983,705
Accommodation, food services 96,804,761 86,308,856 81,339,685 76,8589 382
Other svcs (except public administration) 21,523,911 18,603,403 16,880,190 15,102,925
Public administration 18,783 20,023 31,428 34518
Other - - 1,198 547
Total $ 677,144 217 $613,075621 $ 875,268,033 $ 564,740,088
2.00% 2 00%, 2.00% 2.00%

City direct sales tax rate

Source: Window on State Government - Susan Combs, Texas Comptrolier of Public Accounts website.

Amounts subject to sales tax have been restated by the state since the 2012 CAFR release.

Notes: All reporting is by North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) sector. Standard Industrial
Classification (StG) Codes are no longer being assigned 1o taxpayers.

*2013 is projected as 4th Quarter actuals were not in at time of update.
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2009 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
- 3 - 3 - 3 - & - g
445,156 416,435 - 7434128 - -

13,847,965 16,475,883 13,057,817 13,857 517 12,511,431 -
4,250,612 4,361,179 4,820,812 7,187,280 12,296,405 7541520
5,748,311 9,390,419 8,798,768 3,667,839 3,762,034 4,183,840

13,253,476 16,269,671 23,911,829 19,384 897 17,336,331 14,278,595

367 257,156 383981938 367,740,330 343,600,745 227,297,553 198,402,189
1,178,847 1,668,822 1,826,996 1,471,067 1,075,479 678,344
26,448,683 26,845,497 24852272 22,752,620 18,035,023 16,454,334
380,069 357 522 358,689 382,038 244 834 28,302
2,388616 2,862,995 4,007,842 6,328,408 6,269,451 3,880,801
4,586,618 6,435,627 6,124,832 6,206,859 5,312,421 5,437,347

- - - - 306,696 -

3,141,955 3,658.858 3,155 585 3,681,585 3,747,298 3.6298.316
46,588 40,108 28,053 18,823 23,747 18,657
283,517 221,778 167.878 162,620 156,923 151,172

10,424,729 8,975,461 7,972,748 4,718,657 4,301,266 3,983,882

75,008,166 74,477 233 66,071,016 58,700,789 47,515,213 42,348,701

14,421,211 14,341,106 14,192,006 12,205,808 8,079,189 10,917,442

33,271 24,072 - 2,624,994 10,102,685 8.340,851

- 6.787 647 11,700 18,361 408,571

547,499,090 $ 571,701,305 $ 547,888,720 $ 490,996,657 $ 366,880,554 § 321,082,083
2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CITY
FISCAL D!REQT STATE OF

YEAR RATE TEXAS

2004 1.75% 6.25%
2005 1.75% 6.25%
20086 2% 6.25%
2007 2% 6.25%
2008 2% 6.25%
2009 2% 6.25%
2010 2% 6.25%
2011 2% 8.25%
2012 2% 6.25%
2013 2% 6.25%

Source: Information furnished by City of Gecergetown.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

SALES TAX REVENUE PAYERS BY INDUSTRY
FISCAL YEARS 2013 AND 2004

2013

Number Percent Tax Percent

NAICS Sectors of Filers of Total Liability of Total
Agriculture/Forestry/F ishing/Hurting 2 0.14% 3 - 0.00%
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 3 0.18% - 0.00%
Litilities 7 042% 380,628 2.81%
Construction 127 7.54% 107,694 0.80%
Manufacturing 99 5.88% 171.094 1.26%
Wholesals frade 88 4.02% 321,826 2.38%
Retail trade BG2 35.78% 8,924,890 B85.90%
Transportation, warehaousing 18 1.07% 24,363 0.18%
Infarrmation 32 1.92% 675,631 4.93%
Finance, msurance 12 0.73% 11,279 0.08%
Real gstate, rental, leasing 27 1.62% £7,47% 0.35%
Professional, scientfic, technical sves 150G 8.91% 164,691 1.22%
Managament of companies, enterprises 1 0.08% - 3.00%
Admin, support, waste mgmt, remediation sves 97 574% 80,849 3.60%
Educational swes 13 077% 7,145 0.05%
Healthcare, social assisiance 23 1.35% 4,542 2.03%
Arts entertainment, recreation 55 327% 257,881 1.80%
Accommuodation, food services 159 9.46% 1,932,085 14.27%
Other svcs (except public administration) 156 9.25% 420,478 3.18%
Public administration 6 (1.36% ave 0.00%
Other 26 1.52% - 0.00%
Totals 1,634 100.00% § 13,542 584 100.G0%

2004

Number Percent Tax Percent

NAICS Sectors of Filers of Totat Liability of Total
Agricutture/Forastry/Fishing/Hunting 1 0.08% ] - 0.00%
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 2 0.17% - 2.00%
Litilities Z 0.15% - 0.00%
Ganstruction 2[¢] 7.56% 141,902 2.53%
Manufacturing 47 382% &87.045 1.55%
Wholesale trade 55 4.63% 245,805 4.39%
Retail frade 4445 I7.80% 3470,744 61.95%
Transportation, warehaousing 15 1.21% 10,142 0.18%
Information 22 1.82% 287 411 5.13%
Finance, insurance 5 0.40% 495 0.01%
Real estate, rental, leasing 18 1.59% 51,181 0.91%
Professional. scientific, techrical sves 96 8.02% 78,820 1.41%
Management of companies, enterprises 2 017% B 0.00%
Admin, support, waste mgmit, remediation sves 106 8.84% 86,441 1.54%
Educational sves 4 0.34% - 0.00%
Healthcare, social assistance B 0.52% 2,048 0.05%
Arts, entertainment, recreation 15 1.21% 69,815 1.25%
Accommaodation, food services 100 2.36% T41,156 13.23%
Other sves {except public administration) 102 8.50% 175,800 3.14%
Public administration 7 061% 145,965 2.61%
Other 51 4.29% 7150 0.13%
Totals 1,194 100.00% § 5602519 100.00%

Seurce: Window on State Government.

Motes: The City direct sales lax rade Tor 2013 and 2004 is 2% and 1.75%, respectively. [ue to confiderdiality issues, the names of the ien largest revenua p.
are not availabie The categories presanted are intended o provide altemative information regarding the sources of ie Cily's revenus, All reporting s now 1
Morth Amercan Industry Cassification Systemn (NAICS) sectors. Standard Industrial Slassification (SIC) Codes are no longer being assigned to taxpayers, a
data on SIC filers s no longer availzble,

2013 is projected as 4ih quarier actuals were not available at the fime of update,
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Aclivities

Naote: Details regarding the City's cutstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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General Sales Tax General
Fiscal Ohitgation Revenue Capital Revenue Qbligation
Year Bonds ____Bonds Leases Bonds Bonds
2003 § 22,217,455 - $ 166,988 $ 34,498,514 $ 4,514,031
2004 33194,673 368,787 38,903,763 4,261,564
2005 44,306,603 265,702 40,084,012 4,509,384
2008 54,429,567 - 142 633 45,885,000 4,265 434
2007 68,855,734 11,330,000 74,944 51,070,000 4,539,267
2008 69,970,050 11,115,000 12.831 57,280,000 4,984,950
2009 73,008,888 183,715,000 - 53,640,000 10,096,112
2010 72,532,310 10,300,000 - 58,825,000 13,777,680
2011 89,613,941 9,870,000 55,945,000 12,981,059
2012 100,356,664 9,420,000 - 51,425,000 11,618,336
2013 116,638,107 8,955,000 47,455,000 14,551,893



Total
Primary

Government

$ 61,396,968
76,728,787
89,135,701

104,722,634
135,869,045
143,362,831
147,480,000
156,435,000
168,410,000
172,820,000

187,600,000

Percentage
of Personal
Income
15.90%
13.89%
13.88%
13.44%
11.73%
11.87%
11.61%
11.56%
11.63%
11.97%

11.88%

Per

Ca
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piia

1,761
2,113
2,319
2,530
3.080
3,136
3,152
3,268
3,444
3,469

3,714



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED
VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

GROSS LESS DEBT
FISCAL ASSESSED BONDED SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR POPULATION VALUE (1) DEBT {2} AVAILABLE
2004 36,309 2132115978 $ 37,456,237 5 768,436
2005 38,438 2.260,988,333 48,815,988 508,151
20086 41,385 2,524,364,552 58,685,001 878.668
2007 44 117 2,886 637,358 73,385,001 1,328213
2008 45,710 3,669,284,321 74,965,000 1,224,087
2008 46,787 4,014,755,631 83,105,000 2,530,148
2010 47 885 4,026,803 772 86,310,000 2,274 235
2011 48,002 4,055,8486,851 102,585,000 1,876,686
2012 49,543 4.196,184,135 111,975,000 1,749,324
2013 50,513 4,416,008,010 131,190,000 1,108,220

Sources: City of Georgetown Flanning and Development Division and the Georgetown Chamber of Commerce.

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

{1] Met of exemptions.

{2) Includes all long-term general obligation debt.
{3 Includes general obligation debt repaid from other sources (Alrport, Starmwater Drainage and Georgetown
Transportation Enhancement Corporation funds).
{4) Less debt service funds available.
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RATIO OF NET RATIO OF GROSS

NET BONDED DEBT  BONDED DEBT  NET BONDED TOTAL BONDED
BONDED TO ASSESSED TO ASSESSED DEBT PER DEBT PER
DEBT VALUE {4) VALUE (4) CAPITA (4) CAPITA (4)
$ 17,176,237 0.81% 1.72% $ 473.06 $ 101043
27,632,741 1.22% 2.14% 718.89 1,256.77
36,705,188 1.45% 2.29% 886.71 1,396.70
46,457,633 1.61% 2.50% 1,053.06 1,633.52
52,564 440 1.47% 2.07% 1,149.95 1,613.01
54,882,326 1.37% 2.01% 1,173.03 172216
55,261,719 1.37% 2.09% 1,155.16 1,755.68
73,396,051 1.81% 2.48% 1,500.88 2,057.55
83,698,631 1.99% 2.63% 1,688.41 2,224 85
101,804,245 2.30% 2.95% 2,011.45 2,575.19
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

CITY'S SHARE (2)

DEBT
TAXING BODY AMOUNT AS OF PERCENT

ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT:
Georgetown 1.5.D. $ 215825000 12-15-13 80.71%
Williamson County 792 704,004 *  5-30-13 11.39%
Total estimated

overlapping debt 1,008,529,004 26.22%
OIRECT DEBT - City of

Georgetown 131,190,000 9-30-13 100.00%

DIRECT AND ESTIMATED
OVERLAPPING DEBT % 1,139,719,004

Source: Jurisdiction listed.

(1) GISD population - 84 370 (estimate as of 6-30-2013)
Williamson County population - 458 232
City of Georgetown population - 51,954

PER

AMOUNT CAPITA (1)

$ 174,195620 S 3.353
90,270,178 1738
264,465,798 5,089
131,190,000 2,525

$ 395655798 § 7,615

{2} Information represents the share of the respective debt which are obligations of the citizens

of the City of Georgetown
* Includes Williamson County and Avery Ranch
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013 2012 2011 2010
Debt Limnit $ 49.680,090 $ 47207072 $ 45629428 $ 45 302,549
Total net debt applicable to limit (1) 8,570,145 7,350,236 8,640,634 5,043,904
Legal debt margin $ 41,109,945 $ 39,856,836 $ 36,988,792 3 37,258,645
Total net debt applicable to limit
as a percentage of debt limit 17.25% 15.57% 18.94% 17.76%

ASSESSED VALUATION 2013 $ 4,416,008,010
Allowable tax levy for annual debt service purpose:
valuation, assuming 90% collection 3 49,680,090
2013 annual debt service requirements for general obligation debt:

Principat $5,213,524

Interest and fiscal charges 3,356,621 8,570,145
Legal margin for annual debt service requirements $ 41,109,946

NOTE: Alfiaxabie property within the Ciiy is subject to the assessment levy and cofiection by the City of a continuing,
direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principai and interest on the Bonds within the
limits prescribed by law. Article XI, Section 5, of the Texas Constitution is applicable to the City, and limits the
maximum ad valorem tax rate to $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation (for all City purposes). The Charter of the City
adopts the provisions of the constitution without further limitation.  Under rules promulgated by the Office of the
Attorney General of Texas, such office will not approve tax bonds of the City unless the City can demonstrate its
ability fo pay debt service requirements on all outstanding City tax bonds, including the issue to be approved, from

a tax levy of $1.25 per $100 of valuation, based on 80% collection of tax.

{1} The legal margin computation includes the general obligation debt that will be repaid by self-supporting sources
such as the Airport, Stoermwater Drainage and Georgetown Transpertation Enhancement Corporation (GTEC) funds.
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2009

2008

2007 2006 2005 2004
$  45166,001 40,154,449 § 32474870 $ 28,2399.101 § 25436,118 $ 23,986,305
7,664,261 7,614,171 5,273,417 4,916,118 4,645,554 2,949,202
$  37.501.740 32,540,278 $ 27,188,253 $ 23482085 $ 20,790,565 $ 21,037,103
16.97% 18.96% 16.25% 17.31% 18.26% 12.30%
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

UTILITY FUNDS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL
YEAR

| 2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

2013

Source: Finance and Administration Division.

ELIGIBLE

REVENUES

5 47,345,431

54,144,359
86,723,744
69,187,587
78,404,536
83,485,213
84,948,916
88,605,410
89,907,801

86,876,459

INTEREST

_EARNINGS

$ 423,987
705,118
1,600,113
1,408,260
955,680
392,080
116,458
159,888
144,460

118,277

Notes: (1) Electric, Water and Wastewater only.
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OPERATING
EXPENSES

(EXCLUDING

DEPREGCIATION)

NET REVENUE
AVAILABLE FOR
DEBT SERVICE

$

33,420,226
36,669,650
46,356,026
48,565,015
57,922,907
58,695,917
59,828,974
65,271,517
66,531,990

58,803,394

$

14,350,192
18,179,827
21,967,831
22,040,832
21,437,359
25,181,376
25,236,400
23,493,781
23,520,271

28,191,342



DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

INTEREST AND TIMES
PRINCIPAL FISCAL CHARGES TOTAL COVERAGE
$ 2,534,751 5 1,820,886 $ 4,455,637 3.22
2,864,751 1,875,451 4,740,202 3.84
3,046,012 2,006,822 5,055,834 4.35
2,721,700 2,086,849 4,808,549 4,58
3,200,000 2,631,311 5,831,311 3.68
3,640,000 2,338,048 5,978,048 4.21
3,835,000 2,065,384 6.000,364 4.21
3,880,000 1,858,107 5738107 4.08
4,255,000 1,742,974 5,897,874 3.92
3,870,000 1,963,653 5,833,853 4.75
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

UTILITY SYSTEM CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (2)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013 2012 2011 2010

Revenues:

Water System % 249020408 3 25,026 601 $§ 25396642 3 20,832,604

Electric System 53,780,318 58,403,738 E7 894 311 59,058,745

Miscellaneous 4 838,117 3,968,677 2,927,695 2,788,797

Interest Eamings 118277 144,460 159,858 116,458

Total revenues 83,717,121 87,541 473 - 86,673,538 82,597,604
Expenses: {1

Water System 7,737,541 7.053,864 7708924 5,677,880

Electric System 7,265,433 8,828,039 5,554,806 4,824,255

Utility Contracts 43 800,420 50,850,087 52 007 897 48,329 829

Total expenses 58,803,394 66,531,990 65,271,517 59,828,974
NET AVAILABLE FOR

DEBT SERVICE $  249513,727 $ 21,009,483 $ 21,407,021 % 22,768,630

Notes:

13 Excludes depreciation costs
2} Eleciric, Water & Wastewater only

Information provided o comply with continuing disclosure requirements of SEC Rule 15¢2-12.

Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2014-2033 $ 3,785,222
Coverage of Average Requirements by Fiscal Year 2013 Net Income 555
Maximum Principal and interest Requirements, 2014 $ 7,083,808
Coverage of Maximum Requirements by Fiscal Year 2013 Net Income 2.96
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$ 22200768 S 21,424897 % 18725977 3 19,709,556 § 16605408 % 15082426
56,154,879 51,833,477 42,805,466 41,338,196 33,800,761 29,199,818
2779.488 5,146.212 7,666,144 5,875,087 3,738,160 1,371.199
392.080 955,680 1,408,260 1,600,113 705,118 423 987
81,527,213 79,360,266 70,605,847 68,323,855 54,849,477 46,077,230
6,875,473 6,249,197 3,168,679 3,192,839 2,947 875 2,831,106
5,270,740 1,230,199 4275353 3,360,467 2721507 2,331,235
46,549,704 50,443.511 41,122,983 39,802,720 31,000,268 28,257,885
58,695,917 57,922,907 48,565,015 46,356,026 36,669,650 33,420,226

$ 22831296 § 21,437,359 $ 22040832 % 21,967,829 $ 18,179,827 5 12,657,004
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

UTILITY SYSTEM CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (1)

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Utility system (1)

Less:
Accumuiated depreciaiion
Net value of system

Plus: Construction fund
Net plant

Plus: Working capital

Total

Revenue bond debt (2)

CITY'S EQUITY IN SYSTEM

PERCENTAGE CITY'S
EQUITY IN SYSTEM

MNotes:

{1) Electric, Water and Wastewater Funds onfy

2013 2012 2011 2610

$ 338,199,636 313,923,709 $ 306,424,774 $ 286,216,930
{91,339,265) {82,719.027) (76,797, 780) (67.645.584)
245,860,271 231,204,682 229.627.014 218,571,348
12,193,462 22,866,032 11,692,027 14,038,615
269,053,733 254.071.614 241,319,041 232,609,961
35,992,864 33,419,764 35,700,091 40,784,075
295,046,597 287,491,378 277,018,132 273,394,036
59,028,078 59 050,004 84,540,000 68 809,099
$ 236,018,519 228,441 374 $ 212,479,132 $ 204,584,037

79.89% 79.46% 76.70% 74.83%

{2) Changes in bond crdinances ne longer require reservation of interest and sinking or reserve funds for

utility revenue debt.

Information provided to comply with continuing disclosure requirements of SEC Rule 15c2-12.
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2009

2008

2007

20086

2005

2004

F 273,482.085

$ 251,560,756

§ 215276182

$ 185,284 457

$ 183,596,097

$ 149400672

(58,659,325) (53,420.721) (51,083,351) {45,184,081) (40,012,018) (35,295.782)
214,822,740 198,140,035 164,222 811 140,110,376 123,584,079 114,104,890
10,101,805 5,280,337 5,820,263 9,470,135 5,521,737 4,985,311
224,924,545 203,420,372 170,043,074 149,580,511 129,105,816 119,090,201
27,713,059 29,899,635 28 736,708 30,833,629 22,850,764 17,695,702
252,637,604 233,320,011 198,779,782 180,414,140 152,056,610 136,785,903
59,589,999 57,280,000 51,070,000 45,885,000 40,064,012 38,803,764
$ 193,047,605 $ 176,040,011 $ 147,709,782 $ 134,529,140 $ 111,992,598 $ 97,882,139
76.41% 75.45% 74.31% 74.57% 73.65% 71.56%
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

DEMOGRAPHIC & ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Per
Capita

Fiscai Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Population Income income Enrollment Rate
2004 .38,309 5 1,085778077 $ 29,353 8,600 4.76%
2005 38,438 1,237,088,502 32,184 8,820 4.20%
2006 41,395 1,407,016,050 33,890 3,400 4.09%
2007 44,117 1,583,550,157 36,121 9,800 3.80%
2008 45,710 1,715,807 690 37,539 10,000 4.10% |
2009 46,787 1,711,883, 117 36,591 10,000 4.10%
2010 47.865 1,808,004,845 37773 10,300 5.84%
2011 48,902 1,859,356,434 40,087 10,470 7.08%
2012 49,543 2,090,070,541 42 187 10,396 7.08%
2013 50,513 2,097,802,838 41,526 10,396 5.70%

Sources:

Popuiation: City of Georgetown Planning and Development Division.

Per Capital Personal Income: U.S. Bept, of Commerce / Bureau of Economic Development
School Enrollment: Georgetown independent Schoo! District,

Unempfoyment Rate; Texas Waorkforce Commission, Labor Market information TRACER.

Notes: Per capita personal income and personal income is for Whlliamson County.

Per capital personal income was computed using Census Bureau midyear population estimates.
Estimates for 2004 - 2013 reflect county population estimates available as of April 2012,
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2013 2004

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Emgployment
Georgetown 18D 1,630 1 3.31% 1.200 1 3.47%
Williamson County Gowt 1,528 2 3.10% 1,038 2 3.00%
City of Georgetown 574 3 1.17% 373 7 1.08%
Southwestern University 450 4 0.91% 501 3 1.45%
Airborn, Inc 360 3 0.73% 232 8 0.67%
5t David's Hospital 346 8 0.70%
Lone Star Circle of Care 321 7 0.85%
HEB 283 8 0.57% 477 4 1.38%
Wesleyan Homes 230 g 0.47% 230 ] 0.668%
Sun City (Del Webkb) 210 10 0.43% 375 6 1.08%
Georgetown Healthcare 382 5 1.10%
Walmart 140 10

Totals 5929 12.04% 4,848 13.88%

Source: Finance and Administration Division.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTICON
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2013 2012 2011 2010

Function
General Government
Culture & Recreation
Administration 3.5 3 - -
Parks 205 22.5 225 225
Recreation ass 38.5 38.5 36.5
Rec. Programs 35 3 3 3
Library 21.5 22.5 215 21.5
Bevelopment
Administration - - 2 2
Planning 8 11 11 11
Current Planning - - - -
Long Range Planning - - - -
Inspection Svces. 10 12 13 13
Code Enforcement 4 4 6 6
Fire Services
Support Sves. 3] 7
Emergency Svos. 84 84 21 é1
Gen. Gowt.
Gen. Govt. 5 5] 6 6
City Council 3 3 2 2
City Manager's Office 55 3.5 8.5 G
l.egal Svecs 4 3 3 3
Highways / Streets
Transportation Admin. 2 2 1 3
Streets 18.75 18.75 18.78 18.75
Pdlice Services
Administration 4 5 5 g
Support Sves. - - - -
Field Operations 88 99 99 a5
Animal Svcs. 8.25 85 8.5 8
Municipat Court B 7 7 7
Fleet Mgrnt. 8 6.5 B 3
Facilities Mgmt. B 7 7 7
mformation Sves. 13 125 125 126
Joint Sves, 745 705 B85 65
Water 18.5 18.5 20 18
Sewer 14 14 14 12
Electric 535 435 44 47
Cther Enterprises 12 12 12 12

Total 554.50 55275 544.28 539.75

Source: City Finance & Administration Division.

Notes: A full-time employee is scheduled to work 2,080 hours per year (including vacation and sick leave). Full-time
equivalent employment is calculated by dividing total tabor hours by 2,080.

202

2009

22.5
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18.75
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2008

22.5
27.5

21.5

Y

o M

T

18.75

491.75

2007

20.5
27.5

216

458.25

2006

418.75

21.5
256.5

17.5

14.75

31
47
1.5

10
53
14
12
30

"
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2005

185
26.5

17.5
10

11
55

395.00

2004

8.5
2B8.5

15.5

45

11
55

46
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Funetion
Culture and recreation
Recreation Center memberships
CVE number of visitor inquinies
Library
Circotation
tNumber of patrons added
Economic Development
humber of proposa s gererated
Community Devetopment
Inspections/Code Enforcement
Number of inspactions
New residential permits issued
New commercial permits issued/ TF O/ Industiiat
Number of code enforcement viclations
Planning and Development Services
Development applications filed
Annexations {in acres}
Fite Services
Mumber of cafls for service
General Govt
Bond rating - S&P
Cily Manager's Office
MNumber of public information requests procassed
Police Services
Nurnber of calls for service
MNumber of traffic accidents
Animal Services
Mumber of pets impounded
Number of adoptions
Municipal Court
Number of court cases
Number of warrants served
Utility Office
Number of wtiiity customers
Water
MNumber of new connects

Awverage daily water treated (milion gallons)
Average daily consumption (million gaillons}

Sewer
Mumber of new connects
Average daily wastewater treated (miflion gallons}
Electric
k\Whs consumed
Number of new connects
AMR
Total number of work orders completed
Total reads by AMR
Other Enterprises
Stormwater & Drainage
MNumber of detertion ponds cleaned
MNumber of work oreers
Airport
Galtons of fuel sald

2013 2012 2011 2010
10,678 13,768 16,044 16,778
50,617 42,901 35,749 27,088

£50.6683 552,032 427.746 524,610

2,446 2,528 2,184 2,293
48 38 6 3
0,282 21270 18,383 20,192
7T 664 509 550
&1 89 g7 15
15,225 11,535 11,090 12,295
313 290 284 158
181 61 703 276
6,153 5,706 5.674 3E49
Abs AAt Ader A
578 TE9 835 47
22,747 23,018 22181 31,008
1,338 1,679 1,525 1,743
1,664 1.670 1,560 1,477
£80 822 686 801
7.833 7247 8,802 13,778
368 313 887 #a3
27.558 26,345 25,563 24,985
208 705 530 447
16.30 18,18 16.72 11.82
13.20 13.05 14.49 10.65
955 Q39 523 451
4.10 4.2 4.24 4.43
544,339 879 537,985,580 547 475,852 518,890,777
484 226 477 543
1113 828 2,419 2,495
616,296
404 ar2 372 38z
10 562 196 418
565,851 B81,450 785,839 838,773

Sources: Yarious City departments and City-Morthly Activity Indicators Repart
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2008 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
18,487 5,487 5,080 4,294 2,074 1,538
38,669 45,044 36.086 37,082 40,117 41,426

496,603 431,294 386,948 347 662 380,716 330,171
2,338 2,514 2,582 1,784 1,684 1,633
40 35 51 e 71 54
21,248 33,198 43,066 47,197 384677 28,389
523 768 902 1,316 930 890
127 77 114 182 132 7
13.179 10,570 12,928 15,603 11,187 2,026
2465 344 348 397 280 208
1,005 269 62 8,909 5,062 443
5475 532t 4,766 4,257 3.0687 3.402
Ab+ AR Ab- Ad- A= £
287 801 773 786 616 702
34,192 51,033 53,323 43,739 40 849 41,5886
1.750 1.837 1,863 1.613 1.510 1,382
1.256 1,500 1,443 1452 1,773 1,591
560 614 11 842 793 £98
13,333 13,275 14,787 13,824 1.278 11048
T4 743 857 398 T2 a18
24271 23,678 22,784 21,365 149,862 18,621
464 830 1213 1,281 870 912
14.44 1557 10.31 11.88 3.71 797
13.14 13.35 a1 10.30 10.09 797
444 46 1,422 1,307 1.021 922
3.22 348 4.27 296 328 3.07
480,449 481 501,652,788 441,088,000 418,651,731 377,198,661 350h104,864
550 999 1.093 1,134 817 473
2,903 5.4 3,724 6,106 2,347 1,347
- - - 34,781 31373 30121
200 228 228 228 164 13
378 17 728 36 - 116
847,736 723869 721667 T73.H40 842223 688,719
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Function 2013 2012 2011 2010
Culture and recreation
Farks (developed acres) 473 473 473 473
Recreation Centers 1 1 1 H
Senior Centers 1 1 1 1
Libraries 1 1 1 1
Fire Services
Fire staticns 5] a 4 4
Fire vehicles 25 22 18 17
Highways and streets
Center fine miles 310 305 283 307
Police Services
Puotice Stations 1 1 1 1
Palice vehicles a7 87 93 95
Poiice motorcycle units 4 4 4 4
Electric
Meters 22,660 22,004 22,090 21711

Sources: Varicus City departments and City budget document,
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
473 410 390 380 360 330
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 - - - B -
1 1 1 1 1 1
4 3 3 3 3 3
17 17 15 14 14 14
284 269 250 251 230 202
1 1 1 1 1 1
g5 95 93 78 65 65
4 4 4 4 4 4
21,338 20,385 20,179 19,360 18,167 17,032
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

SUMMARY OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

POLICY TYPE

Airport Liability

Autorobile Liakility

Autemobile Physical Damage

Boiler & Machinery

General Liability

Law Enforcement Liability

Mokile Equipment

FPublic Employee Dishonesty
EBond

Fublic Officials

RealfPersaonal Property

Workers' Compensation

Pollution Liakbility

Animal Mortality/Theft

Errors and Ormissions Liability

INSURER

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
lLeague

Taxas Municipai
League

Texas Municipai
League

Texas Municipal
|.eague

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
teague

Texas Municipai
League
Texas Municipal
League
Amgrip
Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

AGENT

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League
Texas Municipali
League
Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League

Texas Municipal
League
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POLICY NUMBER

2903

2903

2903

2603

2803

2903

2803

2903

2903

2803

2803

9951165

2903

2803



FPOLICY PERIOD

Qctober 1, 2012 40
September 30, 2013

Ceteber 1, 2012 to
- September 30, 2013

Cetober 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

Cetober 1, 2012 10
Septembear 30, 2013

Cctober 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

Cctoher 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

Qctober 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

October 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

October 1, 2012 10
September 30, 2013

Qetoker 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2013

October 1, 2012 10
September 30, 2013

Cciober 1, 2012 to

September 30, 2013

QOctober 1, 2012 t0
September 30, 2013

October 1, 2012 to
Septernber 30, 2013

COVERAGE

DESCRIPTION

Airport, Aviation
Non-owned aircraft,

(Hangarkeepers) Hangar
Liability

Damage caused by
Clty Vehicles

Damage caused to
City Vehicles

Library HVAC
Direct Damage

General Liability

Police Department

Damage to
Mahile Equipment

CrimefPublic Empioyee
Crime/Theft disappearance
Destruction {inside/outsids)

Mayor, Council, City Attorney
Boards, Commissions
and Employees

Real / Personal
Property

Losses as Prescribed
by the Texas Workers'
Compensation Law

Follution Liability
Underground Storage Tanks

Potice Canine Loss of use/
Theft mortality’vVel/Surgical

Errors and Omissions
Includes Public Officials

LIMIT

$ 20,000,000 occ
J’ 80,000 Fire

2,000,600 Aircraft
LS,ODO,UOO oce

5,000,600 oce
25,000 person

ACY
2,000,000 accident
10,000,000 agg annuat

5000000 occ

10,000,000 annual
10,000,000 oce

per schedule
2,546 291

1,000,000
300,000

10,000,000 annual
5,000,000 occ

175,745,734
per schedule
per TWCG

Statute

2,000,000 ann agg
1,000,000 occ

per schedule
0 PD canines

5,000,00C wrongful agg

10,000,00G annuai

TOTAL

209

ANNUAL

PREMIUM

6,625

50,487

71,748

included

55,8595

48,974

13620

3,100

713

Included

175,487

123,264

2,883

92,578

866,374
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Heonorable Mayor and City Council
The City of Georgetown, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Siates of America and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United Sfates, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Geargetown, TX {the "Cily"} as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the reiated
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's
internal control over financial repeorting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinians on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a limely basis. A malerial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intarnal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Cur consideration of internal control was for the fimited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or sighificant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompiiance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
cpinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly.
we do not express such an opinion. The resulls of our fests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required o be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not te provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entify's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audi performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the enfity's internal controi
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Z%Jéx/m% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 28, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB
CIRCULAR A-133

Honarable Mayor and City Council
City of Georgetown, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Georgetown, Texas (the "City") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circulfar A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2013. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred o above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govermment Audifing Standards, issued by the Compiraller General of the Uniled States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audiis of States, Local Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circufar A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reascnable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could bave a direct and material effect an 2 major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’'s compliance
with thase requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumsiances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City's complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to abave that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Contirol Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsibie for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred o above, In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal contral over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance,
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over
compiiance.

A deficisncy in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or empioyees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirament of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
controf over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compiliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevenied, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in infernal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a comhination of deficiencies, in internal control over compiiance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

QOur consideration of internal control ever compiiance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over comgpliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in infernal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely o describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the resuit of that testing based on the

reguiraments of OMB Cireular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Lf il on o LLF

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 28, 2014
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESIONED COSTS
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Ungualified
Internal control over financial reperting:
« Material weakness(es) identified? No
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses? None reported
Noncompliance material o financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Ungualified

Internal contrel over major programs:

» Material weakness(es) identified? No
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
o be material weakness(es)? No

Any audit findings disclosed that are required o be reported
in accordance with section 510{a) of OMB Circular A-1337 No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

Dallar threshoid used to distinguish between
Type A and type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee gualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended September 30, 2013

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

No findings noted in the current year.

Section lll - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
No findings noted in the current year.

Section IV - Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
Financial Statement Findings — None noted.

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs — None noted.
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CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2013.

PASS-THROUGH

FEDERAL ENTITY
CFDA IBENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR f PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR | FROGRAM NUMEER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
Bureau of Justice Assistance
Direct programs:
Auketpraof Vest Program 16,607 KA 3 4,964
Total direct programs 4,964
Department of Transpontation / Federal Highway Administration {FHW.A)
Fass-lhrough pragrams from:
Texas Department of Transporation
Highway Planaing & Construction 20,205 2211520149 245751472
Texas Depariment of Transpartation
=ighway Flanring & Construction 20.205 CEJ 0914-05-148 167,216
Texas Depariment of Transoonation
Highway Planning & Censlruclion 20,205 C%i-2211-01-4016 43,361
Texas Department of Tranzpartation
Highway Flanning & Conslruction 20.205 C3J-0015-17-026 26 560
Texas Department of Transportaticn
Highway Planning & Censtruction: 20,205 CEIQHL.08170 129,826
Texas Departrnent of Transportalian
STEF Gomprehensive 20,800 8,671
Texas Parks & Wildife
Mational Recreational Trails Fund pivalel AT1108 G601
Total pass-through programs 2,991,866
Federal Aviation Adminizlration
FPass-through programs fram:
Texas Department of Transporiation-Aviation Division
Airport Project Part:cipaticn Agreement 20106 12T4GREGTN 2,000
Texas Depariment of Transpanation-Aviation Division
Airpart Project Participation Agreement 20108 1314CRGETH 48,190
Total pass-lhrough programs 50,180
Instituie of Museumn & Library Services
Fass-through prograims fram:
Texas State Library & Archives Cammissien .
State Library Program 45514 478-13006 74095
Texas Sate Library & Archives Commissien
State Lbrary Program 45310 472-14005 4,585
Taotal pass-:hrcuah programs TH.280
U5 Department of Hemeland Sacurity
Pass-through programs from:
Federal Emergency Managament Agency
Assistance to fire fighters 97 044 12.442
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Hazard mitigation grant 97047 EMW-20G8- FE-00460 A2 468
Teotal pass-through programs 44 914
US Department of Housing & Urban Development
Pass-throcgh prograems from:
Wilaimsan Gounty
Community Gevelopment Block Srant 14218 055P Georgetown (FY10) Sidowatks 25745
Willaimsan County
Commynity Gevelopmanl Block Gramt 142708 065F Gecrpetown Sceric Dr Sidewalks 220614
Taotal pass-through programs 245 389
Tolal expenditures of federal awards 3 3.417.569



CITY OF GEORGETOWN, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES CF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

General - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the aciivity of all
federal financial assistance programs of the City of Georgetown, Texas. The City's reporting entity is
defined in Note 1 to the City's financial statemenis. Federal assistance received directly from federal
agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other government agencies are
included in the schedule.

Basis of Accounting - The accompanying Schedule of federal financial assistance is prepared using
the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's financial
statements.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reporis - Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree
with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports in all material respects.
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